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FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

IS REB RS

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12A31ALEE

Currency unit: Renminbi million

2023
2023

2022
20225

2021
20215

2020
20205

2019
20195

(note 1)
(fizE1)

(BzE2)

Revenue and profit N:y vl
Revenue WA 177,354 171944 138547 109251 101,794 113,313
Profit before income tax expense BRETEHE R AR F 12,593 11,392 10,576 8,107 7,014 13,645
Core profit before income tax BRETET BRI
expense © A 13,101 12,481 10,481 7,486 7722 14,353
Profit for the year FREF 9,255 8,203 26,337 9,732 9,571 9,571
Profit for the year attributable to AREREE NGRS
shareholders of the Company 5,682 5,228 23,016 6,063 5,551 5,551
- continuing operations ~BEREEK 5,682 5,228 5,141 3,580 2,423 5,551
- discontinued operations —BRILHELEES - - 17,875 2,483 3,128 -
Core profit attributable to AR EREEIG L
shareholders of the Company “ A @ 6,144 6,281 22,891 5,442 6,199 6,199
- continuing operations —FHEREER 6,144 6,281 5,016 2,958 3,071 6,199
- discontinued operations —~BRILHEREES - - 17,875 2,484 3,128 -
Earnings before interest, taxes, MBRAS - BB HER
depreciation and amortisation #3570 R 7 [EBITDA)
(EBITDA) 17,675 16,319 15,453 12,888 11,623 20,710
Assets and liabilities EEHEE
Non-current assets FnBEE 86,321 87,553 87,444 81,145 118247 118,247
Current assets MEBEE 57,198 51,339 45,138 73,843 29,650 29,650
Non-current liabilities FRBEE 23,153 23,806 22,502 25,868 29,415 29,415
Current liabilities MBEE 34,583 34,384 34,219 44,593 39,297 39,297
Net assets BEFH 85,783 80,702 75,861 84,527 79,185 79,185
Capital and reserve R RE
Share capital e 4 71 71 71 71 71
Reserve e 31,951 31,742 30,968 21,956 21,433 21,433
Equity attributable to shareholders /A BB R B 25
of the Company 63,449 59,908 56,275 53,584 49,988 49,988
Non-controling interests JEPE M 22,334 20,794 19,586 30,943 29,197 29,197
Notes: MIEE -
(1) Due to certain Group’s businesses are classified as discontinued operations (1)  FAR2020F AEEIBHEBE D EABRILE

BISEETS - AEENHMBARDEY
REEFBERARRERLECRLBERLE
FHETEN  REASEFAR/REEIN N
lﬁ%%ﬁﬂ%i@éﬁtttbﬁzli%%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬂﬁm
B -

BATSHERAZODRTETEEDE K5
K5 - B EEREEERE N KRS B
ZRRFSTHE MR R ©
ARABRREE RO ENE T BEARR B BER
RIEZME - BERRE  BLEAEREBR
RERWE TEEREEEREZEZART
BRI ©

in 2020. The financial information of the Group has been restated.

2 The financial information of the Group has not been restated for the (2)
potential disposal of discontinued operations as the directors consider that
the unrestated financial information is more appropriate for year-on-year
comparison of the change in the Group’s business operation.

©)) Core profit before income tax expense is defined as profit before income ©))
tax expense excluding impairment losses on property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets and exchange gains/losses.

4) Core profit attributable to shareholders of the Company is defined as profit (4)
attributable to shareholders of the Company excluding impairment losses on
property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and exchange gains/losses
attributable to shareholders of the Company and its related tax effect.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023



FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS
SN EEPRE ST S

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Increase/
BE12A31BLEE 20224 (Decrease)
#m,/ i)
Financial indicators BiEE
Net profit margin FREE 5.22% 4.77% 0.45
Return on total assets (ROA) @ BEEDHREROA) @ 6.55% 6.04% 0.51
Return on capital employed (ROCE) @ FEAEHREROCE) @ 11.64% 10.94% 0.70
Liabilities-to EBITDA ratio BEYEBTDAZE @ 3.17 3.57 (0.40)
Debts-to-net assets ratio © FEEBRBERO 29.38% 32.03% (2.65)
Gearing ratio © BEARBEXO 22.711% 24.26% (1.55)
Debts-to-assets ratio @ BERBXD 17.56% 18.61% (1.05)
Average finance cost @ FHIREKAR® 3.33% 3.66% (0.33)
Earnings per share (Basic) (RMB cent) FREMER) (ARES) 65.62 60.38
Dividend per share (RMB cent) FRBRE(ARES) 28.38 25.39
Dividend payout ratio B L 40.00% 35.00%

Notes:

Net profit margin is profit for the year from continuing operations divided by
revenue from continuing operations.

Return on total assets is profit for the year from continuing operations divided
by average total assets from continuing operations.

Return on capital employed is the ratio of profit before income tax expense
and interest from continuing operations divided by total assets less current
liabilities from continuing operations.

Liabilities-to EBITDA ratio is the ratio of total liabilities from continuing
operations divided by EBITDA.

Debts-to-net assets ratio is the ratio of the sum of interest-bearing borrowings
and lease liabilities divided by total equity.

Gearing ratio is the ratio of the sum of interest-bearing borrowings, and lease
liabilities divided by the sum of total equity, interest-bearing borrowings and
lease liability.

Debts-to-assets ratio is the ratio of the sum of interest-bearing borrowings
and lease liabilities divided by total assets.

Average finance cost is the ratio of aggregated amount of each category
of borrowing multiply by its interest rate divided by the total borrowing from
continuing operations.
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS
b S ES T TS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 2020

BZ12A31ALEE 2023% 20205
Sales volume of natural gas AARHEERE

(100 million cubic metres) (B %)
City gas WA 387 362 336 274 200
CNG CNG 32 28 25 23 29
LNG LNG 69 54 56 78 48
Others Hih 6 6 3 3 3
Sales volume of natural gas AARHES

(100 million cubic metres) (B 7 XK) 493 450 420 378 280
Sales volume of LPG LPGHHEER

(10,000 tonnes) (Bmg) 577 562 599 521 607
Number of Stations in operation TE& L

(E)

CNG stations CNGU 451 495 542 562 562
LNG stations LNGUA 320 329 445 615 612

Sales volume of retail gas
ARRBERE

100 million cublic mets

B3L77K
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS
SN EEPRE ST S

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2021 2020 2019
BZ12A31ALEE 20225 202155 202046 20195
note 1
P&t
LNG processing and terminal LNGIn TEf#E
(100 million cubic metres) (B3 K)
LNG gasification volume LNGRILE 156 152 153 113 122 162
LNG entrucking volume INGEEE 7 6 12 29 18 24
LNG processing volume INGIIT= 28 28 25 24 20 20
LNG processing and terminal LNGIN TEf#E
(100 million cubic metres) (BT FX) 191 186 190 166 160 206

Plants and terminals in operation & &% T AL
LNG plants LNG T/ 15 15 16 15 14 14
LNG terminals LNGEz ik 2 2 2 2 2 3

Equity sales volume of crude oil ~ BHEXRHES
(10,000 barrels) (B#) 921 1,105 1,172 1,219 1,354 1,354

Natural gas pipeline transmission XAREH
(100 million cubic metres) (B FX) - - - - - 556

Notes: MI5E -

(1) Due to certain Group’s businesses are classified as discontinued operations (1) HAR2020F AEBIBHERE D EAB RIS
in 2020. The financial information of the Group has been restated. BB - AEENMBERDEY -

EmEREBMRAT —T-_=ZFFER




LOCATIONS OF NATURAL GAS BUSINESS
AAmFER S

City gas pr_oject in LNG Pla_nt in LNG Term_inal in
operation operation operation

Province & 17 BRIEE BEZLNGIR EEZLNGENE
1. Xinjiang #1578 20 S - 23
2. Hebei T/t 20 2 1 23
3. Shandong I 42 1 - 43
4. Henan JAF 7 - - 7
5. Shanxi [LFg 7 1 - 8 Xinfang #ii
6. Sichuan 4)I] 4 2 - 6 @ _EB
7. Inner MongoliaN 5 & 1 1 = 2
8. Jiangsu JT&k 33 - 1 34
9. Liaoning &% 11 1 - 15
10. Shaanxi PEFT 4 1 - 5
11. Tianjin X)# 9 = = 9
12. Hubei #dt 12 1 - 13
13. Ningxia =& 6 - - 6
14. Guangdong E& 9 - - 9
15. Hainan /&7 4 = - 4
16. Guizhou &/ 4 - - 4
17. Yunnan £ 21 - - 21
18. Zhejiang 7T 4 - - 4
19. Gansu H## 12 1 - 13
20. Qinghai 578 2 1 - 3
21. Beijing 3t 4 - - 4
22, Jilin FAk 5 - - 5
23. Shanghai £/ 1 = = 1
24. Anhui 2 10 - - 10
25. Hunan 47 14 - - 14
26. Guangxi E7 4 - - 4
27. Heilongjiang 28T 3 - - 3
28. Jiangxi )L 74 2 - - 2
29. Chongaing EE 5 - - 5

280 15 2 297

This map is not to scale, for reference only.
UL E T TR I B ERE G - Bt -
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LOCATIONS OF NATURAL GAS BUSINESS
AAmERFEShE
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A LOCATIONS OF CRUDE OIL EXPLORATION AND PRODUCTION BUSINESS
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FEHRS

Respected shareholders:

In 2023, while the global energy industry has gradually shaken off the
haze of the once-in-a-century pandemic and geopolitical conflicts, the
demand for natural gas returned to the track of positive growth. The
effect of domestic macro policies continued to be released, and natural
gas consumption recovered. The annual apparent consumption of the
year amounted to 394,530 million cubic meters, representing a year-
on-year increase of 7.6%. By adhering to the corporate mission of
“Beautiful China of empower construction, brighten wonderful life of
people”, the Group paid more attention to value creation, improved the
governance system, and strove to improve the quality of development.
With increases in both the volume and efficiency of its primary business
and the steady layout of emerging businesses, the Group achieved

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FEHRS

strong performance in the capital markets, the high-quality development
has reached a new high, enabling the Group to be recognised as a
“benchmark enterprise” in the SASAC’s” Double-Hundred Enterprises”
assessment.

Overview of the Company’s performance
Financial performance

For the year ending 31 December 2023 (the “Year”), Kunlun
Energy Company Limited and its subsidiaries realized a revenue of
RMB177,354 million, a year-on-year increase of RMB5,410 million, or
3.1%. Profits before income tax was RMB12,593 million, a year-on-
year increase of RMB1,201 million, or 10.5%. Profits attributable to
shareholders amounted to RMB5,682 million, a year-on-year increase

BLHak EEEZRIERLE|ZRPRE
RIFRIEE -

DR FEB
BHIERE

HZE2023F12A31BIEFE([REE]) @ B
WMEERERAFRENBARERKAAR
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REMBFFARES6.821B7T © B EMA
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FEIRS

of RMB454 million, or 8.7%, and basic earnings per share stood at
RMB65.62 cent. Core profits attributable to shareholders amounted
to RMB6,144 million and core basic earnings per share amounted to
RMB70.96 cents.

Operating Result

Natural gas sales business: During the Year, the Company
actively responded to market changes by continuously optimizing the
allocation of resources and sales structure and implementing accurate
marketing to increase the penetration rate and realize the growth in
sales expansion. Meanwhile, it strived to develop city gas market and
promoted the completion of high quality projects, with an addition of 12
new projects controlled by the Group of city gas projects.

During the Year, natural gas sales volume was 49,285 million cubic
metres, representing a year-on-year increase of 9.6%, among which,
retail gas sales volume was 30,312 million cubic metres, representing
a year-on-year increase of 9.2%. The cumulative number of users
reached 15.604 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 6.1%.
The Natural Gas Sales business recorded a revenue of RMB140,600
million, representing a year-on-year increase of 6.6%.

LPG sales business: The Company seized the favorable opportunity
of economic recovery and increasing demand to further optimize the
resource structure and expand the resource pipeline. The Company
continued to optimize its marketing strategy, actively responded
to changes in demand, and vigorously expanded the direct supply
pipeline for the LPG industry. The Company will strengthen the safety
risk investigation and management of key areas such as LPG depots,
railway trucks and cylinders, and realize the two full-coverage of
“household safety inspection and cylinder coding”, so as to ensure the
safe, stable and controlled operation of the LPG business in 2023.

During the Year, LPG sales volume was 5.7677 million tonnes,
representing a year-on-year increase of 2.7%. This business recorded a
revenue of RMB26,801 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of
8.3%.

LNG processing and terminal business: During the Year, the LNG
terminals maintained secure and smooth production and operation,
and achieved better-than-expected operation capacity and efficiency.
Giving full play to the advantages of the integrated LNG industrial chain,
the operating efficiency of LNG plants has been continuously improved,
resulting in that 11 LNG plants made profits, and 4 LNG plants
achieved loss reduction during the Year.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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During the Year, LNG gasification and entrucking volume of Tangshan
and Jiangsu LNG terminals amounted to 16,326 million cubic metres
in total, representing a year-on-year increase of 3.1%. The average
operation capacity of these two LNG terminals was 90.6%, representing
a year-on-year increase of 2.7 percentage points. 15 LNG processing
plants were put into operation during the Year, and the processing
volume was 2,827 million cubic metres, representing a year-on-year
increase of 44 million cubic metres. The average production capacity of
15 plants under continuous operation was 45.4%, representing a year-
on-year increase of 1.1 percentage points.

During the Year, LNG Processing and Terminal business recorded a
revenue of RMB9,042 million, representing a year-on-year increase of
5.9%.

Exploration and production business: During the year, the
exploration contracts for the Group’s Liao River Qilfield and Peru
Oilfield expired in February and October 2023, respectively. During
the Year, the equity sales volume of crude oil was 9.21 million barrels,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 1.84 million barrels or 16.7%.
The average crude oil selling price decreased to US$66.9/barrel from
US$77.5/barrel of last year. Sales revenue of crude oil was RMB911
million, representing a year-on-year decrease of 60.2%.

Business Highlights

The primary business maintained a strong growth momentum
and all business segments achieved full profitability. Focusing
on enhancing the ability to create value and return to shareholders, we
will speed up the reinforcement of shortcomings, forging the strengths
and reinforcing the foundations, with the scale of customers exceeding
15.60 million. A total of 15 new projects including Changzhou Kunlun
were put into production and consolidated, and retail sales volume
increased by 9.2 percentage points year-on-year. The natural gas sales
increased by 9.6% year-on-year, which the growth rate is significantly
better than the industry level. We are actively docking with local
governments to implement the price linkage mechanism, with 48%
of the project companies achieving residential gas sales at a price
using such mechanism and the purchase and sale price difference
is reasonable and stable. The operation capacity of LNG terminals
remained above 90%, and the LNG plants completed the performance
guidance of “turning loss into profit within three years” ahead of
schedule. The new LPG industrial direct supply users increased to 12.
By exploring auction sales, the extra profit of civil terminals amounted to
RMB405/ton. The operating cash flow is reasonable and abundant, and
the basic earnings per share is RMB65.62 cents, with ROE increased
to 9%, and enterprise value creation ability continued to improve.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FEIRS
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FIEHRS

The development of gas and electricity and emerging
businesses has been fully accelerated, and the momentum of
transformation and development has been more abundant. The
Group grasps the opportunities from the integration of natural gas and
the new energy industry, amplifies its advantages of resources and
terminal networks, and accelerates the creation of new growth engines
to form new competitive advantages. The sales in gas and electricity
projects gradually increased. In Xinjiang, Hebei, Shandong and other
regions, the Group has acquired 4.302 million kilowatts of locked new
energy installed capacity indicators in total and built 25 new energy
projects and 10 comprehensive energy projects in total. For value-
added business, the Group focused on improving services quality,
leading to a year-on-year increase of 21% in operating income. The
multi-location and multi-vessel service scope of LNG refueling-at-sea
business has been further expanded. The construction of strategic and
forward-looking infrastructure projects proceeded in an orderly manner.
The construction of export pipelines of Fujian LNG Station has started,
the preliminary procedures for the Phase Ill supporting terminal project
of Jiangsu LNG and the storage tank expansion project have been
completed, and 6 branch pipelines were put into operation.

The professional management system has been improved,
and the governance capacity and level have been steadily
improved. Through comprehensively promoting the organizational
system optimization and improvement of the special project with the
focus of deepening the reform of the divisional system, the Group
set up five business units, including city gas, LNG, LPG, gas and
electricity and new energy, and Hong Kong (overseas), deepened
the Amoeba Management Model, and made the profit center of each
professional chain more prominent, and effectively stimulated the
value creation ability and the potential of all employees. The Group
vigorously implemented the information strengthening project, and
further extended financial management to business front-end control
and value creation. The Group have steadily carried out the upgrading
and renovation of old pipelines and the upgrading and iteration of
production management systems, significantly improved the level of
real-time monitoring, rapid perception, system evaluation and joint
disposal, and gradually transformed risk prevention and control from
people and physical defense to technical defense.

ESG concept is deeply integrated with production and
management, and the brand value of the enterprise is constantly
improved. Always adhering to the service concept of “devoted to
meeting customers’ demand with better-than-expected services
to drive higher customer satisfaction”, the Group supports the
improvement of the customer hierarchical management system, and
customer survey satisfaction rate has increased to 99.5%. The Group
actively builds a clean, low-carbon, safe and efficient supply system,
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and continuously improves the control of carbon emission. By 2023, the
emission intensity of methane was reduced by 32% as compared with
2020, the emission intensity of carbon dioxide was reduced by 6% and
achieved energy saving of 24 million tons of standard coal throughout
the Year. The Group actively participates in social welfare, consumption
assistance, rural revitalization, matching support and other cumulative
investments of more than RMB16 million. The Group effectively
responded to the concerns of the market, and the capital market has
showed a strong performance. The Group has been selected into the
“Hang Seng SCHK Central Enterprises ESG Leading Index” and other
12 indexes in batch, and the MSCI ESG rating has been maintained at
BBB.

MARKET AND INDUSTRY ANALYSIS

Looking forward to 2024, the global energy supply and demand pattern
will be readjusted and rebalanced, and price volatility will return to a
reasonable range. Domestic macro policy countercyclical and cross-
cycle adjustments take effect. Under the guidance of the national
“seeking progress while maintaining stability, promoting the stability with
progress and building the new before discarding the old” policy, stable
macro-economic growth will continue to consolidate the fundamentals
of demand for clean energy, including natural gas. The implementation
of a package of national major strategies, such as the construction of
a new energy system, the construction of a beautiful China pilot zone,
air quality improvement actions, and the layout of peak regulation for
gas and electricity projects, will strongly promote the demand for clean
and low-carbon natural gas, and the integration of natural gas and
new energy has a broad prospect. It is expected that the growth rate
of national natural gas consumption will be approximately 6% in 2024,
with power generation gas remaining the leading position, and city gas
and industrial gas growing rapidly.

CORPORATE STRATEGY AND FUTURE OUTLOOK

Under the national goal of “carbon peak and carbon neutrality”,
the construction of a new energy system has brought a rare
development opportunity for the natural gas industry, and the Group
is full of confidence to this year’s performance guidance and future
development. We will seize all favorable opportunities and make use
of all favorable conditions, strive to cope with the uncertainty of the
changing situation with the certainty of steady development, adapt to
the market situation to deepen the new structure of the organizational
system, strengthen the transformation and develop new business
formats based on our advantages. We expanded the new mode
of service system based on customer needs, strived to achieve a
sustainable development momentum of greener and safer in operation,
better services and more efficient governance, and create returns for
the majority of investors with solid business performance.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FEIRS

The Group will strive to build a marketing system that adapts to the
competitive situation and continues to enhance its core competitiveness
by focusing on adjusting structure and optimizing layout. The Group
gives full play to the advantages of integration and regional layout,
actively promotes the integration of “One City, One Gas Supplier”
projects, accelerates the implementation of incremental market projects,
vigorously develops high-end and efficient markets, and maintain a
market size with steady growth, reasonable layout and stable benefits.
We actively promote the local price linkage mechanism, improve the
upstream and downstream cost transmission mechanism, and stabilize
the reasonable profit margin of the city fuel project and continue to
enhance value creativity. The Group will strive to build a diversified
business system coordinated with the new energy system and broaden
the road of green and low-carbon transformation with a focus of the
integration of gas and new energy. By adhering to intelligent, high-end
and green development, the Group jointly promotes carbon reduction,
pollution reduction, green expansion and growth, effectively grasps
the development initiative of industry cycle transformation, seizes the
layout of photovoltaic, wind energy, geothermal, biomass and other
new fields and new business model, and actively carries out the
exploration of carbon sink, carbon trading, methane escape detection
and other emerging businesses, realizing the deep transformation
of the development model and the comprehensive reshaping of the
business chain and value chain, and striving for achieving “multi-energy
integration” and “new energy” installed capacity of one million kilowatts
by 2025. The Group will strive to build an efficient operation system
that is compatible with the development of modern industries, and
accelerate the building of smart gas enterprises focusing on new quality
productivity. The Group strengthens the ability of data intelligence,
continues to promote the information reinforcement project, establishes
the data management chain of the whole process, and achieves the
accurate matching of resources and flow, markets and customers,
funds and projects. The Group releases the amplification, superposition
and multiplication effect of digital technology on enterprise
development, and realizes information sharing, resource optimization,
management penetration and efficiency improvement. The Group will
strive to build a customer service system that matches the construction
of a new energy system and accelerate the development of customer
service capabilities focusing on competition and win-win. Always
adhering to the corporate mission of “Beautiful China of empower
construction, brighten wonderful life of people”, the Group stabilizes
the position and seeks development with service, expands the market
and promotes transformation with service, wins consensus and builds
ecology with service and constantly improves customer experience,
increases customer stickiness, expands service space, and promotes
the healthy and sustainable development of enterprises. The Group
will strive to build a modern governance system that matches high-
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quality development, and continuously enhances modern governance
focusing on ESG management efficiency. The Group coordinates the
positive interaction between high-quality development and high-level
safety, effectively implements the three-year action plan for the special
rectification of safety production, deepens the construction of source
control and prevention mechanisms, and strives to create a safe gas
enterprise that allows the government to rest assured and the people
to rest assured. To promote the development of local economy and
society and related industries with the high-quality development of
enterprises and help rural revitalization, the Group effectively fulfils social
responsibilities, and promotes the upgrading of ESG ratings.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

In the new year, the Group will continue to anchor the vision of an
internationally renowned and domestic first-class comprehensive
supplier of green energy, accelerate the adjustment of structure,
optimize the layout, improve quality and increase efficiency, work
together with all sectors of society, deepen cooperative relations,
expand cooperation areas, jointly create a sustainable development
ecosystem of the industry, and reward shareholders and investors with
more excellent performance.

By the Order of the Board
Fu Bin
Chairman and Executive Director
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= MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
S BEEIRELSIR

During the year, following the normalisation of operation of the economy and society of China,
the upward trending in economy brought the demand of gas consumption in commerce and
industry, power generation and other segment. The Group grasped the beneficial timing when
the market rebounded to cope with multiple challenges such as the large fluctuation in market
and increasing cost of resources, continue to optimise its resource allocation and innovative
marketing strategies and methods in order to realise the continuous growth in main business.
Profit before income tax expense was approximately RMB12,593 million, representing an
increase of 10.5% as compared with RMB11,392 million for the last year. Profit attributable to
shareholders of the Company for the Year was approximately RMB5,682 million, representing
an increase of 8.7% as compared with RMB5,228 million for the last year. Core profit attributable
to shareholders of the Company for the Year was approximately RMB6,144 million, representing
a decrease of 2.2% as compared with RMB6,281 million for the last year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIUN AND ANALYSIS

E M [E 51 5m b 53l

Revenue

Revenue for the Year was approximately RMB177,354 million,
representing an increase of 3.1% as compared with the amount of
RMB171,944 million for the last year. Due to the increase in sales
volume and selling price of the natural gas, leading to an increase in the
revenue of the Natural Gas Sales segment.

Other gains, net

Other net gains for the Period was approximately RMB903 million
(2022: RMB62 million). The increase were mainly due to the increase
in government subsidy and decrease in exchange loss recognised as
a result of slowdown in depreciation of RMB against USD and HKD
during the Year.

Purchases, services and others

Purchases, services and others for the Year were approximately
RMB151,091 million, representing an increase of 3.4% as compared
with amount of RMB146,077 million for the last year. The increase was
mainly due to the increase in procurement volume for natural gas which
was generally in line with the increase in revenue of Natural Gas Sales
segment.
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NIANAGEIVIENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EIREsTimE 5l

Employee compensation costs

Employee compensation costs for the Year was approximately
RMB5,970 million, representing an increase of 3.8% as compared with
amount of RMB5,749 million for the last year. Employee compensation
costs remained fairly stable throughout the Year, accounted for 3.37%
of operating revenue, basically unchanged as compared with last year.
The creativity and productivity of the employee continuously enhanced.

Depreciation, depletion and amortisation

Depreciation, depletion and amortisation for the Year was approximately
RMB4,992 million, representing an increase of 2.1% as compared with
amount of RMB4,887 million for the last year. Depreciation, depletion
and amortization remained fairly stable throughout the Year.

Other selling, general and administrative
expenses

Other selling, general and administrative expenses for the Year were
approximately RMB3,656 million, representing a decrease of 3.0%
as compared with amount of RMB3,770 million for the last year. The
decrease was due to the Company’s strict implementation of cost
control.

Interest expenses

Interest expenses for the Year was approximately RMB960 million,
representing an increase of 6.8% as compared with amount of
RMBB899 million for the last year.

Total interest expenses for the Year was approximately RMB995
million, representing an increase of 2.8% as compared with amount of
RMB968 million for the last year. The amount of RMB35 million interest
expenses was capitalised under construction-in-progress, representing
a decrease of 49.3% as compared with amount of RMB69 million for
the last year.

Share of profits less losses of associates

Share of profits less losses of associates for the Year was approximately
RMB466 million, representing a decrease of 11.2%, as compared
with amount of RMB525 million for the last year. The decrease was
mainly due to the decrease in the shared operating profits from CNPC-
Aktobemunaigas Joint Stock Company (“Aktobe”), as a result of lower
international crude oil price during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIUN AND ANALYSIS

Share of profits less losses of joint ventures

Share of profits less losses of joint ventures for the Year was
approximately RMB579 million, representing an increase of 24.0%,
as compared with RMB467 million for the last year. The increase was
mainly due to the increase in the shared operating profits from Mazoon
Petrogas (BVI) Limited, as a result of lower depletion expense of oil
properties during the year.

Liquidity and capital resources

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying value of total assets of the
Group was approximately RMB143,519 million, representing an
increase of RMB4,627 million or 3.3% as compared with RMB138,892
million as at 31 December 2022.

The gearing ratio of the Group was 22.71% as at 31 December 2023
compared with 24.26% as at 31 December 2022, representing a
decrease of 1.55%. It is computed by dividing the sum of interest-
bearing borrowings and lease liabilities of RMB25,202 million (2022:
RMB25,851 million) by the sum of total equity, interest-bearing
borrowings and lease liabilities of RMB110,985 million (2022:
RMB106,553 million).

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has total borrowings of
RMB24,491 million which will be repayable as follows:
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The functional currency of the Company and most of its subsidiaries is
RMB. As such, the Group is exposed to exchange rate risks arisen from
borrowings denominated in other currencies raised by the Company
or its subsidiaries. The Group will incur exchange gain/loss from such
foreign currency borrowings when RMB appreciates/depreciates
against other currencies.
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NIANAGEIVIENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EIREsTimE 5l

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2023, certain property, plant and equipment of
the Group amounting to RMB818 million (2022: RMB958 million) were
pledged to banks for loan facilities granted to the Group.

Material acquisitions and disposal

The Group did not have any material acquisitions and disposals during
the Year.

Material Investments

There is no single material associate or joint venture which significantly
affects the results and/or net assets of the Group.

As of 31 December 2023, we had no specific future plan for material
investments and acquisition of capital assets.

Employee

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had 27,138 employees globally,
excluding the employees under entrustment contracts (2022: 30,916
employees). Remuneration package and benefits were determined in
accordance with market terms, industry practice as well as the duties,
performance, qualifications and experience of the employees.

Contingent Liability

The Group is a defendant in certain lawsuits as well as the named
party in other proceeding. While the outcomes of such contingencies,
lawsuits or other proceeding cannot be determined at present,
management believes that any resulting liabilities will not have a material
adverse effect on the financial position or financial performance of the
Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIUN AND ANALYSIS

DIVIDEND
Dividend Policy

The dividend policy of the Company allows shareholders to share the
Company’s profits and also enables the Company to retain sufficient
reserves for its future development. Under the circumstances that
the Company makes profits and has no effect on the Group’s normal
business operation, the Company intends to share its profits with
its shareholders in the form of annual dividend, which shall be in a
total distribution amount of not less than 25% of the Group’s annual
consolidated profit attributable to the shareholders of the Company, on
the condition that it shall be subject to the following “Criteria”.

Criteria:

1. When proposing the declaration of any dividends, the Board
shall consider, among other things, the business conditions and
strategies of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”),
the expected working capital needs and future expansion plans,
surplus, contractual restrictions, actual and expected national
financial conditions, macroeconomic conditions and other factors
as the Board deems relevant.

2. The dividend rate will vary every year according to the above
criterion and the Company will not assure the distribution of
any specific amounts of dividend at any particular period or the
distribution of dividends at any particular dividend yield.
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NIANAGEIVIENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EIREsTimE 5l

Dividend Distribution Plan

The Company has formulated a three-year dividend distribution plan for
the financial years ended 31 December 2023 and ending 31 December
2024 and 2025 (the “Three-Year Dividend Distribution Plan”), the details
of which are set out as follows:

(i) The annual dividend payout ratio will gradually increase throughout
the Three-Year Dividend Distribution Plan. The Company will strive
to achieve an annual dividend amount of 45% of the Group’s
annual profit attributable to the shareholders of the Company for
the financial year ending 31 December 2025; and

(i)  Interim and final dividends will be declared (in total two times a
year) for each of the financial years ending 31 December 2024
and 2025.

Final Dividend

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend (“20283 Final
Dividend”) of RMB28.38 cents per share (2022: RMB25.39 cents per
share) or HK30.48 cents per share calculated at the exchange rate of
RMB1.00: HKD1.0739, being the average of the mean exchange rate
for the conversion of RMB against HKD as announced by the Hong
Kong Association of Banks for the five business days immediately
preceding 25 March 2024 (2022: HK28.71 cents per share calculated
at the exchange rate of RMB1.00: HKD1.1306) to shareholders whose
names appear on the Company’s register of members on 6 June
2024 (Thursday). The payment of the 2023 Final Dividend is subject
to the approval of the shareholders at the annual general meeting of
the Company to be held at Concord Room, 8th Floor, Renaissance
Harbour View Hotel Hong Kong, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
on Thursday, 30 May 2024 at 11:00 a.m.. The payment is expected
to be made on 18 July 2024 (Thursday). The proposed 2023 Final
Dividend amounted to a total of approximately RMB2,457 million and
2022 Final Dividend of RMB2,198 million was paid on 20 July 2023. By
using final dividend per share divided by core basic earnings per share,
the payout ratio for 2023 was approximately 40.00% (2022: 35.00%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the Year.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS
PURSUANT TO THE LISTING RULES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Company does not have
any other disclosure obligations under Rules 13.20, 13.21 and 13.22 of
the Listing Rules.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted written guidelines on terms no less exacting
than the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix C3 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) as its code of conduct regarding
dealings in the Company’s securities by Directors.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors, and the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code

throughout the year ended 31 December 2023.

By the order of the Board

Qian Zhijia
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 25 March 2024
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of Kunlun Energy Company
Limited (the “Company”, and together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”) is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report in the
Company’s annual report for the year ended 31 December 2023 (the
“Year”).

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate
governance to the Company’s healthy growth and has devoted
considerable efforts to identifying and formulating corporate governance
practices appropriate to the needs of its business.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles (the “Principles”), code provisions (the “Code Provisions”)
and certain recommended best practices (the “Recommended Best
Practices”) as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) contained in Appendix C1 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”).

The Company is committed to the maintenance of stringent corporate
governance practices and procedures with a view to enhancing investor
confidence and the Company’s accountability and transparency. The
Company strives to maintain high corporate governance standards. The
Board of Directors is of the view that the Company has complied with
all the code provisions in the part 2 of CG Code during the Year.

The Company has also put in place certain Recommended Best
Practices as set out in the CG Code.

The Company periodically reviews its corporate governance practices
to ensure that these continue to meet the requirements of the CG Code
and acknowledges the important role of its Board in providing effective
leadership and direction to the Company’s business, and in ensuring
transparency and accountability of the Company’s operations. The key
corporate governance principles and practices of the Company are
summarised as follows:

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the
Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company. The Board is collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.
All directors of the Company (the “Directors”) should make decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company.
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The Board takes responsibility for all major matters of the Company,
including the approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management systems,
establishment of ESG system, material transactions (in particular
those which may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of Directors and other significant financial and operational
matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as
well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with a
view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules and
regulations are followed.

Each Director is normally able to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon making
the request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and the senior
management. The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by the abovementioned officers.

The Board fully supports the Chief Executive Officer and the senior
management in discharging their responsibilities.

When the Board delegates aspects of its management and
administration function to management, it has given clear directions
as to the powers of management, in particular, with respect to the
circumstances where management shall report back and obtain prior
approval from the Board before making decisions or entering into any
commitments on behalf of the Company.

The Company adopted written terms established on the division of
functions reserved to the Board and delegated to the management.

The Company has also arranged appropriate liability insurance cover in
respect of legal action against its Directors.
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Composition

The Board has the necessary balance of skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements of the business of the Company. There
is a strong element of independence in the Board, which can effectively
exercise independent judgement.

Executive Directors:
Mr Fu Bin (Chairman) (Chairman of the Nomination Committee)
Mr Qian Zhijia (Chief Executive Officer)
(Chairman of the Sustainability Committee)
Mr Zhou Yuanhong
Mr Gao Xiangzhong (Chief Financial Officer) (Member of the
Sustainability Committee)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Dr Liu Xiao Feng (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
Member of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and
the Sustainability Committee)

Mr Sun Patrick (Chairman of the Audit Committee and Member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Cormmittee)

Mr Tsang Yok Sing Jasper (Member of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Sustainability Cormmittee)

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules
from time to time.

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.

During the Year, the Board at all times met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to:

(1) the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
directors with at least one independent non-executive director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting
or related financial management expertise;

(2) the appointment of independent non-executive directors
representing at least one-third of the Board.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
Independent Non-executive Director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance
with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.
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The Independent Non-executive Directors bring a wide range of
business and financial expertise, experiences and independent
judgement to the Board. Through active participation in Board
meetings, taking the lead in managing issues involving potential conflict
of interests, serving on Board committees, scrutinising the Company’s
performance and monitoring performance reporting, all Independent
Non-executive Directors make various contributions to the effective
direction of the Company.

Board Diversity

Under Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules, the nomination committee (or the
Board) shall have a policy concerning diversity of Board members and
shall disclose the policy or a summary of the policy in the Corporate
Governance Report. The Board has adopted a board diversity policy
(the “Board Diversity Policy”) and a nomination policy to align the Board
diversity.

Nomination Policy
Selection criteria and principles

The Nomination Committee will consider the following factors upon the
assessment of candidates:

(1) Review the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board
at least once a year, and also make recommendations to the
Board on any proposed changes to align with the Company’s
strategies.

(2)  Fully consider the Board Diversity Policy, individual performance,
individual capability, professionalism, knowledge, experience and
time that can be devoted to the Company, personal credibility,
the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange and applicable laws
and regulations etc.; identify candidate(s) with appropriate
qualifications to be member(s) of the Board, and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individual(s)
nominated as director(s).

(8) Make recommendations to the Board on the relevant matters
regarding the director(s) and succession plans for the director(s) (in
particular, the Chairman and chief executive).

Board Diversity Policy

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity criteria,
including but not limited to, skills, knowledge, experience, gender, age,
ethnicity, educational background etc. Board appointments will be
made on meritocracy, contributions to the Board and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, with due regard to the benefits of
the diversity on the Board.
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As of 31 December 2023, the Board diversity of the Company in terms ~ &{£2023F 12 A31H * AR REZEKER
of age, years of service and title are shown as follows: Fie - EREZSNEFHEREBMEZ TL
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Measurable Objectives

The Board currently has all male Directors and is committed to
enhancing the gender diversity of the Board. The Board targets to
appoint at least one female board member to the Board on or before
31 December 2024. The Nomination Committee will identify suitable
candidate(s), having due regard to the Nomination Policy and the Board
Diversity Policy, and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment.

Gender Diversity of Workforce

As of 31 December 2023, the total number of employees of the Group
(excluding the employees under entrustment contracts) was 27,138,
and the percentage of male employees and female employees was
68% and 32% respectively. The Group adheres to an employment
policy of equality and diversity. We oppose any discrimination, including
gender discrimination, and are committed to gender diversity in our
workforce. Details of the Group’s gender diversity at the workforce level
are set out in the Group’s standalone 2023 Environmental, Social and
Governance Report.

Appointment and Re-election of Director

Code Provision B.2.2 stipulates that every director, including those
appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. Each Non-executive Director
has entered into a formal letter of appointment with the Company for
a specific term of three years, subject to retirement and re-election in
accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company which provide that every
Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy during the Year
shall retire at the next general meeting and every Director (including
those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement at
least once every three years. Code Provisions B.2.2 has been fully
complied with.

In accordance with Bye-law 84(1) and (2) of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Mr Fu Bin, Mr Qian Zhijia and Mr Zhou Yuanhong will retire by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and, being
eligible, have offered themselves for re-election.
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Training for Directors

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his appointment, so as to
ensure that he has an appropriate understanding of the business
and operations of the Company and that he is fully aware of his
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
regulatory requirements.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing briefing
and professional development to Directors whenever necessary.

During the Year, each of the Directors has attended various in-house
briefings and internal or external seminars/training and has read internal
or external newsletters, updates and other reading materials covering
topics such as the business of the Company, corporate governance,
industry knowledge, regulatory updates, finance and management. The
training records of the Directors in 2023 are set out below:
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Board Meetings
Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

Code Provision C.5.1 stipulates that regular Board meetings should be
held at least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals for
reviewing and approving the financial and operating performance and
considering and approving the overall strategies and policies of the
Company.

During the Year, four Board meetings, three Audit Committee meetings,
one Remuneration Committee meeting, two Nomination Committee
meetings and one Sustainability Committee meeting were held.

The attendance record of each Director at the meetings of the Board,
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Sustainability Committee during the Year is set out
below:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
PEEHES

[
it
e
I}

%
SRABLREFTNHER

STRAMEXCEARE EFSEHERETF
BRELHR  KOEFEFE—KX LA%F‘:ﬂITﬁt
)ﬁﬁﬁk&%“*%ﬁ AR E B HE AR

Z BB RBUOR

Ir

¢

KEE  HBONMAEFEESEFH - ZNEX
AL

?i%ﬂ%ﬂﬁﬁ‘ /K%ﬁ@“;é-\aauﬁ ﬂﬁ//\
REZEggBE—AUREXREZESS
2
A% °

KEV BREFENEFS BEXZES -
FTMEZEE REZBEENAKERRZE
Q@E%Ztﬁjf‘uﬂﬁﬁﬁlJﬁDT-

Attendance/Number of Meetings
HE/BRRE

Audit Remuneration  Nomination Sustainability

Directors

Bz
Executive Directors: HITEE -
Mr Fu Bin (Chairman) TREE(FE) 4/4
Mr Qian Zhiia (Chief Executive Officer) BRREE (TTREH) 4/4
Mr Znou Yuanhong REBEE 4/4
Mr Gao Xiangzhong (Chief Financial Officer) BRI (B F#EE 4/4
Indepencient Non-executive Directors: BUFHTEE -
Dr Liu Xiao Feng fEEEt 4/4
Mr Sun Patrick FEERL 4/4
Mr Tsang Yok Sing Jasper LM T 4/4

Committee =~ Committee Committee =~ Committee
THERR
BRZEE HMZEe REZEe ZEE®

- - 2/2 -
- - - 1
- - - 1
3/3 11 22 11
3/3 11 212 -
3/3 11 22 il

EREFRARAD :%:Eiif;%%&%ﬂ




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EFREIBRS

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at least 14
days before the meetings and reasonable notice is generally given for
other Board meetings. For committee meetings, notices are served in
accordance with the required notice period stated in the relevant terms
of reference.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete
and reliable information are normally sent to all Directors/committee
members at least 3 days before each Board meeting or committee
meeting to keep the Directors abreast of the latest developments and
financial position of the Company and to enable them to make informed
decisions. The Board and each Director also have separate and
independent access to the senior management whenever necessary.

The Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary will attend Board and committee meetings,
when necessary, to advise on business developments, financial and
accounting matters, statutory compliance, corporate governance and
other major aspects of the Company.

Minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary. Minutes are prepared after each meeting and the
final version is signed by the Chairman or the chairman of the relevant
committees (as the case may be) and confirmed by the Board in the
following Board Meeting or by the relevant committee in the following
committee meeting (as the case may be). The confirmed minutes are
kept for future reference and Directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a Director,
will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly convened
Board meeting. The Company’s Bye-laws also contain provisions
requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the
quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which such Directors
or any of their associates have a material interest.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be clearly established and
set out in writing.

The Company fully supports the division of responsibility between the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer to ensure a balance of power
and authority.

During the Year, the positions of the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company are held by different individuals. Mr Fu Bin
was the Chairman, and Mr Qian Zhijia acted as Chief Executive Officer
throughout the Year. There is no relationship between the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer.

There are written terms on the general division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer. The Chairman
provides leadership and is responsible for the effective functioning of
the Board in accordance with good corporate governance practices.
With the support of the senior management, the Chairman is also
responsible for ensuring that the Directors receive adequate, complete
and reliable information in a timely manner and appropriate briefing
on issues arising at Board meetings. The Chief Executive Officer
focuses on implementing objectives, policies and strategies approved
and delegated by the Board. He is in charge of the Company’s day-
to-day management and operations. The Chief Executive Officer is
also responsible for developing strategic plans and formulating the
organisational structure, control systems and internal procedures and
processes for the Board’s approval.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Sustainability Committee for overseeing particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company
are established with defined written terms of reference. The terms
of reference of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee are posted on the Stock Exchange’s
website and the Company’s website and are available to shareholders
upon request.
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All Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company are
the members of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

During the Year, the Audit Committee comprised three Independent
Non-executive Directors. Throughout the Year, the Audit Committee
included one Independent Non-executive Director who possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. Mr Sun Patrick was the chairman of the Audit
Committee throughout the Year. None of the members of the Audit
Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing independent
auditor.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

1. to review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by an independent auditor
before submission to the Board;

2. to review the relationship with the independent auditor by
reference to the work performed by the independent auditor, their
fees and terms of engagement, and make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
the independent auditor; and

3. to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures.

During the Year, the Audit Committee conducted three meetings
where it deliberated on various important matters. These included
listening to the auditing plan presented by the independent auditor,
reviewing the financial results and reports, assessing the effectiveness
of financial reporting and compliance procedures, examining the report
on the Company’s internal control and risk management review and
processes, and considering the re-appointment of the independent
auditor.
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The Company’s annual results for the Year have been reviewed by the
Audit Committee.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

There is no different view taken by the Audit Committee from the Board
regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the
independent auditor.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee comprised three
Independent Non-executive Directors. During the Year, Dr Liu Xiao
Feng was the chairman of the Remuneration Committee throughout the
Year. The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
reviewing the management’s remuneration proposals with reference to
the Board’s corporate goals and objectives, making recommendations
to the Board for approval of the remuneration policy and structure and
making recommendations or determining the remuneration packages
of the Directors and the senior management. The Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for establishing transparent procedures
for developing such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that
no Director or any of his associates will participate in deciding his own
remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference to
the performance of the individual and the Company as well as market
practice and conditions.

The Remuneration Committee normally meets annually to review the
remuneration policy and structure and determination of the annual
remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and the senior
management and other related matters. The Company Secretary
is responsible for the collection and administration of the human
resources data and making recommendations to the Remuneration
Committee for consideration. The Remuneration Committee shall
consult the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company about these recommendations on remuneration policy and
structure and remuneration packages.
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The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the Year to
review the remuneration policy and structure of the Company.

The remuneration paid by the Company to the senior management by
the band for the Year is set out as below:

Senior Management emolument

AEE  FHEZESEME X UREXR
NEZ FHBR MR -

AEEHARAXINTERERAE Z2HH
BB

BREEAESZHE

Year 2023
20234

Below RMB1,000,000 AEK#1,000,0007T AT

RMB1,000,001 - RMB2,000,000 AR#1,000,0017T = AR #2,000,0007T -

The majority of the Company’s management received their
remuneration from PetorChina Company Limited or China National
Petroleum Corporation, totaling around RMB 8 million in 2023.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

During the Year, the Nomination Committee comprised four members,
including three independent Non-executive Directors and the Chairman.
During the Year, Mr Fu Bin was the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee include the following:

1. to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

2. toidentify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

3. to assess the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors;

4.  to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment

or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the Chairman and the chief executives;
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to regularly review the time required from a Director to perform his
responsibilities; and

to do such other things to enable the Nomination Committee to
discharge its powers and functions conferred to it by the Board.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the Year to
review Board composition, proposal for Directors’ re-election on
retirement, the appointments of deputy managers as well as the
objectives set for implementing the Board Diversity Paolicy.

CORPORATE GOVERNANGCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the following corporate
governance functions as required under the CG Code:

to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors; and

to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the Year, the Board considered the following corporate
governance matters:

adoption of corporate governance functions under the CG Code;

review the usage of annual caps on continuing connected
transactions of the Group;

review the compliance with the CG Code; and

review of the effectiveness of the internal controls and risk
management systems of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EREIBRS

5. EHIEHEFEETHEBEMBZIEH:

X f

o
ﬁ

HpFEACREEZE S
@T H 7 W MIEE

BITES

AREE  REZEGCETMAGHE  UF
MEEgdEK  EEABERTES  ZEE
wﬁﬁM&%aM§$Aﬁﬁymkﬁﬁﬁ
RENBIR

EERIEE
EZERTECEERTARE TR
ES-Dili T

- HBIERBIARREEERABRRNE
M

- RBRAMEREFNSNEEEZEIIR
FEEXERE

- BEUREEARRFEEEST
MELZBREER

AEREE

mR

~ T REREREREERET R
FRBINARFM R

— BAARRREEETAZERBRL
REEREBRET ZHE -

REE EFEERUTEEEREE

— REEEBATRIRMDRE R

- BHAKEREREXZFE LROE
A

— FHHEEBARTAZERBN &

—  FEHAQBAEMES R EREERG
Bt -

EmERARAE —2=




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EFREIBRS

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

Code Provision C.1.3 stipulates that directors must comply with their
obligations under the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix C3
to the Listing Rules and, in addition, the Board should establish written
guidelines no less exacting than the Model Code for relevant employees
in respect of their dealings in the securities of the issuer.

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix C3
to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors, and the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the Year.

The Company has also established written guidelines — Code for
Securities Transactions by Relevant Employees in respect of the
dealings in the Company’s securities by employees who are likely to be
in possession of unpublished inside information of the Company.

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the Year.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 81 to 89.

During the Year, the fees charged by PricewaterhouseCoopers for the
audit of the Company and its subsidiaries amounted to approximately
RMB14 million (2022: PricewaterhouseCoopers RMB15 million). In
addition, approximately RMB nil million (2022: RMB nil million) was
charged by PricewaterhouseCoopers for non-audit services. The non-
audit services mainly consist of taxation services, advisory and other
professional services. The fees charged by other auditors of the Group
for audit services and non-audit services during the Year amounted
to approximately RMB17 million and RMB2 million respectively (2022:
RMB8 million and RMB2 million respectively).
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SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS IRREFIRIREEMEZ

(1) General Meeting 1) BREAE

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communication between the shareholders and the Board.
The Chairman of the Board as well as the chairmen of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Sustainability Committee or, in their absence,
other members of the respective committees, are available to
answer questions at the shareholders’ meetings.

Under the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders at a general
meeting will be taken by poll except where the Chairman, in
good faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates purely
to a procedural or administrative matter to be voted on by a
show of hands. Details of the poll procedures are included in all
notices/circulars to shareholders and will be explained during the
proceedings of meetings.

Poll results will be posted on the website of the Stock Exchange
and the Company subsequent to the close of the shareholders
meeting.

Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each
substantial issue, including the election of individual Directors.
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During the Year, two general meetings were held on 31 May 2023 AREE - BER2023%5H31H Kk2023F
and 16 November 2023 which were the 2023 annual general 11 A16HETTRAMRE RS - B /A52023
meeting and special general meeting. The attendance records FRRBAFAGRBRRENAE - £5
of the Directors to the 2023 annual general meeting and special M E2028F R AE MIRRFFRIRE 2
general meeting are set out below: HE SRR RSN T -

Attendance/ Attendance/
Number of Number of
Meetings Meetings

HE S2RB HE/EERE

Annual General Special General

Directors Meeting Meeting
= RERBFERE RERFIARE
Executive Directors: HITEE -
Mr Fu Bin (Chairman) IR (£ ) 1/1 1/1
Mr Qian Zhijia (Chief Executive Officer) BORR I (TT AR L) 1/1 1/1
Mr Zhou Yuanhong BB E 11 0/1
Mr Gao Xiangzhong (Chief Financial Officer) =752 5 4 (B1 5 48 E- 1/1 1/1
Independent Non-executive directors: BUIBTESE -
Dr Liu Xiao Feng Gl g 1/1 1/1
Mr Sun Patrick FEESRLE 1/1 1/1
Mr Tsang Yok Sing Jasper BEERK ST A 11 1/1
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(2)

3)

Rights of Shareholders to Convene Special General
Meeting

A special general meeting shall be convened on the written
requisition of shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit
of the registration not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital
of the Company which as at the date of the deposit carries the
voting right at general meetings of the Company deposited at the
registered office of the Company in Bermuda (Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda) and the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong (39/F, 118 Connaught
Road West, Hong Kong) for the attention of the Board.

The written requisition shall specify the objects of the special
general meeting and be signed by the requisitionist(s). If the Board
does not, within 21 days from the date of deposit of the written
requisition, proceed duly to convene the special general meeting
the requisitionist(s) or any of them representing more than one-half
of the total voting rights of all of them, may convene the special
general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as
that in which special general meeting may be convened by the
Board, provided that any special general meeting so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of 3 months from the date
of deposit of the written requisition, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

Shareholders’ Communication

Corporation communications such as interim reports, annual
reports and circulars are sent to the shareholders in a timely
manner and are also available on the website of the Company.
The Company’s website provides the shareholders with corporate
information, such as principal business activities and the latest
development of the Group, as well as the share price and dividend
history of the Company. Also, it provides information on corporate
governance and corporate social responsibilities of the Group
as well as the compositions and functions of the Board and the
committees.

In accordance with Rule 2.07 of the Listing Rules, effective
from 31 December 2023, our Company has adopted a new
arrangement for the dissemination of corporate communication.
Under this arrangement, shareholders can request printed
copies of corporate communication, in addition to the electronic
distribution.
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4)

()

Shareholders are provided with contact details of the Company,
such as telephone hotline, fax number, email address and postal
address, in order to enable them to make any query that they
may have with respect to the Company. They can also send their
enquiries to the Board through these means.

The Company reviews its shareholders’ communication policy
on an annual basis to ensure its effectiveness. After the review
of the implementation and effectiveness of the shareholders’
communication policy, the Company is of the view that the policy
is effective in providing channels for shareholders to communicate
their views on various matters affecting the Company and for the
Company to solicit and understand the views of the shareholders.

Constitutional Documents

Changes in the Company’s constitutional documents may only
be effected by way of special resolution. To comply with the Core
Shareholder Protection Standards as set out in Appendix A1 of
the Listing Rules, and to incorporate housekeeping amendments,
the Company adopted the new bye-laws on 31 May 2023. For
details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
28 March 2023, 20 April 2023 and 31 May 2023, and the circular
of the Company dated 20 April 2023.

Investor Relations

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior management
maintains regular dialogue with institutional investors and analysts
to keep them abreast of the Company’s developments. Enquiries
from investors are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

To promote effective communication, the Company also
maintains a website at http://www.kunlun.com.hk, where
extensive information and updates on the Company’s business
developments and operations, financial information, corporate
governance practices and other information are posted.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

It is the responsibility of the Board to ensure that the Company
maintains sound and effective internal controls to safeguard the
shareholders’ investment and the Company’s assets. The internal
control system of the Company comprises a well-established
organisational structure and comprehensive policies and standards. The
Company also has an internal audit department, which is responsible
for monitoring the internal governance of the Group and overseeing the
risk management and internal control system of the Group.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, assesses annually the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system which covers
all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls as well as risk management of the Company. The Board
acknowledges that such risk management and internal control systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. Having
reviewed the assessment report issued by an external advisory firm, the
Board considers that the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group are effective and adequate.

The Group has been attaching great importance to internal control
and risk management. The Company continued to facilitate the
building of its internal control system, gradually built and improved a
comprehensive risk management system, and effectively promoted
its operation in compliance with the laws and regulations. It actively
pushed forward the integration of risk management and business and
gave full play to the guiding role of risks in its management.
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MAJOR RISK MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL IN 2023

Adhering to the systematic concept and bottom-line mindset, the
Company endeavoured to construct a sound risk dynamic monitoring
and alert system, and continued to carry out risk monitoring work
focusing on the eight material risks of the Company in 2023. With
each business department as the main body, we implemented risk
control measures, optimised risk dynamic monitoring methods and
approaches, scientifically researched and judged risk changes, and
paid attention to the daily analysis and judgment of the domestic and
international situation and information on industry risks. The Company
identified and monitored various types of risk points, grasped the
dynamics of risk information, discovered and addressed risk signals
in a timely manner, and effectively avoided the occurrence of material
systematic and disruptive operation risks. Our major risk management
and control efforts for 2023 are as follows:

1. Market risk
(1) Gas Market Risk

Firstly, the Company guaranteed the supply of natural gas
in winter, gave full play to our strengths in resources, and
coordinated the incremental resources to guarantee the
balance of supply and demand in the market in view of
the winter shortfalls in some project companies. Secondly,
we strengthened the management of terminal purchase
and marketing price differentials, which were included in
the annual performance contract of each unit to enhance
assessment. The Company summarised the “Ten Measures”
for promoting contango, organised all units to promote
contango with the government, negotiated about contango
with customers, and implemented contango on resources
purchased on behalf of them. Thirdly, the Company adhered
to the weekly dynamic analysis mechanism to keep abreast
of market changes and organised all units to optimise their
marketing strategies. We implemented the “Eight Measures”
to increase sales and to enforce the responsibility of each
unit.
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Liquefied Petroleum Gas (LPG) Market Risk

Firstly, we strengthened communication and coordination
with production enterprises, carriers and customers
to achieve balance in the production and sales of LPG
in the face of frequent fluctuations in production and
sales. Secondly, we strengthened the cooperation with
key chemical users, promoted the recycling of regional
resources, and promoted the repurchase of by-product
resources through the supply of raw materials. Thirdly, we
continued to expand the channels for purchasing imported
resources and open up a channel for importing Russian gas
in the direction of Hunchun, so that resources from both
Manzhouli and Hunchun can be supplied to PetroChina
Daging. The Company also opened up channels for the
purchase and sale of Kazakhstan gas and organised
sales beyond Xinjiang to the Ningxia region. Fourthly, we
strengthened business research and judgement, studied
and formulated scientific operation strategies for the
Company, and regularly monitored business information
on international and domestic LPG resources, so that
market demand could be predicted in a scientific manner.
Fifthly, we refined the operation management, adjusted and
optimised the sales flow direction in time in response to
the changes in market demand, and ensured that the LPG
purchase and sales business operated steadily according to
the annual and monthly plans. We formulated special plans
to effectively cope with the adverse impacts of unforeseen
events and traffic control during holidays and festivals.
Sixthly, we increased our efforts in purchasing and selling
imported resources, which has continuously improved our
efficiency and risk resilience.
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Investment Risk

Firstly, the project management procedures were strictly enforced
to strengthen the control of efficiency standards. In accordance
with the management measures, the preliminary examination
of the second-level units and the approval procedures of the
headquarters were strictly carried out, and during the preparation
of the feasibility study report, the market research report was
strictly implemented first. In the conditions examination session,
the market research report and the market implementation
of projects were strictly examined. In the assessment and
examination session, third-party experts were appointed to
examine the truthfulness and reasonableness of the market
situation. In the comprehensive justification session, we further
verified the market implementation and price affordability, thereby
increasing the truthfulness and effectiveness of project market
analysis. Secondly, risk prevention and control was strengthened
and the exit mechanism was clarified. In accordance with the
Management Measures for Feasibility Study of Investment
Projects, the project feasibility study report strengthened the
justification of the controllability of project risks, and through
analysing the results of risk analysis and risk assessment, and
focusing on the key material risks prevailing in the market, the
conditions and strategies for termination or withdrawal of projects
were clarified. Major projects without legal justification were not
submitted for review. Thirdly, we strengthened the management of
pre-planning work, simplified the procedures for initiating feasibility
studies, specified the time limit for approval, implemented project
classification and authorisation management, improved the
efficiency of pre-planning work, and enhanced the timeliness of
investment decision-making. Fourthly, we improved the appraisal
mechanism and strengthened the control of the quality and
effectiveness of feasibility studies. In the project approval session,
through scoring assessment on the quality of feasibility study
reports, we further improved the quality of preparation of feasibility
studies to ensure the scientificity and reasonableness of project
justification. After projects were put into operation, the Company
implemented synergy evaluation and assessment of investment
projects and incorporated them into its performance assessment,
so as to convey the pressure of achieving the investment
efficiency to the project source.
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Health, Safety and Environmental Protection Risk

Firstly, the Company fulfilled its responsibilities as a central
enterprise, actively participated in the formulation and revision
of national and industrial standards, continuously explored new
ways to improve management and promoted the application
of new technologies, and achieved significant results in
preventing third-party damage to pipelines. Targeting third-party
management, we compiled the “Guiding Opinions on Third-Party
Construction of Branch Lines and Township Gas Pipelines of
Kunlun Energy Company Limited (for Trial Implementation)”, and
formulated the “Four Principles”, i.e., the pipeline management
principle of “Detailed and True Data, Complete Marker and
Control by Grade”, the pipeline inspection principle of “Early
Detection, Early Intervention and Early Elimination”, the third-
party construction supervision principle of “One Case for One
Incident, Strict Approval, Energy Isolation and Side Station
Supervision”, and the third-party construction management
principle of “Co-management with Local Enterprises, Regular
Meetings and Joint Prevention and Control” for strict following
in third-party management. Secondly, the Company attached
great importance to the establishment and application of
pipeline digitalisation, formulated standards for data collection
and application, and completed the pipeline digitisation rate of
100% through the production management system, realising
a significant reform in the comprehensive factor coverage of
pipeline integrity and online management mode. The Company
standardised recording of basic information such as pipeline
centreline coordinates, elevation, depth of burial and geographic
environment, established and effectively implemented standards
for the graded management of third-party construction along the
pipeline periphery, and formed the “Five-step Method” of third-
party pipeline construction management, which includes the
collection and reporting of information, naotification and warning,
review of protection plans, supervision of the construction
process, and acceptance and archiving, thus achieving the
closed-loop management of third parties. We promoted the use
of vibration warning, smart Al video surveillance, “Single Sentry
Post” and other technical means of prevention, introduced drones
to efficiently carry out pipeline inspection, constructed an all-
round three-dimensional protection network, and used Wuhan
East Lake Company as a pilot point to summarise and form the
“Six Mechanisms” for preventing third-party construction damage,
“Three Standards” for pipeline protection and “Four Methods” for
onsite protection based on feasible experiences and practices.
Thirdly, we standardised the safety inspection procedures,
enhanced the capability of safety inspectors, improved the
quality of safety inspections, raised the household safety
inspection rate, strengthened publicity campaigns on safety,
established an effective closed-loop mechanism for rectification
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of potential problems, and strictly verified and assessed the safety
inspections. We also implemented the additional installation of
loT-powered gas meters, stainless steel corrugated hoses, self-
closing valves, combustible gas alarms and other technical means
of prevention, and the number of safety incidents caused by
improper customer-end operation continued to decline.

National Policy Orientation Risk

Firstly, we strengthened our policy research and response
by having our professional departments collect and study
national and local policies, and strengthened our analysis and
response strategies at the regular bi-weekly meetings and
monthly analysis meetings of the Company. Secondly, after
the National Development and Reform Commission issued the
guiding opinions on the establishment of a sound price linkage
mechanism, each unit seized the policy opportunity to actively
liaise with local governments. Each unit actively promoted two
contango exercises for the heating and non-heating periods in
accordance with the changes in gas supply costs, ensuring a
stable year-on-year increase in the purchase and marketing price
differential. Thirdly, we promoted the integration of the gas station
business of the Group’s companies by leasing gas stations to
refined oil sales enterprises for operation to eliminate uncertainty,
exert synergy to expand the scale of gas supply, and boost the
enhancement of quality and effectiveness. Fourthly, we continued
to strengthen the development of end-users to increase the
number of users and diversify the user structure, so as to offset
the impact of lower gas consumption in a single industry due to
policy reasons.

Strategic Partner Risk

Firstly, the Company started to amend the “Management
Measures for the Selection of Cooperative Shareholders of Kunlun
Energy Company Limited” to further improve the standards for
selection of cooperative shareholders and effectively implement
the requirements for risk prevention and control as well as
compliance management. Secondly, we established a corporate
governance structure with clear rights and responsibilities for all
shareholders, and took our articles of association as the basic
guideline for standardised governance. We continued to pay
attention to the formulation and management of the articles of
association, and organised the revision and improvement of the
articles of association of more than 50 companies. Thirdly, in our
ordinary course of business, we strengthened communication
and exchange with the cooperative shareholders, paid attention
to their operating conditions, and adopted effective measures
against risks as soon as possible.
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Guarantee Risk

Firstly, the annual special inspection of the guarantee and credit
business was launched to comprehensively investigate business
risks. A special inspection working group on guarantee and credit
management was set up to organise self-inspection by units at all
levels. The inspection was conducted in a comprehensive manner
covering all units, and no new irregularities in guarantee matters
were found. Secondly, with the articles of association of the
Company as the basic guideline for standardised governance, we
strengthened the system construction and rigid implementation,
enhanced the capacity of legal service protection, and promoted
the focus of management to be shifted to governance at source
and process management and control.

Capital Risk

Firstly, the centralised management of funds was continuously
promoted. With the goal of “Full Concentration of Units and
Funds” and the principle of “Implementation by Batch and Steady
Progress”, we steadily increased the degree of concentration of
funds and continued to enhance the efficiency and effectiveness
of centralised management of funds. Secondly, the scale of
debt financing was tightened. We coordinated the internal
and external debt scale of the Company, optimised financing
arrangements and effectively reduced financing costs. Thirdly, the
Company carried out in-depth specialised management of fund
management problems, made up for shortcomings, strengthened
weaknesses, plugged loopholes, improved systems and
processes, and established a long-term mechanism. Fourthly, we
gave full play to the reflective and supervisory functions of financial
management and continued to build up the financial control
system of the Company. We implemented the “12345” financial
management requirements (i.e. one management objective, two
key businesses, three core enhancements, four management
levels and five system construction). We upheld the philosophy
of lean management, strengthened value orientation, continued
benchmarking in management, and solidly pushed forward the
special work of improving quality and efficiency and managing
loss-making enterprises, so as to help the Company realise high-
quality development.
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Engineering Project Compliance Risk

Firstly, we strictly supervised and inspected the projects on site
before commencement of construction, and followed up the
implementation plan of engineering projects. Focusing on the
preliminary formalities, quality, safety and progress target control,
we put forward rationalisation proposals and urged rectification
of problems on 30 work items including the overall deployment
of compliance management. The relevant units were requested
to strengthen confirmation of project conditions before the
commencement of construction, strengthen the management
of supervisory duties, promote the implementation of the
responsibilities of the supervisory personnel, and rectified and
concluded problems. We incorporated the identified problems
into the risk control list and started dynamic problem tracking and
rectification. Secondly, we regularly convened special coordination
meetings and provided onsite guidance. We strengthened
project process control and management, managed construction
schedule at source, coordinated overall project deployment,
and assisted provincial companies and project companies in the
preparation of detailed project implementation plans focusing on
the key paths of procurement, installation, commissioning and trial
operation. We adopted parallel, crossover, continuous and other
extraordinary construction protection measures to organise onsite
construction in a scientific manner. Thirdly, we continued to carry
out project supervision and inspection, and implemented closed-
loop management of problems. According to the construction
status of projects, the key tasks for engineering supervision of
the month were issued at the beginning of the month, including
special inspections on risky operations, inspections on anti-three
violations, and safety inspections during flood control as well
as festivals and holidays. The number of engineering problems
identified by systematic audit of the Company declined year by
year, and the responsibility of project management personnel
in each unit was further enhanced. Fourthly, we implemented
strict assessment, hard realisation and further enhancement of
accountability management. According to the monthly supervision
and inspection, the responsible units and persons for the serious
and typical problems found were held accountable in accordance
with the contract terms, contractor management norms and
managers’ score management system, which further enhanced
the quality awareness of the project management personnel,
improved the contract performance awareness and contract spirit
of the construction units and supervision units, and ensured that
the quality of project management was under full control.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of Kunlun Energy Company
Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to present their annual report and
the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2023 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are urban gas
distribution, LNG processing and transportation, LPG sales, integrated
energy and new energy. Additionally, we are currently involved in crude
oil exploration and production activities in the Republic of Kazakhstan,
the Sultanate of Oman and the Kingdom of Thailand. Particulars of
its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 36 in the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A detailed review of the results of each business segment of the
Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”), major risks and
uncertainties facing the Group’s business operations, and the Group’s
business prospects are set out in the Chairman’s Statement on pages
12 to 19 of this annual report.

(1) Business Strategy

The global energy supply and demand landscape was readjusted
and rebalanced, and price fluctuations returned to a reasonable
range. Under the effect of the domestic macro policy of counter-
cyclical and cross-cyclical adjustment and the guidance of the
national policy of “seeking progress while maintaining stability,
promoting stability by making progress, and establishing before
breaking through”, the stable growth of the macro economy will
continue to be consolidate the demand for clean energy, including
natural gas. The construction of a new energy system, the
construction of the “Beautiful China Pioneer Zone”, the air quality
improvement initiative and the deployment of peak gas power
projects will all contribute to the development of a new energy
system in China. The implementation of a package of major
national strategies, such as the construction of a new energy
system, the construction of the “Beautiful China Pioneer Zone”,
the air quality improvement initiative and the layout of peak gas
and electricity projects will give a strong impetus to the demand
for clean and low-carbon energy. The integration of natural gas
and new energy has extensive prospects for development. We
will seize all favorable opportunities and make use of all favorable
conditions, strive to cope with the uncertainty of the changing
situation with the certainty of steady development, adapt to the
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market situation to deepen the new structure of the organizational
system, strengthen the transformation and develop new business
formats based on our advantages. We expanded the new mode
of service system based on customer needs, strived to achieve
a sustainable development momentum of greener and safer in
operation, better services and more efficient governance, and
create returns for the majority of investors with solid business
performance.

The Group will strive to build a marketing system that adapts
to the competitive situation and continues to enhance its core
competitiveness by focusing on adjusting structure and optimizing
layout. The Group gives full play to the advantages of integration
and regional layout, actively promotes the integration of “One City,
One Gas Supplier” projects, accelerates the implementation of
incremental market projects, vigorously develops high-end and
efficient markets, and maintain a market size with steady growth,
reasonable layout and stable benefits. We actively promote
the local price linkage mechanism, improve the upstream and
downstream cost transmission mechanism, and stabilise the
reasonable profit margin of the city fuel project and continue to
enhance value creativity. The Group will strive to build a diversified
business system coordinated with the new energy system and
broaden the road of green and low-carbon transformation with
a focus of the integration of gas and new energy. By adhering
to intelligent, high-end and green development, the Group jointly
promotes carbon reduction, pollution reduction, green expansion
and growth, effectively grasps the development initiative of
industry cycle transformation, seizes the layout of photovoltaic,
wind energy, geothermal, biomass and other new fields and
new business model, and actively carries out the exploration
of carbon sink, carbon trading, methane escape detection and
other emerging businesses, realizing the deep transformation of
the development model and the comprehensive reshaping of the
business chain and value chain, and striving for achieving “multi-
energy integration” and “new energy” installed capacity of one
million kilowatts by 2025.
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The Group will strive to build an efficient operation system that
is compatible with the development of modern industries, and
accelerate the building of smart gas enterprises focusing on new
quality productivity. The Group strengthens the ability of data
intelligence, continues to promote the information reinforcement
project, establishes the data management chain of the whole
process, and achieves the accurate matching of resources and
flow, markets and customers, funds and projects. The Group
releases the amplification, superposition and multiplication
effect of digital technology on enterprise development, and
realizes information sharing, resource optimization, management
penetration and efficiency improvement. The Group will strive to
build a customer service system that matches the construction
of a new energy system and accelerate the development of
customer service capabilities focusing on competition and win-
win. Always adhering to the corporate mission of “Beautiful China
of empower construction, brighten wonderful life of people”,
the Group stabilizes the position and seeks development with
service, expands the market and promotes transformation with
service, wins consensus and builds ecology with service and
constantly improves customer experience, increases customer
stickiness, expands service space, and promotes the healthy and
sustainable development of enterprises. The Group will strive to
build a modern governance system that matches high-quality
development, and continuously enhances modern governance
focusing on ESG management efficiency. The Group coordinates
the positive interaction between high-quality development and
high-level safety, effectively implements the three-year action
plan for the special rectification of safety production, deepens the
construction of source control and prevention mechanisms, and
strives to create a safe gas enterprise that allows the government
to rest assured and the people to rest assured. To promote the
development of local economy and society and related industries
with the high-quality development of enterprises and help rural
revitalization, the Group effectively fulfils social responsibilities, and
promotes the upgrading of ESG ratings.
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Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group’s businesses are mainly operated by its subsidiaries
in the PRC and overseas, which their businesses should abide by
the relevant laws and regulations, including those relating to the
gas operation and service, gas facilities protection, prevention and
handling of gas safety accidents, price determination regime of
natural gas, environmental protection, labour security, exploration,
production and sales of crude oil. The Group has also obtained
the requisite business licenses, qualifications, approvals and
permits which are necessary for conducting its operations in the
PRC and overseas.

During the Year, to the best of the knowledge and information
of the directors of the Company (the “Directors”), the Group has
complied with the relevant laws, regulations and other applicable
requirements that have a significant impact on the Group and
there have not been any illegal or non-compliant acts which would
materially impact the Group’s normal and continuing operations.

Key relationships with stakeholders

The Group recognises the importance of good corporate
governance to its healthy growth and strives to maintain effective
communication with its stakeholders, including its shareholders,
investors, employees, customers and suppliers. This has
facilitated the Group’s sustainable development in various aspects,
including its business operation, environmental protection and
work environment.

Corporate communications are provided to the shareholders of
the Company in a timely manner. The Directors participated in
the general meetings held during the Year to enable effective
communication with the shareholders. The Company also
continues to enhance communications and relationships with
its investors. Designated senior management maintains regular
dialogue with institutional investors and analysts to keep them
abreast of the development of the Company.

The Group adheres to the principle of fairness in the recruitment
and treatment of its employees and has established sound
occupational health and safety policies to create a desirable work
environment for its employees. The remuneration package and
benefits of the employees are determined in accordance with
market terms, industry practice as well as duties, performance,
qualifications and experience of the employees.
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The Group adopts a market-oriented approach, closely monitors
the demand for its products and coordinates its production,
transmission and marketing activities with an aim to provide
greater value to its customers. The Group has established long-
term relationships with its major customers, including PetroChina
Company Limited (“PetroChina”) and other independent third-
party customers which are primarily industrial users of the Group’s
gas products. The ageing analysis and further details of the
Group’s accounts receivable are set out in Note 23 in the Notes
to the Consolidated Financial Statements. The Group did not
rely on any major customer during the Year and will continue to
adopt multiple measures to develop users and expand marketing
channels.

At the same time, the Group adopts a scientific approach to
managing its supply chain and controlling the costs of raw
materials. The Group has also received strong support from its
largest supplier, PetroChina, in maintaining stable supply for its
midstream and downstream natural gas business. The Group has
maintained a good relationship and did not have any significant
disputes, with its major customers and suppliers during the Year.

The Group has upheld its mission of “Low-Carbon Economy
Green Development” in its long-term business strategy. It
has placed a great emphasis on environmental protection by
promoting energy conservation and emission reduction to
contribute to the sustainable development of the environment and
maintain the long-term growth of the Group.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income on pages 90 and 91.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend (“2023 Final
Dividend”) of RMB28.38 cents per share (2022: RMB25.39 cents per
share) or HK30.48 cents per share calculated at the exchange rate of
RMB1.00: HKD1.0739, being the average of the mean exchange rate
for the conversion of RMB against HKD as announced by the Hong
Kong Association of Banks for the five business days immediately
preceding 25 March 2023 (2022: HK28.71 cents per share calculated
at the exchange rate of RMB1.00: HKD1.1306) to shareholders
whose names appear on the Company’s register of members (the
“Shareholders Register”) on 6 June 2024 (Thursday). The payment of
the 2023 Final Dividend is subject to the approval of the shareholders
at the annual general meeting of the Company to be held at Concord
Room, 8th Floor, Renaissance Harbour View Hotel Hong Kong, 1
Harbour Road, Hong Kong on Thursday, 30 May 2024 at 11 a.m. (the
“2024 AGM”). The payment is expected to be made on 18 July 2024
(Thursday). The proposed 2023 Final Dividend amounted to a total
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of approximately RMB2,457 million and the 2022 Final Dividend of
RMB2,198 million was paid on 20 July 2023. The payout ratio for 2023
(final dividend per share divided by core basic earnings per share) was
approximately 40% (2022: 35.00%).

The proposed 2023 Final Dividend will be payable in cash to each
shareholder in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”) unless an election is made to
receive the same in Renminbi (“RMB”).

Shareholders will be given the option to elect to receive all (but not
part, save in the case of HKSCC Nominees Limited, which may elect
to receive part of its entitlement in RMB) of the 2023 Final Dividend in
RMB. If shareholders elect to receive all (but not part) of the 2023 Final
Dividend in RMB, shareholders should complete a dividend currency
election form, which is expected to be despatched to shareholders
in mid-June 2024 as soon as practicable after the record date of 6
June 2024 (Thursday) to determine shareholders’ entitlement to the
proposed 2023 Final Dividend.

If an election is made by a shareholder to receive the 2023 Final
Dividend in RMB in respect of all (but not part) of that shareholder’s
entitlement, the RMB dividend will be paid by cheques which are
expected to be posted to the relevant shareholders by ordinary post on
18 July 2024 (c) at the shareholders’ own risk.

Shareholders who are minded to elect to receive the 2023 Final
Dividend in RMB should note that (i) they should ensure that they
have an appropriate bank account to which the RMB cheques for the
2023 Final Dividend can be presented for payment; and (i) there is
no assurance that the RMB cheques can be cleared without handling
charges or delay in Hong Kong or that the RMB cheques will be
honoured for payment upon presentation outside Hong Kong.
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If any beneficial owners of shares of the Company which are registered
in the name of a nominee (e.g. HKSCC Nominees Limited), trustee
or registered holder in any other capacity elect to receive all (but not
part) of the 2023 Final Dividend in RMB, they should make appropriate
arrangements with such nominees, trustees or registered holders in
order to effect the receipt of the 2023 Final Dividend in RMB. The
Company shall not be responsible for any costs, taxes or duties
associated therewith or arising therefrom and such costs will be borne
solely by the beneficial owners of such shares of the Company. If no
such arrangements are in place, such beneficial owners of shares of the
Company (despite having elected to receive the 2023 Final Dividend in
RMB) shall receive the 2023 Final Dividend in HKD.

If shareholders wish to receive the 2023 Final Dividend in HKD in the
usual way, no additional action is required.

Shareholders should seek professional advice from their tax advisors
regarding any possible tax implications of the proposed dividend
payment.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2024 AGM will be held on 30 May 2024 (Thursday). The Notice of
the 2024 AGM, which constitutes part of the circular to shareholders,
will be sent to the shareholders together with the 2023 Annual Report.
The Notice of the 2024 AGM and the proxy form will also be available
on the websites of the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
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CLOSURE OF SHAREHOLDERS REGISTER

For the purposes of determining shareholders’ eligibility to attend and
vote at the 2024 AGM, and entitlement to the 2023 Final Dividend, the
Shareholders Register will be closed. Details of such closures are set
out below:

(i)  For determining eligibility to attend and vote at the 2024 AGM:

Latest time to lodge transfer 4:30 p.m. on 24 May 2024
documents for registration (Friday)
Closure of Shareholders from 27 May 2024 (Monday)
Register to 30 May 2024 (Thursday)

(both dates inclusive)

Record date 30 May 2024 (Thursday)

(i) For determining entitlement to the 2023 Final Dividend:

Latest time to lodge transfer 4:30 p.m. on 4 June 2024
documents for registration (Tuesday)
Closure of Shareholders from 5 June 2024 (Wednesday)
Register to 6 June 2024 (Thursday)

(both dates inclusive)

Record date 6 June 2024 (Thursday)
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During the above closure periods, no transfer of shares will be
registered. To be eligible to attend and vote at the 2024 AGM, and to
qualify for the 2023 Final Dividend, all properly completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged for
registration with the Company’s Branch Registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Secretaries Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt
Road, Hong Kong no later than the aforementioned latest time.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 4.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during
the Year are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
on pages 94 and 95, and Note 27 in the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during
the Year are set out in Note 26 in the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as of
31 December 2023 and 2022 were as follows:

A YNSIEIR s DTS 4

R2023F 2022412 A31H » KA G Ao
KBTS

2023 2022

20234 20224

RMB’million RMB’million

ARBEBEER AREEET

Contributed surplus BEHRR 109 109
Retained earnings B 17 B F 10,175 10,840
10,284 10,949

Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, the contributed surplus
account of the Company is available for distribution. However, the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out
of contributed surplus if:

(@ itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as
they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda that would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the Year.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the Year are:
Executive Directors:

Mr Fu Bin (Chairman)

Mr Qian Zhijia (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr Zhou Yuanhong

Mr Gao Xiangzhong (Chief Financial Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Dr Liu Xiao Feng

Mr Sun Patrick

Mr Tsang Yok Sing Jasper

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Insurance cover in respect of liability against the Directors arising from
their offices and execution of their powers, duties and responsibilities

has been arranged and in force during the Year.
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BRIEF BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS IN RESPECT OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors
Mr Fu Bin (Chairman)

Aged 59, Mr Fu was appointed as the Executive Director and Chairman
of the Board of the Company on 19 November 2020.

Mr Fu also holds the positions of employee representative supervisor
and deputy chief economist at PetroChina Company Limited, as well as
the executive director of PetroChina Natural Gas Marketing Company
(FEIAHARARIEE DR A]).

Mr Fu holds the title of senior economist and has obtained a bachelor’s
degree in engineering from East China Petroleum Institute (now
renamed as China University of Petroleum (East China)), a master’s
degree in engineering from China University of Petroleum (Beijing), and
has completed the EMBA program at the University of Houston in the
United States.

Mr Fu has over 30 years of experience in the Chinese petroleum
and gas industry. Since 1992, Mr Fu has worked in China National
Petroleum Corporation Marketing Company (4 B KA 42 A 7]
$H%E /2 &), China National Petroleum Marketing Corporation (41 B4/
$HE 482 7)) and the Refining and Marketing Company of PetroChina
Company Limited (“PetroChina”) (41 Bl )l K SA A% 17 B PR A &6
EEHE 5 A F]). Mr Fu became executive vice president and president
of China Marine Bunker (PetroChina) Co., Ltd. (FF B RAKEI B IR & (£
73 a]) in November 2003 and July 2007 respectively. He became vice
president of PetroChina Marketing Company (/B AJH S5 A7) in
November 2009, president of PetroChina Sichuan Marketing Company
(FPEIAMEPY)I1$55 572 7)) as well as president of Sichuan Petroleum
Corporation (P9)11%4 & h % E A 7)) in October 2014, and president of
PetroChina Marketing Company in April 2018. He became executive
director of PetroChina Natural Gas Marketing Company, president of
PetroChina Natural Gas and Pipelines Company, and executive director
and president of China Petroleum HongKong (Holding) Limited in
October 2020.
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Mr Qian Zhijia (Chief Executive Officer)

Aged 58, Mr Qian was appointed as an Executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company on 19 November 2020.

Mr Qian also holds the position of president of PetroChina Natural Gas
Marketing Company.

Mr Qian holds the title of senior engineer and has obtained a bachelor’s
degree in engineering and a doctoral degree in engineering from
Southwest Petroleum Institute (now renamed as Southwest Petroleum
University), and has completed the EMBA program at the University of
Houston in the United States.

Mr Qian has over 30 years of experience in the Chinese petroleum
and gas industry and has worked in Sichuan Petroleum Administration
Bureau (P9)!I/AEE ¥ B) and PetroChina Southwest Oil and Gas Field
Company (B /A A PR M A MDA 7)) since July 1989. He became
vice president of PetroChina Southwest Oil and Gas Field Company in
December 2009, as well as vice president of PetroChina Natural Gas
Southwest Marketing Company (B /A JHAARHEEFRAE D A R) in
December 2016 concurrently. In May 2017, Mr Qian became executive
vice president of PetroChina Southwest Oil and Gas Field Company
and vice president of PetroChina Natural Gas Southwest Marketing
Company. In July 2018, Mr Qian became president of PetroChina
Natural Gas Southwest Marketing Company and vice president of
PetroChina Southwest Oil and Gas Field Company. In January 2019,
Mr Qian became vice president of the Company and vice president of
PetroChina Natural Gas Marketing Company. In October 2020, Mr Qian
became president of PetroChina Natural Gas Marketing Company.

Mr Zhou Yuanhong

Aged 56, Mr Zhou was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company on 12 January 2018.

Mr Zhou also holds the positions of director and president of Strait
Energy Limited/InterContinental Strait Energy Investment (Beijing)
Limited.

Mr Zhou holds the title of senior accountant and has obtained a
bachelor’s degree from Xi’an Shiyou Institute (now renamed Xi’an
Shiyou University) and a master’s degree from the University of New
South Wales, Australia.

DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEBHRESE

AREE (TTHAEZL)

HER+TN\B - 854 R2020F11 A198#
ZEARNRRAITES RITHAAH, o

BRETFREPEOBRARBEED R AE
1538 o

REERLESMITIZA - RRAEAPOHE
b (REBAEOBASZ) NS TEELMT
ST - WX BIRETIE KNS HE X
EMBAGRIZ ©

BAAEEPRAORERARTERER =T
FHITEL S - B198947 A LB EN)
AMERBMPBRABAAEMRES AFT
B - 2009F 12 AR EF B A MAR BRAD
NEEIBLEIE - 20165F 12 A 3T B A H
KAREEFED A RRIBLIE - 2017F5H
BEFPBRARARMRED AR EB5EBE
BRARABRARBEEAMD DR ERLK
- 2018F 7 ARREHRE AR RXAREETRE
DRRBLIR TR M E AR ED AR
Bl4a4E38 - 2019F 1 ARRAEAR QR FIBALIE -
FEIARARARIEE DR ARIAREIE - 2020
FI0OARBREFREABRAREED R a B
12 o

BERRE

BERTE - ALER2018F1A12HEZ
EAKRRBHITES °

JE e MR B AL IR B BR A ), N B & 1B
RERREULR)BRATES - 8K -

BFEERESHEE - LRIGAR LM
Blx GRE A /RAR A AKE) AR FRA
N m BB T ABE LB

EREFRARAD :%:EEiTE%&%ﬂ




DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEBHRESE

Mr Zhou has over 30 years of experience in the oil and gas industry,
with a long-standing career in financial management and capital
operations at China National Petroleum Corporation’s group. Mr Zhou
has previously held positions such as deputy general manager of the
capital operations department at China National Petroleum Corporation,
director at CNPC Capital Company Limited, president of Strait Energy
Industry Fund Management (Xiamen) Co., Limited and deputy general
manager of the finance department at PetroChina.

Mr Gao Xiangzhong (Chief Financial Officer)

Aged 58, Mr Gao was appointed as a Chief Financial Officer of the
Company on 22 April 2022 and an Executive Director of the Company
on 8 July 2022.

Mr Gao is a senior accountant and has obtained a bachelor of arts
degree from Peking University and a master of business administration
degree from the University of Science and Technology Beijing.

Mr Gao has over 30 years of working experience in the oil and gas
industry. He has been engaged in auditing and financial management
for many years and has extensive professional knowledge and practical
experience in financial management. He has served successively in
Sinopec Shengli Petroleum Administration Bureau (4 B4 1L F A
&I 3) and PetroChina Audit Center (FF BI/AHZE T 1) since 1987,
has been the deputy chief auditor of PetroChina Audit Center since
November 2015, has been the chief accountant of PetroChina Natural
Gas Marketing (Western) Company (B /A AR AREE D A F)
since December 2016, has been the chief accountant of PetroChina
Transportation Co., Ltd. (FBIAA:EEE R A F]) since October
2020, and has been the chief accountant of PetroChina Natural Gas
Marketing Company (4 Bl Jf K A SR 35 & 792 A) since March 2022.
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Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr Liu Xiao Feng

Aged 61, Dr Liu was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 16 April 2004.

Dr Liu has more than 20 years of experience in corporate finance and
has worked in various international financial institutions since 1993,
including N.M. Rothschild & Sons Limited, NM Rothschild & Sons (Hong
Kong) Limited, JP Morgan Chase, DBS Asia Capital Limited, China
Resources Capital Holdings Company Limited and UBS Securities
Co., Ltd. He served as an independent non-executive director of
Haier Electronics Group Company Limited (stock code: 1169) from
June 2007 to June 2014, Hisense Home Appliances Group Company
Limited (stock code: 921) from September 2017 to August 2018,
Honghua Group Limited (stock code: 196) from January 2008 to
November 2021, and of AAG Energy Holdings Limited from August
2018 to August 2023. He has been an independent non-executive
director of Cinda International Holdings Limited (stock code: 111)
since July 2016, of Sunfonda Group Holdings Limited (stock code:
1771) since May 2017, and of Logory Logistics Technology Co., Ltd.
(Stock code: 2482) since March 2023. The issued shares of all these
companies are listed on the Stock Exchange, except for AAG Energy
Holdings Limited, which was delisted in July 2023.

Dr Liu obtained a master’s degree and a PhD from the faculty of
economics, University of Cambridge in 1988 and 1994 respectively.
He also holds a master of science degree in development studies
from the University of Bath, England, obtained in 1987, and a bachelor
of economics degree from Southwest University of Finance and
Economics, China (previously known as Sichuan Institute of Finance
and Economics, China) in 1983.
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Mr Sun Patrick

Aged 65, Mr Sun was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 18 February 2016. Mr Sun is currently
an independent non-executive director of Ferretti S.p.A. (stock code:
9638) and AustAsia Group Ltd. (stock code: 2425), both of which are
listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr Sun served as an independent non-
executive director of several listed companies in Hong Kong, including
China Railway Signal & Communication Corporation Limited (2015-
2018), Trinity Limited (2008-2020, delisted in 2022 and is in liquidation),
China NT Pharma Group Company Limited (2010-2019), and Sihuan
Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd. (2010-2023). He was also an
independent non-executive director and chairman of the audit and risk
management committee of CRRC Corporation Limited (2015-2021),
an independent non-executive director of China Railway Construction
Corporation Limited (2014-2021), both of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange and the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

Mr Sun was the senior country officer and head of investment
banking for Hong Kong at JP Morgan Chase, and group executive
director and head of investment banking for Greater China at Jardine
Fleming Holdings Limited. His past contributions to regulatory bodies
include serving as a member of the Takeovers & Mergers Panel
and the Takeovers Appeal Committee of the Securities and Futures
Commission, deputy convenor of the Listing Committee of the Stock
Exchange, and a council member of the Stock Exchange. He also
served as chairman of the Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies
from 2013 to 2015.

Mr Sun graduated from the Wharton School of the University of
Pennsylvania, the United States, with a bachelor of science degree in
economics in 1981. He also completed the Stanford Executive Program
at Stanford Business School, in the United States, in 2000. Mr Sun is
a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, in the
United Kingdom, and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.
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Mr Tsang Yok Sing Jasper

Aged 76, Mr Tsang was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 27 August 2019. Mr. Tsang is currently
an independent non-executive director of Beijing Tong Ren Tang
Chinese Medicine Company Limited (stock code: 3613). He was an
independent non-executive director of DTXS Silk Road Investment
Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 0620) from September 2020 to
August 2023. He also serves as an honorary professor at the Chinese
University of Hong Kong, convenor of the Hong Kong Vision Project (&
FESETE), vice chairman of the Hong Kong Policy Research Institute,
and an advisor of the Democratic Alliance for the Betterment and
Progress of Hong Kong.

Mr Tsang dedicates himself to education in Hong Kong. He obtained
a bachelor of arts degree and a certificate in education from the
University of Hong Kong in 1968 and 1981, respectively. He then
obtained a master’s degree in education from the University of Hong
Kong in 1988. He is currently a manager of Pui Kiu Primary School and
supervisor of Pui Kiu Middle School and Pui Kiu College.

From 1992 to 2003, Mr Tsang was the chairman of the Democratic
Alliance for the Betterment of Hong Kong (R F 328 82). From 1993
to 2013, he was a member of the National Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference. From 1996 to 2000,
he served as a member of the Standing Committee on Language
Education and Research. From 1996 to 2005, he was a member
of the Council of the Open University of Hong Kong (now renamed
Hong Kong Metropolitan University). From 1997 to 1998, he was a
member of the Provisional Legislative Council of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (“HKSAR”). From 1998 to 2016, he was a
member of the Legislative Council of the HKSAR. From 2002 to 2008,
he was a member of the Executive Council of the HKSAR. From 2008
to 2016, he was the president of the 4th and the 5th Legislative Council
of the HKSAR.

In addition, from 2001 to 2007, he was a non-executive director of the
Securities and Futures Commission. From 2002 to 2008, he was a
member of the Disaster Relief Fund Advisory Committee. From 2003
to 2008, he was a member of the Independent Commission Against
Corruption Complaints Committee. From 2005 to 2008, he was a
member of the Executive Committee of the Commission on Strategic
Development and a board member of the Airport Authority. From 2017
to 2019, he served as a member of the Task Force on Land Supply.
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Company Secretary
Mr Xie Mao (Company Secretary)

Aged 53, Mr Xie was appointed as Company Secretary of the Company
on 17 December 2020.

Mr Xie is a senior economist and holds a master of business
administration from Zhejiang University and served as a visiting fellow
at Stanford University. Mr Xie has been appointed as the secretary
to the Board since May 2016 and is an affiliated person of the Hong
Kong Chartered Governance Institute. Mr Xie has 30 years of work
experience in the petroleum and natural gas industry and has worked in
several oil and gas companies of PetroChina.

Chief Financial Officer
Mr Gao Xiangzhong

Aged 58, Mr Gao was appointed as the Chief Financial Officer of the
Company on 22 April 2022 and Executive Director of the Company on
8 July 2022. Mr Gao’s biography is set out on page 68.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company, any of its fellow
subsidiaries or its holding companies was a party and in which a
Director of the Company or any entity connected with a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the Year or at any time during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2023, none of the Directors and chief executive
of the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Commencement
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which (a) were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions which any such Director and chief executive of the
Company is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or which (b) were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered into the register maintained by the Company; or which (c)
were required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuer under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
its fellow subsidiaries and its holding companies a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors and chief executives of the
Company (including their spouses and children under 18 years
of age) to hold any interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its associated
corporations.

SHARE OPTIONS

During the Period, the Company does not have any outstanding share
options granted to the directors and employees of the Company.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2023, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained under Section 336 of the SFO, showed that the Company
has been notified of the following interests, being 5% or more of the
Company’s issued share capital. These interests are in addition to those
disclosed above in respect of the Directors and the chief executive of
the Company.

EFEIRRNIRG 2=

M2023F12 A31H « RIEFFHLEEIEFIE
33BIFMERARABFEZEEREELMAT
R ARREERMNTIEZERREEAAR
B BITIRAS %A E 2 S - 2B R A
EEXRARREEREETHRABMEE
AN W o

Number of shares Percentage
BRBEE of issued
Direct Indirect shares
interest interest  HEBTRH
E#EkR R ZBEA
PetroChina Hong Kong Ltd. FEREBERAF 4,708,302,133 (L) - 54.38%
(“PetroChina Hong Kong’)" ([RAEmEE] 4,708,302,133 (#F)
PetroChina Company Limited HEURBAA RS - 4,708,302,133 (L) 54.38%
(“PetroChina”)" BRAR 4,708,302,133(41)
(TR
Fairy King Investments Ltd.? Fairy King Investments Ltd.? 277,432,000 (L) - 3.20%
277,432,000 (1)
CNPC International Ltd. (“CNPCI")® CNPC International Ltd. - 277,432,000 (L) 3.20%
(TCNPCIJ)® 277,432,000 ()
China National Oil and Gas Exploration A HMA AR F - 277,432,000 (L) 3.20%
and Development Corporation GEYNG 277,432,000 (4)
(“CNODC")@ (fCcNoDC))@
China National Petroleum HERBAAREEDNR - 4,985,734,133 (L) 57.58%
Corporation (‘*CNPC”)® (TREAmEE]) 4,985,734,133(47)
Notes: Bt -
(1) PetroChina Hong Kong is wholly owned by PetroChina, which in turn is 1) FERAEEATPELGHZEESE  MPEA

owned as to 82.62% by CNPC. Accordingly, CNPC is deemed to have
interest in the 4,708,302,133 (L) shares held by PetroChina Hong Kong.

@) Based on the Disclosure of Interests Online (DION) System of the Stock
Exchange, Fairy King Investments Ltd. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
CNPCI, which in turn is wholly owned by CNODC, which is in turn owned as
to 100.00% by CNPC. Accordingly, CNPC is deemed to have interest in the
277,432,000 (L) shares held by Fairy King Investments Ltd.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company were not aware of any person (other
than a Director or chief executive of the Company) who had any interest
or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO.
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As at 31 December 2023, the Directors and the chief executive of the
Company were not aware of any person (other than a Director or chief
executive of the Company) who was, directly or indirectly, interested in
10% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any other
members of the Group, or any options in respect of such capital.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS, WARRANTS OR
SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company had no outstanding convertible securities, options,
warrants or other similar rights as at 31 December 2023 and there had
been no other exercise of convertible securities, options, warrants or
similar rights during the Year.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
of the Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules, which are
required to be disclosed in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, are as follows.

MASTER AGREEMENT FOR THE PROVISION OF PRODUCTS
AND SERVICES

On 11 September 2020, the Company has entered into a master
agreement for the provision of products and services (“Master
Agreement”) with the CNPC Group to (a) provide general products
to the Group by the CNPC Group; (b) provide general services to
the Group by the CNPC Group; (c) provide general products to the
CNPC Group by the Group; and (d) provide general services to the
CNPC Group by the Group. Master Agreement The Master Agreement
became effective since 1 January 2021 and expires on 31 December
2023. On 14 September 2023, the Company renewed a new Master
Agreement with an effective date since 1 January 2024 to 31 December
2026 (please refers to the announcement dated 14 September 2023
and the circular dated 13 October 2023 of the Company for disclosure
of details).
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During the period when Master Agreement is effective, the Company
and CNPC Group will provide each other with a variety of products
and services, including but not limited to oil and gas products,
general products and services, engineering and construction services,
production services, logistics support services, financial services,
property leasing services and commissioning and management
services (please refers to the announcement dated 11 September 2020
and circular dated 5 October 2020 for disclosure of details). As CNPC
Group is the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company, holding
approximately 57.58% of our issued share capital, CNPC Group is our
connected person under Rule 14A.07(1) of the Listing Rules.

The Master Agreement sets out in detail the specific pricing principles
for the provision of products and services under the Agreement. If for
any reason the specific pricing principles for an individual product or
service are no longer applicable, whether as a result of a change in
circumstances or otherwise, the relevant product or service will be
provided in accordance with the general pricing principles as defined in
the Master Agreement, including: (a) government pricing; or (b) where
there is no government pricing, then based on the relevant market
price; or (c) where neither (a) nor (b) applies, based on: (i) cost price (c)
if neither (a) nor (b) applies, on the basis of: (i) the cost price; or (i) the
agreed price.

The purpose of the aforesaid transactions is to provide strong and
favorable support to our business through the business strength and
scope of the CNPC Group and the continuing connected transactions.

The annual cap amounts for each of the items under the Master
Agreement and the actual amounts to be incurred for the year ending
31 December 2023 are set out in the following table:

Nature of transactions

REME

(i) Provision of products by the CNPC Group to the Group
FHSERASERHE®D

(i) Provision of services by the CNPC Group to the Group
R B R AR BRERS

(i) Provision of products by the Group to the CNPC Group
REB AP hEERHEER

(iv) Provision of services by the Group to the CNPC Group
N5 & [m) 0 5 B AR AR 7S

EXHEAESA  BMEPASHEEKER
RESEERMRE  2FEETRNHBRE
M —RESBMRS - TREERRSE - £
ER® - MR ERE - BBRYE - wEM
ERBANREZAEERERE ARSI 20
720209 A 11 H A A& F2020F10 A5
FBEHPFIEZENRND) - BRFEAGBREE
RN B REERRE - HEHME57.58%
B ZEITIRA - BIE EMAAE14A.07(1)
& FEAHEERRMOBEEAL -

TR ARSI T R 9 % TR U an M AR A
WEAEEERE - WRANVEMREA - (@5
EmIBRBNEEEERITHER @ E®
EARREZE(CEREMERRA - ARIEEH
EPEEN—REERIEHRMBBEERIR
% B ()BUFEE (o)W EBRNE
& - AREBBAEMISER - 3(c) iR (a)3k(b)
WAEA - BRI - ()AE - (i) = E
1% o

R SHENRBBTE O HEENER
BENMBE - ULFENEBRI S AEFIH
EBIRERXAANST -

FHaET SHEMNFELFReBLEEHZ
2023F 12 AG1HIEFEERELE 2B RET
i% :

Amount
incurred for Annual cap
2023 for 2023
20234 20234
EECEE FE LR
119,317 141,641
3,281 16,466
5,320 10,296
4,552 19,763
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The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been reviewed
by Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company. The
Independent Non-executive Directors confirmed that the aforesaid
continuing connected transactions were entered into (a) in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group; (b) on normal commercial
terms or better; and (c) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

In accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board
engaged the independent auditor of the Company to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The independent auditor of the Company has issued its
letter containing its following findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group on pages
160 to 164 of the Annual Report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules.

Nothing has come to the independent auditor’s attention that the
disclosed continuing connected transactions:

()  have not received the approval of the Company’s Board of
Directors;

(i) are not in accordance with the pricing policies of the Company
if the transactions involve provision of goods or services by the
Group;

(i) have not been entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing the transactions; and

(iv) have exceeded the cap disclosed in previous announcement
dated 11 September 2020 and circular dated 5 October 2020
with respect to the aggregated amount of each transaction
involved.

The Company has confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in respect of the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

For related party transactions disclosed in Note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements which constituted connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules, the
Company has complied with all the relevant requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed
during the year ended 31 December 2023.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of the Group’s purchases and revenue from sales
of goods or rendering of services attributable to major suppliers and
customers are as follows:

Percentage of purchases attributable to the Group’s 81%
largest supplier

Percentage of purchases attributable to the Group’s 85%
five largest suppliers

Percentage of revenue from sales of goods or 6%
rendering of services attributable to the Group’s
largest customer

Percentage of revenue from sales of goods or 8%

rendering of services attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers

PetroChina, a listed subsidiary of CNPC, is the Group’s largest supplier
and customer.

Save for the above, none of the Directors, their associates or any
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the close directors owns
more than 5% of the number of issued shares of the Company) has an
interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to RMB1,491,323.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any tax relief available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.
If the Shareholders are unsure about the taxation implications of
purchasing, holdings, disposing of, dealing in, or the exercise of any
rights (including entitlements to any relief of taxation) in relation to, the
Shares, they are advised to consult an expert.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors and the employees of the Company
are reviewed and recommended by the Remuneration Committee to
the Board, having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the knowledge of
the Directors, it is confirmed that there is sufficient public float of more
than 25% of the Company’s issued shares during the Year.

COMPETING BUSINESS

Save as disclosed below, as at 25 March 2024, none of the Directors
and their respective associates had any interest in a business which
competes or may compete with the businesses of the Group (as would
be required to be disclosed under Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules if each
of them were a controlling shareholder).

Name of Director

EEns

Name of company

DR EH BEME

Nature of interest
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Nature of competing

business

BEREBNE

Fu Bin 153 PetroChina Natural Gas Executive Director Marketing of natural gas
Marketing Company HITES RARTIHHEE
FEABRRAREED AT
Qian Zhijia $#2)8%K PetroChina Natural Gas President Marketing of natural gas
Marketing Company FEHGES RINRT 576 B
HEABRAREED A A
Gao Xiangzhong & A & PetroChina Natural Gas Chief Accountant Marketing of natural gas
Marketing Company BELTAD RARTIGHE

PEAEARREHED N F]

As the Board is independent of the boards of the above entities, the
Company has therefore been capable of carrying on its businesses
independently of, and at arm’s length from, the above businesses.
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EVENTS AFTER THE DATE OF THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION

There is no significant event affecting the Company after the date of the
statement of financial position.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the Year have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers, who will retire and being eligible offer
themselves for reappointment. A resolution for the reappointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company is to be proposed
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

In 2021, there had been a change of the Company’s auditor from
KPMG to PricewaterhouseCoopers.

On behalf of the Board

Qian Zhijia
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 25 March 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Kunlun Energy Company Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Kunlun Energy Company
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are
set out on pages 90 to 200, comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2023;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flow for the year then ended;
and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising
material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to “Recoverability of the carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment relating to the liquefied natural gas (“LNG”) processing plants”.

BMEEFERIOERET FEEFEN R RAR ([LNG) IIHREEYE - BFE R ERREEAEN ] KL -

Key Audit Matter

BRETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMANESTNAEEBRREETSE

Recoverability of the carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment relating to the liquefied natural
gas (“LNG”) processing plants

R RAR (TLNG) T KB - BERKZENER
EEERN AT E R

Refer to Note 40(l)(ii), Note 4 and Note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements, as at 31 December
2023, the net book value of Group’s property, plant and
equipment relating to the Group’s LNG processing plants
amounted to RMB6,799 million, which was stated net of
accumulated impairment of RMB4,313 million.

B2 BB HmERMITE40() (i) © M EE4 R FIEET15 120234
12A31H * EXBELNGINITEHAEEYIE « BE REEHR
HHFERARKES79BET © RiREARKE4,3136 8
I o

Uncertainty in future LNG prices, future production costs,
changes in operating conditions and the economic outlook
gave rise to possible indicators that the carrying amount
of the property, plant and equipment relating to the LNG
processing plants as at 31 December 2023 might be
impaired.

ARRINGERR AR EERANTHEE M - K2R
RIS AL IR 2023412 A31 B EALNG I TR Y
¥ BEEREBOREEBEREFLERETR

In addressing this matter, we performed the following
procedures, among others:

EREZEEE  BHARTTUATER - HhEHE:

° Obtained an understanding of the management’s
internal control and assessment process of
impairment of property, plant and equipment relating
to the LNG processing plants and assessed the
inherent risk of material misstatement by considering
the degree of estimation uncertainty and level of other
inherent risk factors such as complexity, subjectivity,
changes and susceptibility to management bias and
fraud;

e MEBMTEEREHINGIIME@EME BWELRKBE
BRI S ARRE B BRI S KR RAR - WiRBEE
it I MR 2 I B At [E] 5 [ B (R 3= ) 7K 2E 40
R T8 S#ENHEEERRSEENH
R AHE T EAEEERAE AR

o Evaluated the outcome of prior year impairment
assessment of property, plant and equipment
relating to the LNG processing plants to assess the
effectiveness of management’s estimation process;

e WEL—FEHINGINIMEEME  BWELRKBE
BENRNER  UATEBEEERABENER
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Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to “Recoverability of the carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment relating to the liquefied natural gas (“LNG”) processing plants”. (Continued)

HIIEETT BRI NRREAFERENERIERAR (LNG]) I TRAEREYE - BE RREHFREEEN A BKIE -

(#8)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

HREFEEE

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the carrying amount of LNG processing plants exceeds the
higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.
The Group’s determination of the recoverable amounts
involved key estimates and assumptions, including:

BB ER THZLNG I TR R E (B AR A H A T ERRE
EXNTNEEFERABEMETRSENCREER - ESEE
FE R B ES M BhEt RRER - BAE

- Future LNG prices;
- RIELNGEH

- Future production costs; and

- RIEERA + J

- Discount rates.
- R o

Because of the significance of the carrying amount of the
property, plant and equipment relating to the Group’s LNG
processing plants as at 31 December 2023, together with
the significant estimates and judgements by management
in the use of key estimates and assumptions in determining
recoverable amounts of the property, plant and equipment
relating to the LNG processing plants, we have placed our
audit emphasis on this matter.

MY EXBEEINGIITHMEEYE - BB M&RENR2023
F12ABMNRESBEXN - BEEETRETELNGII IR
HEAWE - BFE N RETRE SRR R SRR
ERTEARMME G - Bt - RMEETHERET
THEHE-
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Evaluated and tested the key controls relating to
the determination of recoverable amounts of the
property, plant and equipment relating to the LNG
processing plants;
SEEIWRH T EEELNGIN TREEY % - KE &
R HEY RIS & FEAR R B B SR I  ;

Assessed the appropriateness of the method
used to determine recoverable amounts, including
methodology adopted in the discounted cash
flow projections, tested mathematical accuracy of
the projections, and the completeness, accuracy,
and relevance of the underlying data used in the
projections;

FHEEE R RB S BB EANEE S - BRI
BHReREVATERABNTE - AR THEHRFE
BVERENE - A NTERIPTAER RN B -
145 N ARREME

Compared estimates of future LNG prices adopted
by the Group against a range of published LNG
prices forecasts;

B EEBEHARRRINGER G EH-RIEED
NEILNGE R TERETTEE

Compared future production costs against historical
costs or relevant budgets of the Group or relevant
external data;
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Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to “Recoverability of the carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment relating to the liquefied natural gas (“LNG”) processing plants”. (Continued)
BOERTHHANBARETZTERENERCRAR ((LNG) INTHAEEME « BEMRENREEBERN T EKME -
(%)

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

HREFESEE ERNEFNNEERRETSE

° Used internal professionals with specialised skill
and knowledge to assist in the evaluation of the
appropriateness of discount rates adopted by the
management; and

e FMAABEEXERNMABOHABEEXA LB E
EEERANTRENEE S &

o Assessed the disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of the recoverability of the
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
relating to the LNG processing plants in the context
of the applicable financial reporting framework under
HKFRSs.

e REFEUBHREENTHERVBEREER ¥
iR E M BHREARBELNGIN TRABEYE - BE KX
A% g B B TED & R A AT U [T 1A VR HH RO 4R -

Based on the above, we found the key estimates and
assumptions and input data adopted by management in
determining the recoverable amounts were supported by
the evidence we obtained.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats

or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Hon Chong Heng.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 March 2024
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gUA CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mormlnE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F 12 A31 BHILFE

2023 2022
20235

20224
RMB’million RMB’million
AREEERT AREABETL

Revenue N 5 177,354 171,944
Other gains, net Hiblizs o 558 6 903 62
Interest income FEMA 7 870 859
Purchases, services and others R R R E A (151,091) (146,077)
Employee compensation costs EEMEMA 8 (5,970) (5,749)
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation TE  BRENEN (4,992) (4,887)
Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment  #1% « M= MR ER(EEE 15 (368) (500)
Other selling, general and administrative expenses ~ EASHE « —fREFIEHEE H (3,656) (3,770)
Taxes other than income taxes BRETSBASN 2 BETE (542) (583)
Interest expenses FEZH 9 (960) (899)
Share of profits less losses of: eGSR FREE -
- Associates =N 16 466 525
— Joint ventures —-REDE 17 579 467
Profit before income tax expense BRETEHE B ANEF 10 12,593 11,392
Income tax expense FiSHER 12 (3,338) (3,189)
Profit for the year FREF 9,255 8,203
Other comprehensive income: Hp 2wk -
Iltem that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: TAIEFHEEERCER ¢
— Fair value gain/ (loss) on financial assets at fair — A EFAE M2 ERE
value through other comprehensive income ZEMEEZATE
(non-recycling), net of tax Wi/ (B8) (TrEs
Ba) - MERBIIAR 33 (238)
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to HigrEHHEEBR AR -
profit or loss:
— Exchange differences on translation — B RERBRE CENEE -
of financial statements, net of nil tax, of: ?D%Tfﬁlﬁ{é -
— Subsidiaries —HBA (32 50
- Associates —BE D T 16 5 8
— Joint ventures —-REE 17 23 119
Other comprehensive gain/ (loss) for the year ~ FREM2EIE ~(BE) 29 61)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEKFLE 9,284 8,142
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GO2HRER

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31 BILFE

2023 2022
2023 20224F
Note  RMB’million  RMB’million
izt AR¥EBRT AREBBEERL
Profit for the year attributable to FEIEERRET
— Shareholders of the Company — A RBERE 5,682 5,228
— Non-controlling interests — JEIEH R 3,573 2975
9,255 8,203
Total comprehensive income for the year EEFANRERERERE
attributable to
— Shareholders of the Company —ARNARE 5,675 5,200
- Non-controlling interests — JEIE IR o 3,609 2,942
9,284 8,142
Basic and diluted earnings per share for profit RAFIRREIE G 2 FRER
attributable to shareholders of the Company FEERF(ARE D)
(RMB cent) 13 65.62 60.38

The notes on pages 99 to 200 form part of these financial statements.  £599F 200 & KW sE i A AN B 78 3R = 2 — 2B
Details of dividends payable to shareholders of the Company 4 o 4 Py FI| B A& A &) j% 51 K9 B8 B SE 5 &

attributable to the profit for the year are set out in Note 14. AHIEE14 -
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As at 31 December 2023
R2023F 12 A31H

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ina IR E

2023 2022
2023 20224F
RMB’million  RMB'’million
AREEERT AREABETL
Assets BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ER S ] 15 68,032 69,534
Investments in associates REE QR ZIRE 16 7,980 7,909
Investments in joint ventures REBLEZRE 17 6,109 6,056
Intangible assets B AE 19 1,755 1,849
Financial assets at fair value through other BATEFAEEZERZ S
comprehensive income BMEE 20 360 319
Other non-current assets HitEmeEE 21 1,031 771
Deferred tax assets EREFIBEE 30 1,054 1,115
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 86,321 87553
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 22 1,155 1,081
Accounts receivable JE U BR 3R 23 1,977 2887
Prepayments and other current assets BRFREMREEE 24 8,478 7,890
Time deposits with maturities over three months FERBB=EA 2 TBPFR 25 18,235 19,439
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEEE 25 27,353 20,042
57,198 51,339
Total assets mEE 143,519 138,892
Equity Ex
Capital and reserves attributable to AT RRIEME R AR
shareholders of the Company
Share capital B 26 71 71
Retained earnings g eyl 27 31,427 28,095
Other reserves Hif#E 27 31,951 31,742
63,449 59,908
Non-controlling interests FEHR MRS 22,334 20,794
Total equity iR 85,783 80,702
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
SlIFIARNE

As at 31 December 2023
R2023F 12 A31H

|||I-.ﬁ

2023 2022
2023 20225
Note  RMB’million RMB’million
izt AR¥EBRT AREBBEERL
Liabilities af
Current liabilities RBAs
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities FERBRR R ERTBE 28 27,800 27,720
Income tax payable FER SR 30 589 623
Other taxes payable HAbFEHIIE 516 546
Short-term borrowings RHEE 29 5,464 5,287
Lease liabilities HEAE 214 208
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, LN
Non-current liabilities *RBEE
Long-term borrowings RHEE 29 19,027 19,794
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBRE 30 1,870 1,858
Lease liabilities HEaRE 497 562
Other liabilities HuaE 1,759 1,592
23,153 23,806
Total liabilities Bmag 57,736 58,190
Total equity and liabilities EEkEEHEE 143,519 138,892
Net current assets REEEFHE 22,615 16,955
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBEE 108,936 104,508

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25
March 2024.

Qian Zhijia
#AR
Executive Director

HITEF

The notes on pages 99 to 200 form part of these financial statements.

20243 A25 AEE 2 dh W IRMETE -

Gao Xiangzhong
IRk
Executive Director

HITEE

F99ZE 2008 MM FHER ABI ST K 2 — 25
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CONSULIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
nolEmEEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F 12 A31 BHILFE

Attributable to sha olders of the Company

Non-
Share Retained t controlling
capital eamnings reserves Sub-total interests  Total equity
e BRE] Hfie Pt RS f
Note RMB'million RMB'milion ~ RMB'milion ~ RMB'milion  RMB'million
Mt AR¥BEL AREEER ARMEEL ARBBRER ARKEEL AR%EER
Balances at 1 January 2022 20221 A1B &% I 25,236 30,968 56,275 19,586 75,861
Changes in equity for 2022: N2FEHET .
Profit for the year EREN - 5,208 - 5,208 2,975 8,203
Other comprehensive income E2EYE - - (28) (28) (33) (61)
Total comprehensive income FRE2ENEEE - 5,208 (28) 5,200 2,042 8,142
ortheyear
Transfer between reserves RERes - (570) 570 - - -
Final dividend for 2021 1 RIS 14 - (1,799) - (1,799) - (1,799)
Acquisttion from non-controling [BE 32 ﬁ”ﬁ( B - - 2 2 (17) (13)
interests
Dividend to non-controling interests B FEEHIIEER 2K 8 - - - - (1633) (1633)
Capital contributions from non- GRS T E - - - - 3 35
controlling interests
Disposal of subsidiaries RENBAF - - - - (119) (119
Others Eft - - 230 230 - 230
- 2369 802 157 (1739 (330
Balances at 31 December 2022 2020512831 B &k 71 28,095 31,742 59,908 20,794 80,702
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

ine

ESEEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HZE2023F 12 31 HILFE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

NRRRIEL
Non-
Share Retained Other controlling
capital earnings reserves Sub-total interests  Total equity
e BHEA Bt Nt FEHMER EnaH
Note  RMB’million RMB'million RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million ~ RMB’million
it ARMBEn ARMEEBR ARYEEn ARMEER ARMEER ARMEER
Balances at 1 January 2023 20231 A1RER n 28,095 31,742 59,908 20,794 80,702
Changes in equity for 2023; N2BFEHET .
Profit for the year FRRTH| - 5,682 - 5,682 3,573 9,255
Other comprehensive income Eth2EYE - - 1) 1) 36 29
Total comprehensive ERrElHER - 5,682 U} 5,675 3,609 9,284
O O e O
Transfer between reserves EElE - (152) 152 = - -
Final dividend for 2022 000 KBRS 14 - (2,198) - (2,198) - (2,198)
Acquisition from non-controling BEZE kT ﬁuﬁl% - - - - (100) (100)
interests
Dividend to non-controling interests B EEHIEER 28 - - - - (2,548) (2,548)
Capital contributions from non- B TR - - - - 645 645
controlling interests
Disposal of subsidiaries RENEBAT - - - - (66) (66)
Others it - - 64 64 - 64
- (2,350) 216 (2,134) (2,069) (4,203)
Balances at 31 December 2023  R2023E12A31 A 71 31,427 31,951 63,449 22,334 85,783
Qian Zhijia Gao Xiangzhong
Fi M= GRS
Executive Director Executive Director
HITEE HITEE
The notes on pages 99 to 200 form part of these financial statements. F00FE 2008 KM ET N ANBI &R 7 — 245 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F 12 A31 BHILFE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

2023 2022
20235 20224

RMB’million  RMB’million
AR%BER ARBAER

Cash flows from operating activities

REEBHEZHERE

Profit for the year F A F) 9,255 8,203
Adjustments for: A
Income tax expense S E R 3,338 3,189
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation E - BRENEH 4,992 4,887
Share of profits less losses of associates FEIGRE N Rl a AR E 1R (466) (525)
Share of profits less losses of joint ventures EiEELERMBERE (579) (467)
Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment  #1% « BiE MR ERIEEE 368 500
Net gains on disposal of property, plant and HEME  BERSEL (12) (14)
equipment Wz F 58
Net gains on disposal of subsidiaries HEHRB AR W= FE (65) (64)
Net exchange losses iE B EF R 140 589
Interest income | BUA (870) (859)
Interest expenses FEZH 960 899
Changes in working capital: LEEEE
Inventories FE (77) (39)
Accounts receivable FEUER K 913 (159)
Prepayments and other current assets TBRRA R E B & = (885) 409
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities RN R ETAE 732 1,055
Other taxes payable HAth T HIE (30) 273
Cash generated from operations REELE RS 17,714 17,881
Income tax paid ERFER (3,306) (3,011)
Net cash generated from operating activities ~ REXBEL ZHEFH 14,408 14,870
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

|||I-.ﬁ

SlHEREXR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31 BILFE

2023 2022
20235 20224

Note RMB’million RMB’million
izt AR¥EBRT AREBBEERL

Cash flows from investing activities

REEBHEZHERE

Dividends received from associates
Dividends received from joint ventures
Acquisition of subsidiaries
Acquisition of associates
Capital contributions to associates
Capital contributions to joint ventures
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries, net
of cash and cash equivalents disposed of
Proceeds from disposal of associates
Proceeds from disposal of joint ventures
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Decrease in amounts due from an intermediate
holding company
Capital expenditure
Interest received
Loans to an associate
Loans repaid by a joint venture
Decrease/(Increase) of time deposits with maturities
over three months

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Capital contributions from non-controlling interests

Dividends paid to shareholders of the Company

Dividends paid to non-controlling interest of
subsidiaries

Increase in borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Interest paid

Capital element of lease paid

Interest element of lease paid

Acquisition from non-controlling interests

BRI Z RS
Eéﬁm%%WZ%E
KB D
W%W%Q
AEERRIEE
AEELEIA
HERB QR ZFAEH0R

ML ERE LR EEERE
HEBEREZ SR
HERBLRZAEFE
HEYE « BE RREPAEHEA

FEU o PR 2 R SRR

BARRX

21 S

—fRIlE R A ERERK

—fABLXEREN

W%HtL 18Rz E 8RR
WD/ ()

REXBMAZREFR

MEEBRECAERE

RIS E

ENARABRRBRE

BB A RIFEESE
R

fEE R AN

BEEE

ERHME

ENEERT B

ENHEM B AR

() FEPE I M A i A

406 443
511 313
5) (314)

- (67)
(66) (470)

= (7)

89 4,138

- 54

_ 6

822 1,427
268 204
(5,179) (5,719)
889 784

= )

- 200
1,204 (19,439)
(1,061) (18,452)
645 35
(2,198) (1,799)
(2,257) (1,905)
6,156 8,438
(6,870) (8,382)
(935) (894)
(448) (361)
(32) (35)
(100) (17)

S
Eb FH

BERARAR —F=




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
miﬁ qumlgﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F 12 A31 BHILFE

2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’million  RMB'’million
AREEERT AREBERL
Net cash used in financing activities METBFRAZRETE (6,039) (4,920)
Increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRBEEEERZ 7,308 (8,502)
cash equivalents #i,/ 08D)

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January ME1BZE ¢ RESLESEER 20,042 28,494
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes Exgu o8 3 50
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R12A3IERERESLEEER 25 27,353 20,042

Qian Zhijia Gao Xiangzhong

F=p=Ed SER
Executive Director Executive Director
HITESE HITEE

The notes on pages 99 to 200 form part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o Bl 155 SR 2= Bl 5

GENERAL INFORMATION

Kunlun Energy Company Limited (the “Company”) is incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability and
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. Its ultimate holding company is China National Petroleum
Corporation (“CNPC”) which is a company established in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). 4,708,302,133 shares
of the Company is held by PetroChina Hong Kong Limited
(“PetroChina HK”), which is a company incorporated in Hong
Kong and is in turn wholly-owned by PetroChina Company
Limited (“PetroChina”), a subsidiary of CNPC, and its shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. As at 31
December 2023, PetroChina indirectly owned 54.38% (2022:
54.38%) equity interest in the Company.

The addresses of the Company’s principal office and registered
office are 39/F, 118 Connaught Road West, Hong Kong and
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street Hamilton, HM11, Bermuda,
respectively.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures are the sales of natural gas, sales of liquefied petroleum
gas (“LPG”) and liquefied natural gas (“LNG”) processing and
terminal business in the PRC, and the exploration and production
of crude oil and natural gas in the Republic of Kazakhstan
(“Kazakhstan”), the Sultanate of Oman (“Oman”) and the Kingdom
of Thailand (“Thailand”).

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F 12 A31 BILFE

—REM

EmeERBRAR([ARA])RERE
At AEREERAT - MERS
EBEBBAERZARAT LT « AR
AN SRR AR ARG RAARSE
EERAR([FEAHRER]) - —FHR
REAREME([FB]) KL ZRT °
KA 74,708,302,133M M%7 B A |
EBEBRAB([FARMEE]  A—H
REBEMKIZZ AR - ERFPEAH
SEWBRAFRBEAHRXARKND
BRAR([HEAM]  EROHDRES
BMEXSHARRAR LM 2EHAE)F
A R2023F12A31H » FEIAMEM
BE¥EA NN R 2 54.38% A% #E (20224
54.38%) °

RRARIZEERERLRIMPEER
it S R AEETHBE118553918
M Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
Hamilton, HM11, Bermuda °

RRAFIRIREERRDA « KRB ZEE
MEBAR  BEARREERREZTE
EBRNTBEEERARBEE - AL
AmR ([LPG]) SHE R FRIERAR
(TLNG]) hn T ERER T A RN ET
HrB B ([reig e A8 1) - P 2 &4
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ERm R RAR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

im ORI TS R ZRBIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F 12 A31 BILFE

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(@)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which is a collective term
including all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (‘HKASs”) and Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong, and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are
disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group, none of these
have had a material effect on how the Group’s results and
financial position for the current or prior periods have been
prepared or presented. The Group has not applied any new
standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2023 comprise the Group and the Group’s
interest in associates and joint ventures.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a historical cost basis except for financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income which are
stated at their fair value as explained in the accounting
policies set out in Note 40(g).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in Note 4.

Changes in accounting policies

Amended standards adopted by the Group

The following amended standards became applicable for
the current reporting period:

HKFRS 17: Insurance Contracts

° Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2: Disclosure of Accounting Policies

° Amendments to HKSA 8: Definition of Accounting
Estimates

° Amendments to HKAS 12: International Tax Reform —

Pillar Two Model Rules

° Amendments to HKAS 12: Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

im ORI TS R ZRBIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F 12 A31 BILFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

im ORI TS R ZRBIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F 12 A31 BHILFE

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

The amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes require the
recognition of deferred tax assets (to the extent that it is
probable that they can be utilised) and deferred tax liabilities
at the beginning of the earliest comparative period for all
deductible and taxable temporary differences associated
with right-of-use assets and lease liabilities. The Group
therefore changed its accounting policies as a result of
adopting this amendment to HKAS 12. The Group elected
to adopt the new rules retrospectively but recognised the
cumulative effect of initially applying the new standard on 1
January 2022. There was no impact on retained earnings
on 1 January 2022.

The impact of applying these amendments on the
consolidation financial report is summarised as follows:

Deferred tax assets FEIERIEE
Deferred tax liabilities BERIRAE

2

BB (17

()

S BEREE ()

(BB ERIE125RETERIE)
RIERTIRE - BRI AREE
MBEE B EHE @A R T E A
HOBRFEZ2  HYEAERENL
BHERERERELEFREHE
E (TER] g2 m] DA R A M9 &8 [ ) A1
BEEMGHAE Bt - A&H
AN (BB ST ERIFE125)
FIERTMERESHBUR - &%
EEZEBPRAIEE - WHER
E2022%1 A1 B E X ERZER
KRB E o ZZERI¥2022F1 A
1ANBHEREESE -

B L ERMERT SRS &R
BMENZEWT

1 January 31 December
2022 2022

20224 20224
1H1H 12H318
RMB’million RMB’million
AREBET AREBET
150 162

(150) (162)

Other than the above impact, none of these developments
have had a material effect on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements which have been prepared or
presented in this consolidated financial report.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F 12 A31 BILFE

|||I-.ﬁ

HEAREEREMIAR
FE

HEMEER

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 3
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

3.1 Financial risk factors

Exposure to foreign exchange rate risk, credit risk, liquidity
risk and interest rate risk arises in the normal course of the
Group’s business. The Group’s exposure to these risks
and the financial risk management policies and practices
used by the Group to manage these risks in continuing
operations are described below.

Risk management is carried out by the management of the
Group under policies approved by the Board of Directors.
The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner. There has been no change to
the Group’s exposure to the risks mentioned above or the
manner in which it manages and measures the risks.

(@) Foreign exchange rate risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange rate risk
primarily through sales and purchases which give
rise to receivables, payables and cash balances that
are denominated in foreign currencies, i.e. currencies
other than the functional currencies of the operations
to which the transactions relate. The currency giving
rise to this risk is primarily United States dollar (“US
dollar”).

The following table details the Group’s exposure at
the end of the reporting period to foreign exchange
rate risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate. For
presentation purposes, the amounts of the exposure
are shown in RMB, translated using the spot rate
at the year end date. Differences resulting from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’s presentation currency are
excluded.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
in e Rl F5 ¥R =0 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F 12 A31 BHILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 3 HiEMTERSEMIARD
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) FEE(48)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BEriSREBsE & (48)
(@) Foreign exchange rate risk (Continued) (@ SMNERE (&)

Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in RMB)
EEER
(AARHFITR)
2023 2022

2023 20224
US dollar HK$ US dollar HK$
EYH BT T BT
RMB’million RMB’million BMB’million RMB’million
AREBETR AREBETR AREBET AEEBET

Accounts recelvableand  EWERR R E M REEE

other current assets 19 24 3 11
Cash and cash equivalents & L& ZERE 76 34 134 34
Time deposits with maturities Z|¥iB#B={EA 2

over three months THER 1,417 = 350 -
Accounts payable and ERRRETEE

accrued liabilties (162) 1) @7) 64)
Borrowings £ (7,074) - (6,951) -

Gross exposure arising ERREERBREESEYL
from recognised assets BRER

and liabilities (5,724) 37 6,511) (19)
The following table indicates the instantaneous TR RSB R RS E
change in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained ENEESED N = oA
earnings) that would arise if foreign exchange rates HHREHE - NEEHRK
to which the Group has significant exposure at the Biigm M (RETF & H) & Bl
end of the reporting period had changed at that date, W& &) (R T A H MR ke
assuming all other risk variables remained constant. BEHERTE) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
in e Rl 5 ¥R = bl 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31 BILFE

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 3 HiREMREERESHMIARD

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 45 (48)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) B 75 LB ) 3% (48)
(@) Foreign exchange rate risk (Continued) (@ SMNERR (&)
2023 2022
2023 20206
(Decrease)/ (Decrease)/
Increase/ increase in Increase/ increase in
(decrease) profit for the (decrease) profit for the
in foreign year and in foreign year and
exchange retained exchange retained
rates CEIG ] rates eamnings
ERERR E35) mT‘J
ExtH/ REEA :
(M) (H) /80 )
RMB’million RMB'million
AREEETR AREREL
US dollar 7 5% (286) 5% (306)
(5%) 286 (5%) 326
HK$ BT 5% 2 5% (1)
(5%) @ (5%) 1
(b) Credit risk b) EERE
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will sERRIEXSHFREE
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a THA ?ﬁfﬁﬁﬁ&rﬁ(KEI
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk **ﬁﬁﬁﬁ»g%Zﬂ o K&
arises primarily from accounts receivable. Bz zERBRETERENE
UEBRFR ©
As a majority of the Group’s cash at bank and time REEBKREHDRITRS LE
deposits were placed with major state-owned banks BT SR IE HUA R B R b B9 3=
in Mainland China, major banks in Hong Kong, EHART  EBANETER
and financial institutions within the CNPC Group, TP HEEARNNS B
management believes that the credit risk is low. B BEERAEERRKR
1K °
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F 12 A31 BILFE

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to
the economic environment in which the customer
operates. Depending on market conditions, debtors
with balances that are past due over a certain period
would be requested to settle all outstanding balances
before any further credit is granted. Normally, the
Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for accounts
receivable at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which
is calculated using a provision matrix. As the Group’s
historical credit loss experience indicates significantly
different loss patterns for different customer segments,
the loss allowance based on past due status is
distinguished between the Group’s different customer
bases and the customer bases are separated into the
related parties and third parties. The management
considered that the credit risk associated with
accounts receivable from related parties is low, taking
into account the financial position, past experience
and other factors of the related parties. The expected
credit loss rate for accounts receivable from related
parties is immaterial under lifetime ECLs method.
Thus, no loss allowance for accounts receivable from
related parties was recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

The following table provides information about
the Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for
accounts receivable from third parties:

im ORI TS R ZRBIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31 BILFE

BEEBEEREMTALD
e (58)

Bt 35 B R 2= (48)
(o) {EERE ()
TRIEGERARERE=

TR AR 2 E B R R
LIEREEERZER

2023
2023F

Gross Provision on
carrying Individual Loss
amount basis ECL rates ECLs allowance

&ERIEE AHEE A
EHAE EERG EE® EEER BERE
RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million  RMB’million
ARBEER ARKEER % ARWEEBRT ARWEER
Within 1 year —ER 1,217 1) 4.36% (53) (54)
Between 110 2 years —EMER 373 - 22.79% (85) (85)
Between 2 to 3 years WE=FER 202 - 30.20% (61) (61)
Between 310 4 years “ENER 49 (1) 66.67% (32) (33)
Between 4 10 5 years MERFR 82 (20) 100% (62) 82)
Over 5 years AENE 372 (197) 100% (175) (372
2,295 (219) (468) (687)
2022
20224

Gross  Provision on
carrying Indlividual Loss
amount basis EOREIES ECLs allowance

&IERIER HHEE a8

REAE HRRE BEX EEER EERE
RMB'million ~ RMB’million RMB'milion ~ RMB’million
AEBEEL AR¥EERL % ARERET AREEER
Within 1 year —ER 1,635 2) 4.04% 62) (64)
Between 110 2 years —EWER 298 () 19.53% (58) (59)
Between 2 to 3 years WE=FR 437 @ 42.99% (187) (189)
Between 310 4 years =“ENER 97 (18) 04.56% (51) (69)
Between 4 to 5 years MERER 76 (10) 100.00% (66) (76)
Over 5 years AENE 330 (184) 100.00% (146) (330)
2,773 (217) (570) (787)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F 12 A31 BHILFE

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 3
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

ECL rates are based on actual loss experience over
the past five years. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during
the period over which the historic data has been
collected, current conditions and the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of the
receivables.

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of
accounts receivable during the year is as follows:

BEEBREEREMTALD
1 (58)
3.1

B 5 LB B 2= (48)
b) EERER (&)

ﬁ%%%%ﬁﬁ%#Liﬂ
FrERBERERTHE - &
%%TEFTE@WW%%
B2 AR~ B B AR L
BFTR R AR IEE
B2 BRR=E 2]
ZEBRETHE -

FEM R 2 B R B AR o
NZEEZT -

2023 2022
20234 20224

RMB’million RMB’million
ARBBER AREBET

Balance at 1 January M A1B &% 787 723
Amounts written off 38 2 FIR (180) (41)
Impairment losses recognised, net R 2 REEE @ F58 80 105
Balance at 31 December W12 A31 B &k 687 787
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Other receivables

A summary of the assumptions underpinning the
Group’s expected credit loss model for other

receivables is as follows:

Category
ERa]|

Performing (“Stage 1)

IE% (FEE))

Underperforming
(“Stage 27)

BAE (P& E2))

Non-performing
(“Stage 3”)

TR ([FEER3])

Group definition of category

AEBEHEZHINES

Customers have a low risk of
default and a strong capacity
to meet contractual cash
flows

BEFEAREBREBEITEHIR
ERENENER

Receivables for which there is
a significant increase in credit
risk; as significant increase
in credit risk is presumed
if interest and/or principal
repayments are 30 days past
due

JENRIANEE R IR AL
RS R HAEER
BEAZOKX - ARRIEERER
FREIR N

Interest and/or principal
repayments are 90 days
past due

B,/ RS EFBEO0K

im ORI TS R ZRBIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31 BILFE

BERE
= (&)

B IS E Bk E £ (48)
) EERRE)
R B

EREmMIARD

ARER B H YRR TR RS
BB RS r AR Rt
L

Basis for recognition of expected
credit loss provision

RAFPEEBHRRENER

12 months expected losses. Where the
expected lifetime of an asset is less
than 12 months, expected losses are
measured at its expected lifetime (“12
months ECL method”)

128 ATEERETE - MEENTRRFESR
D12ME A - FEEEEERNBEER
BT 2 (2@ AT EBE])

Lifetime expected losses

TFREHEREE

Lifetime expected losses

TFEHIERE1R

EmERARAE —2=
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F 12 A31 BILFE

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)
Other receivables (Continued)

Other receivables have been assessed for impairment
on a collective basis based on different credit risk
characteristics. Other receivables are categorised as
follows for assessment purpose:

Group 1 Specific provision

Group 2 Other receivables due from related
parties

Group 3 Other receivables due from other

parties

The Group has assessed that there is no significant
increase of credit risk for other receivables since
initial recognition. Thus, the Group used the 12
months expected losses and specific provision to
assess credit loss of other receivables. The Group
has assessed that the expected credit losses of other
receivables is not significant.

WUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SIS IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31 BILFE

|||I-.ﬁ

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 3 BIEEMEERLSMIALD
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) {5 (48)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) B 75 LB ) 3% (48)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) L) EERREE)
Other receivables (Continueq) Bt fEH A TE (48

2023912 A31 B 7 # 4
X ZN 5] B B EL 4th i Uk 30 I8 S
BB ESR R EER
o

The loss allowance for other receivables at amortised
cost as at 31 December 2023 reconciles to the
opening loss allowance as follows:

Other
receivables

Hoith FEURRIR

RMB Million
AREBET

Opening loss allowance as at 1 January 2022

Increase in the allowance recognised in profit
or loss during the period

MR2022%1 A1 B & ERVIE1E

& 97
HIR R B R A B R
=pill 88

Closing loss allowance as at 31 December 2022

MA20225F12 A31 HAYEAR

IR 185
Increase in the allowance recognised in profit or ~ Hi A8 %5 A FERHY B
loss during the period N 7
Closing loss allowance as at 31 December 2023 72023512 H31 HRYEiR
EEEE 192

No financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income carry a significant exposure to

credit risk.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit

risk.

WL A FHEFARME®E
Wtz @ MEERBEANRE
gﬂlg/\/\

AEBTESESRERZEE
J_lllg/\/s
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F 12 A31 BILFE

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter
difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
another financial asset.

The Group’s liquidity risk management involves
maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents and
availability of funding through an adequate amount
of committed credit facilities. Management prepares
monthly cash flow budget to ensure that the Group
will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its financial
obligations as they fall due. The Group arranges and
negotiates financing with financial institutions and
maintains a certain level of standby credit facilities to
reduce the Group’s liquidity risk.

Based on the existing level of gearing and continued
access to funding, the Group believes that its liquidity
risk is not material.

Analysis of the Group’s financial liabilities based on
the remaining period at the date of the consolidated
statement of financial position to the contractual
maturity dates are presented in Notes 28 and 29.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The
Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates and
fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.
The Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by
management is set out in below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31 BILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 3 Eﬂiﬁ]ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬂ&@ﬁﬂIﬂﬁ
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) {5 (48)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) B IS E Bk E £ (48)
(d) Interest rate risk (Continued) d) FIZEER(EE)
The following table as reported to the management TRERPRAAERERE
of the Group, details the interest rate risk profile of FriERE) st A S E R W
the Group’s borrowings at the end of the reporting HHIR 2 EE N E R AR
period. e
2023 2022
2023F 2022F
Effective Effective
interest rate RMB’million interest rate RMB’million
ERF=E AREBETR BEAE AEEBET
Fixed rate borrowings: ~ TE{EE :
Bank loans %Eh‘éﬁx 3.70% 7,708 417% 7,008
Loans other than bank loans B R1TEZINZ B 3.21% 11,784 3.31% 13,613
Lease liabilties %ﬁfﬁﬂ 4.28% 71 4.28% 770
20,203 21,386
Variable rate borrowings: ZEfEE
Bank loans RITER 3.09% 4,212 3.93% 4,377
Loans other than bank loans ~ BRERATEFAINZ B 2.98% 727 3.95% 88
Net exposure Rk FE 4,999 4,465
At 31 December 2023, it is estimated that a general 72023F12A31H B
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest Hi g e G55
rates, with all other variables held constant, would mEEpE |7 R A1 00 A A
have decreased/increased the Group’s profit for the BEUS SR EEEE G RE
year and retained earnings by approximately RMB38 FERFRE D L AR
million (2022: RMB33 million). 38HE T (20224 : AR
33EETT) °
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 3 HiEMTERSEMIARD
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) FEE (48)

3.2 EAXRREKRER

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern,
optimise returns for shareholders and to minimise its cost
of capital. In meeting its objectives of managing capital, the
Group may issue new shares, adjust its debt levels or the
mix between short-term and long-term borrowings.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio which is calculated as the sum of interest-bearing
borrowings and lease liabilities divided by the sum of total
equity, interest-bearing borrowings and lease liabilities.
The gearing ratio at 31 December 2023 is 22.71% (2022:
24.26%).

There were no changes in the management’s approach to
capital management of the Group during the year. Neither
the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
il IRERMGE

For the year ended 31 December 2023

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation

(@)

Financial assets measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy. The level
into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement
date.

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
valuation techniques which maximise the use
of observable market data and rely as little
as possible on entity-specific estimates. If
all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

HZE2023F 12 31 HILFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F 12 A31 BHILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 3 HREMEENRESMIARD
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) TEH(E
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AFEMEF (B
(@) Financial assets measured at fair value @ EATEIFEZERE
(Continued) BE (&)
Fair value hierarchy (Continueq) NFEER(E

Fair value at
31 December
2023 Level 1 Level 2
R2023% 2023512831 A
125318 AVEHEDER
2OV £-% £=§

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2023 categorised into
(K]

EEE

RMB'million RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million

Recurring fair value %% ATEHE
measurements

Financial assets at fair AT B AL
value through other ~ 2EME 2
comprehensie  BEE

Fair value at
31 December
2022
H202E

&

RMB' ||on
AE¥EERL AEXEEn ARMEEL ARMEER ARE

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2022 categorised into
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

RMB'million

AREBEL ARMBERL ARKEER

RMB'milion ~ RMB'million

income

- Listed — 317 317 - - 216 216 - -

- Unlisted = i 48 - - 48 43 - - 43
During the years ended 31 December 2023 and B E2023F &2022F12 A
2022, there were no transfers between Level 1 B1HIEEFE  F—HREFE=

and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The

ﬁ&ZFﬂjfﬂaﬁi}% IR A

Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between “RHEFE=—REL - K
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the EIE’JBZ SN RAFEER

reporting period in which they occurred.

Z BB e &S B R
REEEE -

Information about fair value measurements BN FlEFAE S EF
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, all the listed 20234 [ 2022F 12 H31

equity securities are stated at fair values, which have
been determined by reference to bid prices quoted in
the respective stock exchanges.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
il IRERMGE

For the year ended 31 December 2023

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(b)

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost as of
31 December 2023 and 2022 were not materially
different from their fair values.

The fair values of long-term borrowings are based on
discounted cash flow using applicable discount rates
based upon the prevailing market rates of interest
available to the Group for financial instruments with
substantially the same terms and characteristics
at the date of the statement of financial position.
An analysis of the carrying amounts of long-term
borrowings is presented in Note 29.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F 12 A31 BILFE

4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

Accounting judgments and estimates are regularly evaluated
by the Group, based on historical experience and other factors
which include expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

Significant sources of judgments and estimation uncertainty arise
from the impairment assessment of the LNG processing plants
and are described as follows:

Property, plant and equipment, including construction in
progress, are reviewed for possible impairments whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. Determination as to whether and how
much an asset is impaired involves management estimates and
judgements such as future prices of natural gas, future production
costs and discount rates used in discounting the projected
cash flows. However, the impairment reviews and calculations
are based on assumptions that are consistent with the Group’s
relevant budget. Favourable changes to some assumptions may
allow the Group to avoid the need to impair any assets, whereas
unfavourable changes may cause the assets to become impaired.
Note 15 contains further information about the risk factors and
carrying amounts of the LNG processing plants.
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REVENUE

Revenue mainly represents revenue from the sales of natural
gas, sales of LPG, LNG processing and terminal business, and
sales of crude oil. Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers within the scope of HKFRS 15 by major products or

service lines is as follows:

Disaggregated by major products
or service lines

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
in e Rl 5 ¥R = bl 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31 BILFE

5 WA

WAEBERBERARHEE - LPGH
& LINGII T SR f#EEXRM MHERHZ
WA - BBM G IMEERF15REEN
ZERAEEFPANZBAREZERAR
BRERAD T

2023 2022
2023%F

20224
RMB’million
ARBBEETT

RMB’million
ARBEER

REBERIREIERIA D

— Sales of natural gas products —RKAREE 140,600 131,892

— Sales of LPG —LPG $H& 26,801 29,224
— Revenue from LNG processing and —LNG INT E2REERS

terminal service WA 9,042 8,542

— Sales of crude oll —[RmIEE 911 2,286

177,354 171,944

The Group’s revenue are substantially derived from the sales
of goods to customers in the PRC and recognised at a point in
time. The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph
121 of HKFRS 15 to its sales and service contracts such that the BEwE
above information does not include information about revenue
that the Group will be entitled to when it satisfies the remaining
performance obligations under the sales or service contracts that
had an original expected duration of one year or less.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers is

disclosed in Note 33.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F 12 A31 BILFE

5

REVENUE (CONTINUED)

Accounting policy of revenue recognition:

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises from
the sale of goods, the provision of services or the use by others
of the Group’s assets under leases in the ordinary course of the
Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service
is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has the right to use
the asset, at the amount of promised consideration to which
the Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes value
added tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

(i) Sales of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer takes
possession of and accepts the products. If the products
are a partial fulfilment of a contract covering other goods
and/or services, then the amount of revenue recognised
is an appropriate proportion of the total transaction price
under the contract, allocated between all the goods and
services promised under the contract on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis.

(i) Rendering of services

The Group’s revenue from rendering of services is primarily
attributable to provision of LNG gasification and unloading
services. Revenue from the rendering of these services
is recognised in the profit or loss upon the gasification or
unloading of LNG.
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OTHER GAINS, NET
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31 BILFE

6 Hithikzs o FEE

2023 2022
2023%F 2022%F
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEET AREBER
Net exchange losses b B 1R EE (140) (589)
Rental income AN 122 70
Government grants RS RERL 659 292
Net gains on disposal of property, HEME - WE RE&E

plant and equipment e 58 12 14
Others HAt 250 275
903 62

INTEREST INCOME 7 FEUA

Interest income on:

2023 2022
2023%F 20224F

RMB’million
ARBEHET

RMB’million
ARBBEER

B MBUA -

— Amounts due from related parties — FEUS BB w75 5RIE 197 244
— Bank deposits —RITIFR 673 615
870 859

ERERARAD :%:Eiigﬁl’x%ﬂ
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8 EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION COSTS

8

B S RA

2023 2022
2023%F 2022%F
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBBEER ARBBRET
Salaries, wages and allowances ”é% T & KoE8L 5,455 5,253
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 3B 5HEI4ER 515 496
5,970 5,749
As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC, the Group IR BUAR ZRTE - AEBLXREBRE
participates in various defined contribution retirement plans i&&—rﬁiﬁﬁzﬁ%%%ﬁg\l PO E=S: ]

organised by municipal and provincial governments for its
employees. The Group is required to make contributions to the
retirement plans at rates ranging from 14% to 20% of the salaries,
bonus and certain allowances of its staff. The Group has no other
material obligation for the payment of pension benefits associated
with these plans beyond the annual contributions described
above.

The Group did not have any forfeited contribution for the year

ended 31 December 2023 in connection with the defined plan
operated by municipal and provincial government.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31 BILFE

FMRXZH

2023 2022
2023 20224

RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEHET ARBBEET

Interest expenses on: BHEZFELH
Bank loans RITER 566 541
Senior notes BRERE 140 151
Other loans, from: HEwER 8
— China Petroleum Finance Co., Ltd — R B ER AR
(“CP Finance”) ([ArSmBr 7 257 241
Interests on lease liabilities HEaGEZFE 32 35
995 968
Less: Amounts capitalised B BRMEERE (35) (69)
960 899

Amounts capitalised are borrowing costs that are attributable to
the construction of qualifying assets. The average interest rate
used to capitalise such borrowing cost was 3.94% per annum for
the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: 3.84%).

BNt eBEARENAKEZEERS
BB - HE2023F12 A31H ILF
B BREUEEENAAZ FHFE
T 53.94% (20224 : 3.84%)

ERERARAD :gzziiﬁsﬁ&%ﬂ
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10 PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10 FREF1SHIE AR T
ltems charged in arriving at the profit before income tax expense BRATSTHE AR N E IR A TIER -
include:
2023 2022
2023%F 20226
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEER AREBET
Auditors’ remuneration ZE RN &
— audit services —ZBURTS 31 23
- non-audit services — IR AR 2 2
Cost of inventories recognised as RS 2 FEAR
expense 151,161 146,357
Depreciation charge and depletion of ME - BEREE2ITE
property, plant and equipment X HRIEFE
— owned assets —BBEE 4,388 4,352
— right-of-use assets —EREEE 518 445
Amortisation cost of PATRIER 2 #sHA A
— intangible assets — B AE 86 90
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation ~ #T& - 187 N # 4,992 4,887
Impairment losses on property, plant and ¥ - BE MR EREEE
equipment 368 500

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEE’S EMOLUMENTS

11

Details of the emoluments of directors for the years ended 31

December 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31 BILFE

EERETZH&

HED2023F K2022E12 AB1 B ILEE
BEEZMEFHBOT ¢

2023
2023F
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions 2023 Total
e RE
Eznd REEER BERA  BARGEMY 202345
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT ARETT ARET ARBTR
Directors: EEN
Mr Fu Bin IREE - - - - -
Mr Qian Zhiia S i - - - - -
Mr Zhou Yuanhong FEBLE - - - - -
Mr Gao Xiangzhong BARLE - - - - -
Dr Liu Xiao Feng =l 270 - - - 270
Mr Sun Patrick FTELE 270 - - - 270
Mr Tsang Yok Sing Jasper LHEKEE 270 - - - 270
810 - - - 810

Directors’
fees

EZHE
RMB000

ARBTTL

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits
in kind

2022
20224

Retirement
scheme
contributions

BEEA  RIGEIER
RVBOOOO  RMBOOO
ARBTT  ARETE

Discretionary

bonuses 2022 Total

20225 5t
RMB'000
AREFTL

Directors: BE:
Mr Fu Bin Syt - - - _ _
Mr Qian Zhijia BAREE - - - _ _
Mr Zhou Yuanhong By S - - _ _ _
Mr Gao Xiangzhong SRREE

(appointed as Executive (#2022 7A8H

Director on 8 July 2022) EZERES) - - - _ _
Mr Miao Yong (resigned BELE (20225

on 22 April 2022) 42285 - - - _ _
Dr Liu Xiao Feng AEistEL 260 _ _ _ 260
Mr Sun Patrick ITFERE 260 - - _ 260
Mr Tsang Yok Sing Jasper LHEK T 260 - - - 260

780 - - - 780

EmRARAR =22
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1

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEE’S EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

In addition to the directors’ emoluments disclosed above, certain
directors of the Company receive emoluments from other CNPC
group companies they are employed to. No apportionment has
been made as the directors consider that it is impracticable to

11

EERET M2 (E

SR EXHWBENEEHMI - ARBET
EENTRERBNEMPAEE QR
BHH - ARNEFASNREFHAEHE
E@Hlﬁﬁ%iﬁi?&%%ﬁmqﬂ/dﬂ’il Al AR

apportion this amount between their services to the Group and B2EPEZEB I NER - M0 EIE
their services to other CNPC group companies. Rabor: 3

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the AEEAEERAEESMEATBEES
Group for the year including zero(2022: zero) director whose #(2022F - ER)ESF - FEZMEE

emolument is reflected in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments paid or payable to the remaining five(2022: five)
individuals during the year are as follows:

R B DT R - FRT BN T
BTIRZ (20224 : AR) » AL ZBSE
N

2023 2022

20234 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ET T AREFT

Salaries and other emoluments e LEMMe 5,054 4,730
Discretionary bonuses FIBTELT - -
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETEIER 451 421
5,505 5,151

The emoluments fell within the

Number of Individuals

B T 5IEE

following band:

Below HK$1,000,000 1,000,000/ TTA T

18 B A B

Y
N

1,000,00178 7T 21,500,000/ 7T 4 3
1,500,00178 7T £ 2,000,000/% 7T = -
3,000,001 723,500,000/ 7T = -
3,500,001 7. £ 4,000,000/ 7T = -

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000

None of the Directors has waived their remuneration during the
year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company did not
incur any severance payment to any director for loss of office or
any payment as inducement to any director to join the Company
(2022: Nil).
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12 FASHEHR
2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEHER AREBET

Current tax BENHAF 1B

-PRC —rh 3,165 2,782
— Overseas —g4ah 107 204
3,272 2,086
Deferred tax (Note 30(b)) IEFERIE (HEE30(b)) 66 203
3,338 3,189

In accordance with the relevant Mainland China income tax rules
and regulations, the Mainland China corporate income tax rate
applicable to the Group’s subsidiaries in the Mainland China
is principally 25% (2022: 25%). The operations of the Group
in certain regions in the Mainland China are qualified for tax
incentives in the form of a preferential income tax rates ranging
from 15% to 20% (2022: 15% to 20%).

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided for as the Group
has no assessable profit subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax for the
year (2022: Nil).

Income tax on overseas profits has been calculated on the
estimated relevant assessable profit for the year at the applicable
rates of taxation prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group
operates.

RIZFERE P B A TS FER KR E -
BRARAEERFRAM 2B AR Z
FREAMTEMGSHRHEEER25%
(20224 : 25%) o ANEEEH B A E
TR 7 KEFEHBEERIKN - 25
1%%”\@% *Rfﬂ E/I E'EE ﬁ@?}—v—)l
5% ZE20% (20224 © 15%ZE20%) ©

P R & B A A R 0 4B ZB S5 4N 5 |
SHMERF SR R EREBFE
FRatIRR s (20224 « ##) -

BINEN Z ISR ERAFE 2 T8

B R A R AR E R %Pﬁ&z IS
EERRITERTERGE
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12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 12 FrSHRER (@)
The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax expense differs $E E bR FT1S T8 A Rm M) 2 R B
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the corporate BERARAEE 2R BEAM PRGN
income tax rate in the Mainland China applicable to the Group as TR et E BRI ZR0T
follows:

2023 2022
2023 20224

RMB’million RMB’million
ARBBER AREBET

Profit before income tax expense BRETSTE B A& T 12,593 11,392
Tax calculated at a tax rate of 25% TR R 25% (20224 : 25%)

(2022: 25%) STE IR 3,148 2,848
Effect of different tax rates MEEREIFE (193) (80)
Tax effect of income not subject to tax BEHHWA BB 2 (93) (161)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AR S 2 RIS &

for tax purposes 275 296
Tax effect of share of profits less JE (R N B F R B 18

losses of associates 2GR B (89) (94)
Tax effect of share of profits less EEEEERFREE

losses of joint ventures 2B e (98) (79
Tax effect of deferred tax not recognised — ARFERIELFIE 2 Fi 55/ 22 117 164
Tax effect of withholding tax on Bk IR AR B 2 TEHFR

dividends received or receivable e 271 295
Income tax expense Frisiis 3,338 3,189
The income tax rate used in the calculation above is the Mainland ERABMAZAEHRE AR EAM
China tax rate which is the jurisdiction where the operations of the R AN ARNERFBERKLE
Group are substantially based. FIfE 2 el EE SR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

(@)  The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
Group’s profit attributable to shareholders of the Company
of approximately RMB5,682 million (2022: RMB5,228
million), and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year ended 31 December 2023
of approximately 8,659 million shares (2022: 8,659 million
shares).

(b)  Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2023 and 2022 are the same as the basic earnings per
share as there were no potentially dilutive ordinary shares
issued.

14 DIVIDEND ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY

() Dividends proposed to shareholders of the
Company attributable to the year

Proposed final dividend attributable

im ORI TS R ZRBIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31 BILFE

13 SREFTRBFRT

@ BREXRZBFNTIBEARRFRRE
e AR E 2 s F AR KS5,682
AET(2022F : AR¥ES5228 H
B7T) © UNEZE2023F12A831H
IEFEE BT RRMEFISH
#98,65905E B % (20224 : 8,659H
ER)FTE o

b)) BRIYTEEBTHE I RTLB
B% - HE Z20234F &2022F12 A
STHEFEEREERZFETR
EAXRZFER o

14 AQTIRRELRE

() AFEERRKZETFAQT

IRERAVAR B

2023
2023%F

2022

20224F
RMB’million
AREBET

RMB’million
ARBHETT

AR RIBER EIERR 2

to shareholders of the Company 2023F R HIP B

for 2023 (note (a)) (P 3% (a)) 2,457 -
Final dividend attributable to AR R ER20224F

shareholders of the Company REARR S (HI3E(D)

for 2022 (note (b))

- 2,198
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14 DIVIDEND ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

() Dividends proposed to shareholders of the
Company attributable to the year (Continued)

Notes:

(@) At the meeting on 25 March 2024, the Board of Directors
proposed final dividend attributable to shareholders of the
Company in respect of 2023 of RMB28.38 cents per share
amounting to a total of approximately RMB2,457 million. The
amount is based on approximately 8,659 million shares in issue
as at 25 March 2024. The consolidated financial statements
do not reflect this dividend payable as the final dividend was
proposed after the date of the statement of financial position
and will be accounted for in equity as an appropriation of
retained earnings when it is approved at the 2024 Annual
General Meeting.

(b) Final dividend attributable to shareholders of the Company in
respect of 2022 of RMB25.39 cents per share amounting to a
total of approximately RMB2,198 million was approved by the
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting on 31 May 2023.
The amount is based on approximately 8,659 million shares in
issue as at 28 March 2023 which was paid on 20 July 2023.

(i) Dividends payable to shareholders of the
Company attributable to the previous financial
year, approved and paid during the year

14 ARQTRRELKRE (B

(1)

(i)

ZFgrﬁiJﬁﬁ%ZFﬁﬁ

B

(@)

Apg B (48)

MN2024E3 A2 BRITHNEZ
F o BREEEHM20283F AR
AIREIRERAREERARYE
28.38% * AHENABARMED, 457
BEJL - %o BEEN2024F3A
25H%98,6508 B E I TR T
H o AU BmMERIARRMZIE
RS - BAAKRBHRE TIN5
AR E B B TR iR - Wi 2024
FRERFAS RS ERE
RFEIF RN BLET AR

2022F A R R FE(L AR EARR B
BIRARK25390  ABAHRY
AR¥2198FE T © B72023
FEAIRERFEFAS L&
R AL © 2B EN2023F3
F 28R #18,659E &Mk B #1 TS
E o WER2023F7A208 X
i e

F—HBFERGALD
AR RIS (RAFE
#EAERZ M)

2023 2022

20235 20224

RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEHER AREBETT

Final dividend in respect of the L BFEERRERE
previous financial year, approved (AAFFEHOE R )
and paid during the year 2,198 1,799
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31 BILFE

15 Y% - BERRE

Leasehold Equipment
landleased  Oilandgas  Natural gas and Motor Construction
Buildings  forownuse properties pipelines  machinery vehicles Others  in progress Total
REMERR RlR
BT ZEEtH  RARNE  RMREE  GRDEE i B  ARBIR 2]
RMB'milion ~ RMB'milion ~ RMB'milion ~ RMB'milion ~ RMB'milion ~ RMB'milion ~ RMB'milion  RMB'milion  RMB'million
ARBEET ARMEER ARMEER ARMEER ARMEER ARMEEn ARMEEn AREAEn AREFER
Cost S
Balances at 1 January 2022 ivipalstce: 5,889 4640 1053 24 73213 195 3489 479 114,751
Curency randation ciferences ~ EMERZS 7 i il - 1 7 2 3 19
Adttions HE 28 RYYA 6 - 119 1% il 4078 6,165
Acquiston through business ~~ BEFBAMENE
combination 14 - - - 36 1 - - 1
Disposals ik (206) (9) (799) - (1,366) (439 (18 (197) (3.230)
Transfers 2 (941) - - (4) 5916 - 633 (5,367 -
Reclssiicaton EinB 12 ] 1 - ) - 3 - -
Balances at 31 Deoember 2022 F02F12A31 AL R 5,063 4878 0,983 - 9177 1717 4,100 13309 118,25
st RCRRERE | SB MW MT Wm0
Curency rendaton cifferences ~ SMEH£8 2 - 52 - 1 1 - 2 5
Addtions RE 9 351 3 - 3% 62 57 3,541 4722
Acquiston toughbusiness - BEERARETIE
combination 1 14 - - 50 - 1 - 76
Disposals il (41 (197) (8,556) - (1,700) (44) (224) (62 (11,640)
Transfers 2 il - - - 4376 14 0 (4,809) -
Reclassfication g 154 - - - (405) ) 25 - -
Bdences at 31 December 2023 A2023F12A31BES 5319 5,044 1,516 - 81,04 1,369 4,388 11,981 111,441
EREFARAR —BE-=FFER ﬂ




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
in e Rl F5 ¥R =0 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED) 15 ¥E - BERRE (E

Leasehold Equipment
landleased  Oilandgas  Natural gas and Motor Construction
Buildings  forownuse properties pipelines  machinery vehicles Others  in progress Total

RRMERR Rtk

fr JBALH  RAMNR  RMREE  RERMB e R ERIE L
RMBmilon RMBmilion ~RMBmilion RMBmilon RMBmilon RMBmilion RMBmilion ~RMBmilon  AMBmilion
ARREER ARMEER ARMEER ARMEER ARMEAR ARMEEn ARMEEn ARREER ARMEAR

Accumulated Depreciation ~ E3FERHE
and Impairment

Balances at 1 January 2022 ivipalstces 2051 2 9,684 89 %819 1718 1972 243 45087
Cumency ranslaion diferences  E%ER£E 5 - 158 - 1 6 2 - 1
Charge for he year FEERH 512 18 40 9 3414 64 % - 4797
Disposels it 049 & il - (1% 69 - 5 (1819
mpairment e 3 3 - - % - 23 310 50
Reclassfication L (23 2 - It 489 - 10 - -
B 31 Deenber 002 RO ORSIEH W m S AN T R N I " I
Balances at 1 January 2023 H0nEIAIBER 1934 473 9561 - 30567 1349 2159 2648 48,601
Curency rangation ciferences ~ EMERZE 1 - 3 - 1 1 - - %
Charge for he year FEEH 30 190 195 - 3,86 6 PAl| - 4906
Disposals ik (389) (84 (8,537) - (933) (406) (200) 41) (10,590)
Impairment el k) - - - P} 3 3 8 368
Recassfication EinB 5 - - - (1%) ) 8 - -
Blancesat 31 December 2003 02312731868 2015 519 1,250 - 33,041 1,008 2,81 2,635 43409
Net book value: TSR

Blancesat 31 December 2003 R2023F12A318ER 3,304 4,465 266 - 48,183 361 2107 9,346 68,032
Bdences at 31 December 2022 A200F12A31BES 3,129 4403 422 - 48610 38 1,041 10,661 69,534
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

The buildings of the Group are mainly located in the PRC.

Other assets mainly comprises of containers, roads, bridges and
others.

Certain of the Group’s property, plant and equipment are situated
on leasehold land in the PRC which was granted for use by the
relevant government authorities to the Group at nil consideration
with no specific terms of usage.

As at 31 December 2023, certain property, plant and equipment
of the Group amounting to RMB818 million (2022: RMB958
million) were pledged to banks for loan facilities granted to the
Group.

Uncertainty in future LNG prices, production costs, changes in
operating conditions and economic outlook gave rise to possible
indicators that the carrying amount of the property, plant and
equipment attributable to the LNG processing plants as at 31
December 2023 might be impaired. Each LNG processing plant
operated by the Group has been identified as a separate cash
generating unit (“CGU”) for impairment assessment purposes.
The Group has conducted impairment tests and the recoverable
amounts are determined using the value in use approach, which
involved significant assumptions such as future LNG prices, future
production costs and discount rates.

As at 31 December 2023, the cost, accumulated depreciation,
accumulated impairment and net book value of Group’s property,
plant and equipment relating to the Group’s LNG processing
plants were RMB14,693 million, RMB3,581 million, RMB4,313
million and RMB6,799 million, respectively (2022: RMB14,601
million, RMB3,238 million, RMB4,314 million and RMB7,049
million, respectively). As at 31 December 2023, no impairment or
reversal of impairment was recognised to LNG processing plants.
(2022: RMB492 million impairment was recognised and RMB189
million reversal of impairment was recognised to LNG processing
plants).

Discounted cash flow was used in value in use calculation of the
LNG processing plants. Future cash flows were discounted using
pre-tax discount rates ranging from 12.84% to 16.38% for the
current year (2022: 12.88% to 16.81%).

im ORI TS R ZRBIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F 12 A31 BILFE

15 ¥k - BERRE(E

AEBZBFIBUNFTHE -

HWEETZEEERME - &K - BR
R EA o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
in e Rl F5 ¥R =0 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F 12 A31 BHILFE

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED) 15 ¥E - BERRE (E

Right-of-use assets FEHEEE
The analysis of the net book value of the Group’s right-of-use NTARNEEZBBEERMNEID 2E
assets by class of underlying asset is as follows: FEEEREFED

31 December 31 December
2023 2022
20234 20224

12831H 12H31H
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEER ARBBETT

Buildings BF () 409 403
Leasehold land leased for own use FEAEB A EE L (ii) 4,465 4,403
Equipment and machinery A B (i) 107 156
Motor vehicles B 12 10
Others HhIEE 102 122

5,095 5,094
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised in EﬁiEATE SHERCHERB s HIBE 2
profit or loss is as follows: AT

2023 2022
20234 20224

RMB’million RMB’million
ARBBER AREBET

Depreciation charge of right-of-use RRBEERMNED 2
assets by class of underlying asset: FREEERESL

Buildings B¥ 224 195

Leasehold land leased for own use MENMEBRCHE LTI 194 186

Equipment and machinery R EE 42 41

Motor vehicles B 9 7

Others EHAb 49 16
518 445

Interest on lease liabilities (Note 9) HEBEF L (H5E9) 32 35

Expense relating to short-term leases H150 AT E AR v ST 431 470
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

During the year, additions to right-of-use assets were RMB690
million (2022: RMB666 million). No right-of-use assets (2022:
Nil) was acquired thought business combination during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

Details of total cash outflows for leases is set out in Note 25(c).

M

(i)

(i)

Buildings

The Group has obtained the right to use buildings as its
warehouses and offices through tenancy agreements. The
leases typically run for an initial period of 2 to 10 years.

Leasehold land leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use of certain leasehold
land in the PRC. The leases typically run for a period of 10
to 50 years.

Equipment and machinery

The Group leases equipment and machinery under leases
expiring from 16 to 20 years. Some leases include an option
to purchase the leased equipment at the end of the lease
term at a price deemed to be a bargain purchase option.

Depreciation methods and useful life

Depreciation to write-off the cost of each asset, other than oil and
gas properties, to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives is calculated using the straight-line method.

im ORI TS R ZRBIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F 12 A31 BILFE

15 Y3 - BERRE (@)

EREEE (B

FR - 1%%%%3@/1\%%/\&%6905
B0 (2022%F : ARKEGB6EETT) ©
F2023F12A31BILFE iﬂzﬁiﬂ%‘%
B HES (2022F « B)FREEE -

HERSRLAE 2F BT AM T
25(c) ©

iy BEF

$EIE BHEEAYEESAE
EEERMREZEFZHEH
%o-—&mh: EREEVS A
HAIMFZE+F -

(i) HENEEBRZMEELH

AEEERBETURFEZE
Stz ERE - —RME A
AHERHTHEER+F -

(i) =&t NS

AEERBR+ANFE-TFR
uﬁZﬂEiﬁ%“%&%%O
PHEBRSEEE  NEHE
ﬁ%T&&ﬁ% ZEREEEE
ZEBREEABHERE -

HEF AT E R FIR
7 8 VIR A B A S AR AL A T (

REMEEREER B R RARYE
BRONZ A B RIRE(E

EmERARAE —2=




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F 12 A31 BHILFE

|||I-.ﬁ

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED) 15
Depreciation methods and useful life (Continued)
The Group uses the following useful lives for depreciation
purposes:
— Buildings 40 years or over the remaining
period of respective leases
whichever is the shorter
— Leasehold land leased for  lease term
own use
— Natural gas pipelines 10-30 years
— Equipment and machinery  4-30 years
— Motor vehicles 4-14 years
- Others 5-12 years
The cost of oil and gas properties is amortised at the field level
based on the units of production method.
No depreciation is provided for construction in progress until the
assets are completed and ready for use.
See Note 40(e) for the other accounting policies relevant to
property, plant and equipment.
16 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 16

There is no individually material associate which significantly
affects the results and net assets of the Group at 31 December
2023.

Aggregate information of associates that are not individually
material:

ERMAER 2B E QAR
RAMB@MER AREE

Aggregate carrying amount of
individually immaterial associates in

Mm% - MENRE (8
WEHENFEHAER (B
AR R AT A (2 P B PR VA B

— g AOF S THE ~ 84
TEAPR (LABE &
BXE)

—HELEER HES

Z2HELH

—RAREE 10-304F

— B MR 4-30%

—AE 4-144F

—HAty 5-124F

Tt R A B 2 A TS R
RO AR T A -

HERTRAETT RARAERAR TR
IE -

Eﬁﬂéﬁi%% 55 M AR R 2 & T
R MEE40() ©

REEQR2IRE
WEFERBEE 2 LN Y AERR®R
2023F 12 A31 B o #E N EEFEEK
EAFE -

ERTERZBERRZAPER

2023
20234

2022
20224
RMB’million
AREBEET

RMB’million
ARBEHET

the consolidated financial statements 7,980 7,909
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s REEEMZESHE QT

share of those associates’ BT

— Profit — & A 466 525

— Other comprehensive income —Hip 2 mEUEE 5 8
Total comprehensive income EEWEBRE 471 533
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INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SIS IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31 BILFE
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REELEZRE

17

2023 2022
2023%F 2022%F
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEER AEBBET
Share of net assets JEIE B EFE 6,109 6,016
Loan to a joint venture MEEPERHEER - 40
6,109 6,056
Loan to a joint venture is unsecured, interest-fee and not MEEREREERAEERR  EFE

repayable within one year.

There is no individually material joint venture which significantly
affects the results and net assets of the Group at 31 December

2023.

Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not individually

material:

Aggregate carrying amount of
individually immaterial joint ventures in

MIE—FANEE -

TEEHNBEEZAECEHAEFTR
2023F 12 A31 B v £E N EEFHEEK
BATE -

ERTER2EELEZAMER

2023
20234

2022

20224
RMB’million
AREBEET

RMB’million
ARBEHETRT

1l%‘JT$xZA§¢%EA
BIMBHR 2 BREE

the consolidated financial statements 6,109 6,056
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s & IVTEE EEEME

share of those joint ventures’ 2B

— Profit —Z%T‘lﬂ 579 467

— Other comprehensive income —H 2wk 23 119
Total comprehensive income 2 E R BEE 602 586

EmRARAR =22




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F 12 A31 BHILFE

18 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18 HBATRZIRE
Details of the principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 36. EAXEMB AR ZFIEHNHIZES6 ©
The following tables list out the information related to PetroChina TRIEFBEA®IFRERARER
Jiangsu LNG Co., Ltd. (“Jiangsu LNG”) which is a subsidiary of NA) (VIELNG]) 28 ER - Z A F
the Group which has material non-controlling interests (“NCI”). BAKEMAE S AT SR ([FEE
The summearised financial information presented below represents FlMEER]D B AR - LTAE%2
the amounts of NCI portion before any inter-company elimination. B 75 B R Z 48 AT A BB SH AT 3E

ZHERESE D 2 2R ©

Jiangsu LNG
JLE LNG
2023 2022

2023 20224
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEEETR AREBETT

NCI percentage SEIESIMEEE A A 45% 45%
Current assets mENEE 2,668 3,333
Non-current assets EMBNEE 4,148 4,398
Current liabilities mEBE (236) (1,104)
Non-current liabilities EREBEE (92) (117)
Net assets BEFE 6,488 6,510
Carrying amount of NCI FEVE B R AR B 2,920 2,930
Revenue WA 2,798 3,116
Profit and total comprehensive income FRaAREEWNEETE

for the year 1,671 1,959
Profit allocated to NCI DEEIEEFIVE R 2R 752 882
Dividend paid to NCI SANE ULl Tl ¥ 765 720
Cash flows generated from operating EXETEECRERE

activities 2,269 1,812
Cash flows generated from/(used in) WEEREES, (FTA) 2

investing activities REmE 274 (1,048)
Cash flows used in financing activities RMETEMAZRERE (2,536) (764)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31 BILFE

19 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19 EBFEE
The intangible assets mainly comprise goodwill, contract BREETEZEENE  ARBE -5
relationships, franchised rights and computer software costs. The FHENRBMEENS BEEE S
movements in intangible assets are as follows: U

2023 2022
20235 20226
Goodwill Others Total Goodwill Others Total

HE Hity st G ) Bt
RMB’'million RMB’million RMB’million  RMB'milion ~ RMB'milion  RMB’million
AREEERT ARBEER AREEER AREKAERT AREAST ARKEER

At 1 January MA1E 515 1,334 1,849 567 1,389 1,956
Additions hE - 3 3 - 66 66
Currency franslation differences ~ EHER £5 - 1 1 - 1 1
Acquisition through business BREBAIHET
combination (note (i) U (P EE() 1 - 1 6 - 6
Disposal He - (13 (19 58) @) (90)
Amortisation for the year TER#H - (86) (86) - (90) (%0)
At 31 December M12A31H 516 1,239 1,755 516 1,334 1,849
()  The additions of goodwill were mainly due to the Group’s () EEREFEHRTEBEXRAR
acquisition transactions of natural gas sales segment. HERBR KB H
(i) Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is iy EBEBRAUGEAFH I EFEE
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the Zﬁ&iﬁﬁﬁ"ﬁ?fﬁﬁ—ﬂiﬁﬁ FH
assets’ estimated useful lives. NABESET BT R
Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed BN EB R A EEEN -
annually.
See Note 40(f) for the other accounting policies relevant to Hihfamp EEMERA 25 BER
intangible assets. FHIEE40(f) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F 12 A31 BHILFE

20 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER 20 22 F{EHst AH M2 mEUkzs
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ZEREE

2022
2023 20224

RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEHET ARBBEET

Equity securities designated at EE AR AT ESAEMS
FVOCI: AR EZRAES -
— Listed in Australia — PR AMEE B 25 22
— Listed in Hong Kong —REELT 3 3
— Listed in the Mainland China — R EIREE £ 289 251
— Unlisted in the Mainland China — R EIREEIE LT 43 43
360 319
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets at fair ZIS’EE/\\,?GEM‘“HNR%&JE”WEH
value through other comprehensive income in the consolidated SR AFEFARMEE NS 2 2Rt
statement of financial position by the measurement hierarchy are BE 7 REESRHNHES.3() °
set out in Note 3.3(a).
The Group designated financial assets at fair value through other Hﬂ)ﬁéﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁﬂﬁfﬁﬁiﬁﬁLﬁﬁhﬁ
comprehensive income at FVOCI, as the investments are held for EAEEIETZAFEFAEMEE
strategic purposes. Wz emEERZATEFAEME
TS ©
No dividends were received on these investments during the AEFWERZZIRE WL RS
year (2022: Nil). Fair value gain on financial assets at fair value (2022%F : #&) AT EFAEMEE
through other comprehensive income of RMB33 million (2022: Wz emMEEN R T ERRARESS
loss RMB238 million), net of tax of RMBS8 million (2022: RMB33 BET(2022F : BEARK23888
million) was recognised in other comprehensive income during 7T) (IR IBARKSH BT (20224 -
the year. ARKISEEL) FAREMEE K E
TR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31 BILFE

21 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 21 HIERENEE
Other non-current assets mainly comprise prepaid construction HMERBpEEFTEREERNEERK
costs. i NS

22 INVENTORIES 2 =8

2023 2022
20235 20224

RMB’million RMB’million
AR¥BBEER ARERET

Natural gas RIAR 1,152 1,040
Crude oil and others [5h K b 3 41
1,155 1,081

23 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 23 FEURBRFR

2023 2022
2023 20224

RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEHET ARBBEET

Accounts receivable e BR ZX 2,664 3,674
Loss allowance EsiE s (687) (787)
1,977 2,887




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F 12 A31 BHILFE

|||I-.ﬁ

23 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED) 23

Ageing analysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
accounts receivable, based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance, is as follows:

FEURBR R (4R
BRE AT

BERSHR - BUIRR (0 B 1R 5
B REZAHZREDTOT

2023 2022

20234 20224

RMB’million RMB’million

AREEET AREBETT

Within 3 months =EAUR 1,386 2,080
Between 3 to 6 months —EAENEARN 66 96
Between 6 to 12 months NEAZE+ZEANRN 111 108
Over 12 months TZEANKE 414 603
1,977 2,887

The Group’s revenue from rendering of terminal services and
sales of crude oil are generally collectable within a period ranging
from 30 to 90 days from the invoice date while the sales of natural
gas are made in cash or on credit terms no more than 90 days.
Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk and
expected credit loss arising from accounts receivable are set out
in Note 3.1(b).
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31 BILFE

24 PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

24 FERRREMARBEE

2023 2022

20234 20224

RMB’million RMB’million

ARBEET AREBEET

Prepayments EENE 5,111 4,643
Other receivables, net of credit losses HEMEWRIE - REE

EE1& 1,371 1,110

Contract assets EREE 1,210 1,008

Amounts due from an intermediate JEW R R A RISR

holding company - 268

Loans to third parties ﬁ”fﬁhﬁ\, T 33 69

Dividends receivable FEU AR B, 3 96

Value-added tax recoverable EEE 548 454

Income tax recoverable B e R 15 17

Other current assets HEtmehEE 187 225

8,478 7,890
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F 12 A31 BHILFE

25 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25 RERRELSHEEH
(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise (a) ;%2 RAEEEEHE

2023 2022
2023 20224

RMB’million RMB’million
ARWEER AREBETT

Cash at bank and on hand RITRFEIRS 25,043 20,030
Short-term bank deposits RO HBERTT K 2,310 12
Time deposits with maturities FIEARBEA=EAZ

over three months TEHIF K 18,235 19,439
Cash and cash equivalents and HekReFEEE R

time deposits EHITE 30 45,588 39,481
Less: time deposits with maturities B BB BB = A

over three months BT (18,235) (19,439)
Cash and cash equivalents e hReEEEE 27,353 20,042
As at 31 December 2023, cash at bank and bank deposits W2023F12A831H ' IR17R S
carried interest at prevailing weighted average market rate MBTEARIERTNEE S TS
of 0.33% per annum (2022: 0.18% per annum). FMEQ.33% (20224F : FER=H

0.18%)5H &

Included in bank deposits, cash at bank and on hand WITHER BT LFERESEHE
are amounts of approximately RMB23,378 million (2022: TR B IR 1T A AR EE
RMB19,213 million) denominated in RMB which are HEZREHARK23 378 E
deposited with banks in the PRC. The conversion of these IC (20224 : ARBE19213FE
RMB denominated balances into foreign currencies and TT) o BMEPUARBAEZ &8N
the remittance of funds out of Mainland China is subject AN R #5 E 4 BE A B A D
to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange control BERFETREBFREGZINESE
promulgated by the PRC Government. S35 8l R E48 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31 BILFE

25 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED) 25 RERAELZFEHIEAR (BB
(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise (Continued) @ HeERHALFEERE
& (58)
The carrying amounts of bank deposits, cash at bank and |ITFER  RITRFERESDER
at hand are denominated in the following currencies: EENA THEHSE :

2023 2022
20234 20224

RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEER AREBETT

RMB AR 43,215 38,172
US Dollar ETT 1,922 873
Thai Baht B3 406 392
HK Dollar BT 34 34
Other HAth 11 10
Cash and cash equivalents and ReMREFEEE R

time deposits TEHATE R 45,588 39,481
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HZE2023F 12 A31 BHILFE

25 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED) 25 IWERWELEEEH (BB
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing b MEFTHMELENER
activities ¥R

TRAMLAEBEREADIESE
MBEEY ERASKIIR

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and non-

cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are 2y gEETMMEEANBEIRE
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash
flows as cash flows from financing activities.

$’$ ./m/\fﬁimiﬁq:'iﬁim
EBREIEARRKIBERER
DERBEEHFEENER R

ENAE-
Lease Dividend
Borrowings liabilities payables Total
&g HEEHE EfRE @t
RMB’million  RMB’million  RMB’million  RMB’million
AR®EET AR®EER AR%EER AR%EER
At 1 January 2023 120235 161H 25,081 770 133 25,984
Changes from financing cash flows: HERSRERD
Increase in borrowings fE B 6,156 - - 6,156
Repayment of borrowings BRES (6,870) - - (6,870)
Capital element of lease rentals paid BERAERS AL TR - (448) - (448)
Interest element of lease rentals paid EREEREHEHN - (32) - (32)
Interest paid BRHE (935) - - (935)
Dividends paid o shareholders of the Company ~ BRI ZARARIRRE S - - (2,198) (2,198)
Other dividends paid EREMES - - (2,257) (2,257)
Total changes from financing cashflows ~ BEREAEZBAE s N . oS (6,584
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes Exggoye % - - 96
Other changes: 2%
Net changes in lease liabllties during the year ~ EREEEFE - 389 - 389
Interest expenses MERX 963 32 - 995
Dividends to shareholders of the Company FAARERE - - 2,198 2,198
Dividends to non-controlling interests B EERE - - 2,548 2,548
Total other changes Hitgaan 963 421 4,746 6,130
At 31 December 2023 12023%12A31H 24,491 m 424 25,626
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25 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities (Continued)

O Bl 5 IR i 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31 BILFE
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25 ReEkBAEL£EEHEER(E

(b)

MEREEENER
£ iR ()

Lease Dividend
Borrowings liabilities payables Total
EE HERR ERRE ot
RMB'million RMB'million RMB'miIIion RMB’million
AREEET AR¥BER AREBET
At 1 January 2022 120226 1A1H 24,465 712 405 25,582
Changes from financing cash flows: RERSRESD:
Increase in borrowings EEEM 8,438 - - 8,438
Repayment of borrowings BREE (8,382) - - (8,382)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ERHEREAE TR - (361) - (361)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BEREEREHEHH - (35) - (35
Interest paid BERHE (894) - - (894)
Dividends paid o shareholders of the Company ~ ERZARARIRERE - - (1,799) (1,799)
Other dividends paid BEREMRE - - (1,905) (1,905)
Total changes from financing cashflows ~ BERERERELE 6%® (%9 B4 (4.938)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes Exgho5e 521 - - 521
Other changes: Hi2g .
Net changes in lease liabilties during the year ~ FATIE & EFE - 419 - 419
Interest expenses MERX 933 35 - 968
Dividends to shareholders of the Company NG ETE - - 1,799 1,799
Dividends to non-controling interests RIS - - 1,633 1633
Total other changes Hieaas 933 454 3,432 4,819
At 31 December 2022 #2022512F31H 25,081 770 133 25,984
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25 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED) 25 IWERWELEEEH (BB
(c) Total cash outflows for leases (c) HERSRHATE
Amounts included in the consolidated statement of cash THEFAGZERERERLZ D
flows for leases comprise the following: EEENATEIA -

2023
2023 20224

RMB’million RMB’million
ARBBER AREBET

Within operating cash flows KERSRER 749 436
Within investing cash flows KEREREF 216 247
Within financing cash flows BERSMESP 480 396

1,445 1,079
These amounts relate to the following: ZECRE N EIBEER

20224

RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEHER ARBEBET

Lease rentals paid BfHEERS 1,229 832

Additions of leasehold lands ANEHEEERZ
leased for own use HELH 216 247
1,445 1,079
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26 SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each

At 1 January 2022,
31 December 2022,
1 January 2023 and
31 December 2023

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

im ORI TS R ZRBIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31 BILFE

26 BRA

JERE -
FRREIEO.018 77,2 ZiAR

R20224F1H18 -
2022412 A31H -
2023F1A1H K
2023412 A318

Nominal value of
ordinary shares
HK$’ million
TRREE
BEAT

Number of
ordinary shares

million
TRk
BEk

16,000 160

Issued and fully paid:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each

At 1 January 2022,
31 December 2022,
1 January 2023 and
31 December 2023

ordinary shares

EBRITREBBHMN
LR ETEO.01E T2 AR

R2022%1H18 -
2022412 A31H -
2023F1A1H K
2023F12HA31H

Nominal value of
ordinary shares
RMB’million
TR EE
AREBBET

Number of

million
TiBRE R
BEk

8,659 71

|==]
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F 12 A31 BHILFE

27 OTHER RESERVES 27 HitifEfE
(@) Movements in components of other reserves (a) HihfEEHERES

Fair value

resene
Share  Contrbuted Merger (non-~ Translaton Retained
premium surplus tesee  recycling) resene Others Subtotal gamings

DYERR
(f788
RitkR : ) ; H R Eﬁl

RWBmlion

Balances at 31 December 2021 and HONENRNAR

1 January 2022 NNELRIRES 388 10 6700 34 (6] 339 30968 52% 56,204
Todcomprenensie hoome forreyer ERGENELE - - - (1% 156 - ] 508 500
Trafr bt esenes iR - - - - - i 5 )] -
Frd i 201 MiERERS : . . . . - S m
Repuchese omronconioligneests EEEEEARE - - 2 - - - 2 - 2
e i - - - - - Al i - )
Balances at 31 December 2022 HORERRSBER 3,804 109 6% 1 108 4169 IR 0% 087

Balances at 31 December 2022 and HOENENAR

1 January 2028 ABELRIRES 35,804 109 (869 110 108 4,169 3174 20% 50837
Todcomprenensie noome o heyer  ERGENEEE - - - % ) - 0 568 5475
Tranlr beveen esenes HEEER . - - - . 180 182 (15 -
Finel ivicend for 2022 WERERS > - - - - - - (2,199) (2199
Repuchase fomnon<conpongnigets S EADE - - - - - - - - -
Otes LU - - - - . (7 (1 . B
Balances at 31 December 2023 HOBERRS LR %0 10 (85%) 1% i} 43 31951 " £,378
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27 OTHER RESERVES

(@)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
in e Rl 5 ¥R = bl 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31 BILFE

Movements in components of other reserves

27 Hithf#fe (4§

(a) HithfiEmAREE (1)

(Continued)
Company
YN
Share  Contributed Retained
premium surplus Subtotal earnings Total
RA&E 2R it RREA am
RMB'million RMVB’ m||\|on RMB’ nulhon RMB'million RMB'million
AREBET . T AREEET ARMEER
note (| note (i)
FiE () i )
Balances at 31 December 2021 and R021F12A3BR
1 January 2022 N0F1A1RER 35,884 109 35,993 11,442 47,435
Total comprehensive income for the year M2 EYEAR - - - 1197 1197
Final diidend for 2021 N1 ERERE - - - (1,799) (1,799)
Balances at 31 December 2022 Ro02E12A31 BER 35,884 109 35,993 10,840 46,833
Balances at 31 December 2022 and H2022E12A31B R
1 January 2023 02351 F10 &8 35,884 109 35,993 10,840 46,833
Total comprehensive income for the year ~— FRZANEEE - - - 1,533 1,533
Final dhidend for 2022 NNEFEBRE - - £ (2,199) 2,199)
Balances at 31 December 2023 R2023F12A31BER 35,884 109 35,993 10,175 46,168
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE20283F 12 31 BILFE

27 OTHER RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Notes:

U]

(i)

(i)

)

(vi)

Nature and purpose of other reserves

Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, the share premium
account may be applied by the Company in paying up unissued
shares of the Company to be issued to shareholders of the
Company as fully paid bonus shares.

The contributed surplus represents the difference between the
consolidated shareholders’ net assets value of the subsidiaries
at the date on which they were acquired by the Group and the
amount of the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition.

The merger reserve represents the difference between the
considerations and the aggregate share capital of subsidiaries
acquired under business combinations under common control.

The fair value reserve (non-recycling) comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of equity investments designated as
FVOCI that are held at the end of the reporting period.

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations.

Others mainly represent capitalisation of retained earnings by
subsidiaries and the statutory surplus reserves. Pursuant to
the Company Law of the PRC, the Articles of Association and
the resolution of Board of Directors of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in the Mainland China, these subsidiaries are
required to transfer 10% of their respective net profit to statutory
surplus reserves. Appropriation to the statutory surplus reserves
may be ceased when the fund aggregates to 50% of those
subsidiaries’ registered capital. The statutory surplus reserves
may be used to make good previous years’ losses or to
increase the capital of those subsidiaries upon approval of their
shareholders’ meeting.

WUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31 BILFE

H it s (4

(c) A iIREMthEEE

M2023FE12 A31H » Al AR R
AEERES Rz HMHERS
B (IREBEE1981FE R aERT
ﬁ)%/&ﬁ%m,w%%ﬁ(zow

27 OTHER RESERVES (CONTINUED) 27
(c) Distributability of other reserves

At 31 December 2023, the aggregate amount of other
reserves available for distribution to equity shareholders of
the Company, as calculated under the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981 was RMB10,175 million (2022: RMB10,949
million). After the end of the reporting period the Directors F: AR®10,949887T) ©
proposed a final dividend of RMB28.38 cents per ordinary WMEMRE  ESEZRBRE 5
share (2022: Final dividend RMB25.39 cents per ordinary BREBERARKE28.38% (2022
share), amounting to RMB2,457 miillion (2022: RMB2,198 F ESEZARIREERE
million) (Note 14). This dividend has not been recognised as ik AR®25.399) - L/\Eﬁg
a liability at the end of the reporting period. 2,457EHE L (2022F : ARKE
2,198 &) (MfF14) - &R
BRMERRTRERAE—IEB

e

BARRRER AR

28 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 28

2023 2022

20234 2022%F

RMB’million RMB’million

AR¥BEER AREBET

Accounts payable (i) JE ST BR 3R (1) 2,790 3,112

Contract liabilities (i) B KB &) 13,596 12,621

Salaries and welfare payable e F & RAEF| 381 428

Accrued expenses FEETFISZ 7 12

Dividend payable FERTAR B 424 133

Interest payable FERTHI B 182 170
Construction fee and equipment FETERRR B R AR AR AN

cost payables 6,892 7,551

Amounts due to related parties JE 1~ B 75 IR

— Non-controlling interests — FEFEHI M R 1 1

— Others —Hfb 1 83

Other payables (i) L th & A< BRI (i) 3,526 3,609

27,800 27,720
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28 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 28
(CONTINUED)

() Ageing analysis of accounts payable

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
accounts payable, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

B ERM R BE BE (48

() EBARRZIRED

BEREHR - BNRFIEER
Bz R DOMTEAT -

2023 2022

20234 20224

RMB’million RMB’million

AR¥EBEER ARBBETT

Within 3 months =EAR 2,157 1,874
Between 3 to 6 months =8 A=7~E A 157 164
Over 6 months NEA B E 476 1,074
2,790 3,112

The typical credit period on purchase of goods is 90 days.

(i)  As at 31 December 2023, the Group also had non-current
contract liabilities of RMB28 million (2022: RMB98 million)
which were included under non-current other liabilities and
were expected to be recognised as revenue in over 12
months but less than 5 years.

The Group’s contract liabilities represent primarily advances
received from customers. In certain regions of the PRC,
customers of the Group’s city gas business are required
to use integrated circuit cards and top up in advance
before the balances are being deducted upon usage of
natural gas. Depending on the market conditions and
the customers’ credit profile, the Group also requires
advance from certain customers for sales of other natural
gas products. These advance payments from customers
are recognised as contract liabilities until the natural gas
products are sold to the customers. During the year ended
31 December 2023, the amount of RMB12,621 million
(2022: RMB11,984 million) recognised in contract liabilities
at beginning of the year has substantially been recognised as
revenue during the year.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 28 ME{IERMNIEETEE (B
(CONTINUED)

(i) The other payables were mainly retention monies for (i) HMENREFERIERBEK
construction and VAT element of advance receipts from TEWER AL ERIR R ©
customers.

(v)  The Group is a defendant in certain lawsuits as well as the vy AEBAETRUG 2HEREM
named party in other proceeding. While the outcomes of FAZEES - BERKRLE
such contingencies, lawsuits or other proceeding cannot EZEFXAEN  EEFANH
be determined at present, management believes that any R AR EEREMREE
resulting liabilities will not have a material adverse effect on MALEEZBETEHAEE
the financial position or financial performance of the Group. 2 AT AR S B TS SRS E K

PHRE -

BORROWINGS 29 BE

2023 2022
20235 20224

RMB’million RMB’million
ARBBER AREBET

Short-term borrowings — unsecured EHEE — EiKi 2,247 2,544
Current portion of long-term borrowings ~ KEIfEE 2 BIEIEE 3,217 2,743
5,464 5,287
Long-term borrowings — secured (note)  RHAEE — B I (i) 771 892
Long-term borrowings — unsecured REEE — &K 21,473 21,645
Less: Current portion of long-term B REEE 2 BVEREE
borrowings (3,217) (2,743)
19,027 19,794
24,491 25,081
Note: As at 31 December 2023, certain property, plant and equipment of M1z : R2023F12H31H » AEEETLEA
the Group amounting to RMB818 million (2022: RMB958 million) were ARES18EHE T (20224 + ARS8
pledged to banks for loan facilities granted to the Group (Note 15). BET)ZYE BEMRECHAER

Rz ERBAERMTRT (H5E15) -

ERERARAD :gzziiﬁsﬁ&%ﬂ
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29 BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 29 BE(E
The weighted average interest rate for borrowings as of 31 #2023F12 4318 » EFHINkEFHF
December 2023 is 3.33% per annum (2022: 3.66%). F & 53.33% (20224F : 3.66%) °
The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the BEZEIERATER.E -

following currencies:

2023 2022
20234 20224

RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEER AREBETT

RVB AR 17,347 18,068
US dollar T 7,074 6,951
Japanese yen HIE 2 5
Euro BT 68 57

24,491 25,081
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the borrowings of the Group 20235 2022412 HA31H » A%H
were repayable as follows: ZIBBARIATER

Bank loans Loans other than bank loans
RITEMN RIBITERUNZER
2023 2022 2023 2022

20234 20224 20234 20224
RMB’million RMB'milion ~ RMB’million RMB'million
AREEEBRr AREBET AREEER AREBSER

Within one year —FR 2,932 2,395 2,532 2,892
Between one to two years ~ — =4 2,907 2224 4,903 682
Between two to five years MERF 3,033 3,651 850 5,940
After five years FER 3,108 3,110 4,226 4,187

11,980 11,380 12,511 13,701

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023



29

30
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

HZE2023F12 A31 BILFE
BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 29 BEE (8
The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual TRFMAEB 2 EBEEZHRTAENTF
maturity for its borrowings. The information presented is based H o 2SI ERTIAAREB AL 2 &
on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay FHBAREE  WRRAFHRREME
and represents the undiscounted cash flow including principal (BEAESEFL)

and interest:

Bank loans Loans other than bank

loans

BITER BRBATERUIZER

2023 2022 2023

2022

2023%F 20225 20235 20224
RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEBRT AR¥BET AR®BEERT ARKEER

Within one year —&FR 3,363 2,774 2,917 3,108
Between one to two years —EMF 2,930 2,666 5,603 1,636
Between two to five years MERF 3,390 3,972 977 6,024
After five years AEE 3,508 3,692 4,401 4,462
13,281 13,104 13,898 15,230
INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 30 #REaBIikRRAP ZFrEH
FINANCIAL POSITION
(@) Current tax in the consolidated statement of @ HZEMBRRFTPZED
financial position represents: HB RI,Jf%

2023

2022

20235 2022

RMB’million RMB’

million

ARWEER ARBBET

Tax payables in respect AR A TR
of subsidiaries in: JERT 2 FiIA -
- the PRC — 558 553
- Peru —WE - 41
— Thailand —ZrE 31 29
589 623
As at 31 December 2023, the Group also had income R2023FE12 8310 - NEEHIE
tax recoverable of RMB15 million (2022: RMB17 million) ﬁﬁjqﬁz@ﬁﬁ@ﬁ/\ﬁﬁé}mﬁ,%ﬁ
which were included under “prepayments and other current (20224 : ARATHE L) -
assets”. B ATERE &ﬁﬁﬂm%ﬂﬁ?J

"R e

EmERAERAR —E2_=FFER
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30 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 30 &ZS MR RKDBPZFAEH

FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED) (48)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: b) EEZZELERREE
ka&E:
The movements in the deferred taxation account are as FRIERIIEER B FE ST -
follows:

2023 2022
20235 20224

RMB’million RMB’million
ARWEETR AREBET

At beginning of the year REH] (743) (556)
Currency translation differences EHTE AR (6) (4)
Acquisitions through business FIRFEB S OHETTIR

combination (9) (13)
Charged to the consolidated iR E W R kR

profit or loss (66) (203)
Credited to other comprehensive REMEEREE L

income 8 33
At end of the year RER (816) (743)
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30 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 30 ZS Uk RKDZFAEH

FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED) (.%ﬁ)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: b)) EEDZEERIEEE
(Continued) REfE: (8
Deferred tax balances are attributable to the following BERIBASRFEERATIAER -
items:

2023 2022
20235 20224

RMB’million RMB’million
ARWEETR AREBET

Deferred tax assets: BEEBIEEE ¢
Depreciation of property, M - BERRIETE

plant and equipment 389 333
Impairment of receivables JE W AR BORME 122 152
Tax losses TIAEE 424 433
Lease liability HEAE 157 175
Others Hh 202 270
Total deferred tax assets EERIR B ERTE 1,294 1,363
Set off K 5H (240) (248)
Net deferred tax assets BRI E R 1,054 1,115
Deferred tax liabilities: RERIEAE
Depreciation of property, Yz - BB REETE

plant and equipment 820 958
Undistributed profits of PRC and B BN B R A

overseas subsidiaries, and EeEna ReaBEDHE

associate and joint ventures YR 93 Bic g ) 816 650
Revaluation surplus from ¥BAHEENEGHAMG

business combination 313 313
Others HAh 161 185
Total deferred tax liabilities FIERTA B (ERR 2,110 2,106
Set off Eaw iz (240) (248)
Net deferred tax liabilities RIEM BB EFRR 1,870 1,858
As at 31 December 2023, certain subsidiaries of the R2023F12H31H *» NARH
Company did not recognise deferred tax asset of deductible FHBARTERE AER A
tax losses carried forward of RMB1,422 million (2022: BB ARK 42288 T
RMB1,040 million). (2022¢ t AREE1,040B BT

RIREFRIREE

ERERARAD :gzziiﬁsﬁ&%ﬂ
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31

32

COMMITMENTS
Capital commitments

Significant capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the
reporting period but not recognised as liabilities is as follows:

Property, plant and equipment M - BB KRR

31

H&iE
BAEIE

RBERRZITERERERREEN
BEREAHWMT ¢

2023
2023%

2022

20224
RMB’million
ARERET

RMB’million
ARBBEER

891 -

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

CNPC, the controlling shareholder of the Company, is a state-
controlled enterprise directly controlled by the PRC government.
Related parties include CNPC and its subsidiaries (together,
the “CNPC Group”), other state-owned enterprises and their
subsidiaries which the PRC government has control, joint control
or significant influence over, the entities which the Group is able
to control, jointly control or exercise significant influence over, key
management personnel of the Group and CNPC Group and their
close family members and any entity, of any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group’s parent.

In addition to the related party information shown elsewhere in
the consolidated financial statements, the following is a summary
of significant related party transactions entered into in the
ordinary course of business in both continuing and discontinued
operations between the Group and its related parties during the
years and balances arising from related party transactions at the
end of the years indicated below:

(@) Transactions with CNPC Group, associates and
joint ventures

The Group has extensive transactions with other companies
in the CNPC Group. Due to these relationships, it is
possible that the terms of the transactions between the
Group and other members of the CNPC Group are not
the same as those that would result from transactions with
other related parties or wholly unrelated parties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(@) Transactions with CNPC Group, associates and
joint ventures (Continued)

The principal related party transactions with the CNPC
Group and associates and joint ventures of the Group,
which were carried out in the ordinary course of business,
are as follows:

M

The Group entered into (i) the Leng Jiapu Contract
with the CNPC Group in 1997 and (ii) certain
supplemental agreements and master agreements,
including master agreement on 11 September 2020
for connected transactions for the three years ending
31 December 2023, for the purpose of renewing the
terms of the previously signed master agreement and
supplemental agreements.

Under the Leng Jiapu Contract and the master
agreement, a framework for a range of products and
services to be procured from the CNPC Group to the
Group and vice versa including oil and gas products,
general products and services, financial services and
rental services is provided.

- Provision of products by the CNPC Group
to the Group amounted to approximately
RMB119,317 million (2022: RMB109,667
million) for the year ended 31 December 2023.

- Provision of services by the CNPC Group to the

Group amounted to approximately RMB3,281
million (2022: RMB4,580 million) for the year
ended 31 December 2023.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE20283F 12 31 BILFE

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(@) Transactions with CNPC Group, associates and
joint ventures (Continued)

(i) (Continued)

- Provision of products by the Group to the
CNPC Group amounted to approximately
RMB5,320 million (2022: RMB4,572 million) for
the year ended 31 December 2023.

- Provision of services by the Group to the CNPC
Group amounted to approximately RMB4,552
million (2022: RMB4,478 million), which mainly
includes natural gas pipeline transmission
services and LNG gasification and unloading
services provided by the Group, for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

(i)  The Group has entered into agreements for the
sales of natural gas with certain associates and joint
ventures of the Group amounting to approximately
RMB2,677 million and RMB1,769 million (2022:
RMB2,709 million and RMB1,532 million), respectively,
for the year ended 31 December 2023.

The above transactions in (i) and (ii) constituted
connected transactions in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31 BILFE

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 32 BEEARS (B8
(@) Transactions with CNPC Group, associates and () EpmEE - HE QT
joint ventures (Continued) REBREZXRS (B
(i)  As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, amounts due (i) PA2023%F }2022F 12 A 31
from and to the CNPC Group, and associates and B - EREESTHBHSE
joint ventures of the Group, which are unsecured AEEBECZBERNRIREA
and interest-free, except borrowings, loans to an Bh¥zREKREE &
associate, loans to joint ventures and lease liabilities, AT —E H‘s‘ﬁ%@\ Al BRT
are included in the following accounts captions and BETLEREEBEIN B
summarised as follows: EERLERE - BT AT

S:HER NI T

2023 2022
20235 20224

RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEHETRT ARBBET

Other non-current assets HiIEme EE 71 58
Accounts receivable FE U BR X 369 901
Prepayments and other FBRSREEAM R EE

current assets 271 315
Accounts payable and ERBRR R BT A E

accrued liabilities 5,012 5,686
Borrowings == 9,512 9,639
Lease liabilities HEAE 56 81

EREORERAT :giziiﬁsﬁ&%ﬂ
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F 12 A31 BHILFE

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 32 BEEEARRS (88)
(b) Key management compensation b)) EEEEEZHS

2023 2022
2023 20224

RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEHER ARBBEL

Salaries and allowances Fae e 8 4
Retirement benefits — defined RIKEF) - REERETE
contribution scheme = -

8 4
(c) Transactions with other state-controlled entities c HEpEFHHMEEEEZ
in the PRC X5
Apart from the aforementioned transactions and the BREMZZHREFHER - K&
transactions with the CNPC Group, and associates and HERNAREBEELEZIRS
joint ventures of the Group, the Group has transactions with Gy REBEEMHEERE IR
other state-controlled entities include but not limited to (i) SBFEETER (EEREESR
sales and purchases of goods and services; (i) purchases m MR (VEEEE  (HEE
of assets; (i) lease of assets; and (iv) bank deposits and B RVIBTERKREER °
borrowings.
These transactions are conducted in the ordinary course of EA%I % E§$§% B2 BEEK
the Group’s business. ke
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33 SEGMENT INFORMATION

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision
maker which is determined by the Group’s most senior executive
management and Executive Directors of the Company.

The Group organises its business around products and services.
From the products and services perspective, the Group is
engaged in a broad range of oil and gas related activities and
derives its revenue from its four operating segments: Natural
Gas Sales, Sales of LPG, LNG Processing and Terminal and
Exploration and Production.

The Natural Gas Sales segment is engaged in the retail sales,
distribution and trading of various natural gas products. The Sales
of LPG segment is engaged in the wholesales and retail sales of
various LPG products. LNG Processing and Terminal segment is
engaged in the processing, unloading, storage, gasification and
entrucking of LNG. The Exploration and Production segment is
engaged in the exploration, development, production and sales of
crude oil and natural gas.

The Group’s most senior executive management and Executive
Directors assess the performance of the operating segments
based on each segment’s profit/(loss) before income tax expense,
and share of profits less losses of associates and joint ventures
(“segment results”).

Segment assets exclude deferred and current taxes, other
financial assets, investments in associates and joint ventures.

Corporate results, net, mainly refers to interest income earned
from cash and cash equivalents, net exchange (losses)/gains,
general and administrative expenses and interest expenses
incurred at corporate level.

Corporate assets mainly comprise cash and cash equivalents
held at corporate level.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F 12 A31 BHILFE

33 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

33 WRER (BB

Reconciliations of reportable segment profit and A ERRERREENE
assets iR
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBBER ARERETT
Reportable segment profit ] 5] 4 AR BRI R
Profit before income tax expense BRETISTHE BAR A 12,593 11,392
Income tax expense FTiSti & B (3,338) (3,189)
Profit for the year FR5m A 9,255 8,203
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’million RMB’million
AREEET AREBHET
Reportable segment assets ARERREE
Segment assets RIREE 128,001 123,476
Investment in associates REEE AR ZIRE 7,980 7,909
Investment in joint ventures REEBTLEZIRE 6,109 6,056
Deferred tax assets BERIBAEE 1,054 1,115
Income tax recoverable Al Bl FT1S R 15 17
Financial assets at fair value through BAERFAEMEER
other comprehensive income W emEE 360 319
Total assets BEE 143,519 138,892

Neither the Group’s revenue is derived from nor the Group’s non-
current assets are located in the place of incorporation of the
Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, there are no

single customer to whom the revenue exceeded 10% of the
Group’s revenue.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACQUISITIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company entered
into equity transfer agreement (the “Agreement”) to acquire 51%
of equity interest in a entity at a total cash consideration of RMB5
million (the “Acquisition”). Upon the completion of the Acquisition,
the entity has become a subsidiary of the Company. This entity
has not significantly affect the results and net assets of the Group
at 31 December 2023.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the
Board of Directors on 25 March 2024 and will be submitted to the
shareholders for adoption at the 2024 Annual General Meeting to
be held on 30 May 2024 (Thursday).
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F 12 A31 BHILFE

36 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 36 FEMBAT

ANTF2023F 12 A1 H Z T BB AT
(BABREEAT) ZHBWT -

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, all of which are
limited liability companies at 31 December 2023, are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

WRARER

Natural gas business

RARER

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and country
of principal
activities
ML,
BIBHRTE
EBAEER

Particulars of issued
and paid up capital/
registered capital

BROTRBERE/
HMERZHE

Type of legal entity

EERRER

Percentage of equity
interest attributable

to the Group

FEEELEER
Bt

PetroChina Kunlun Gas Co., Ltd. PRC RMB8,560 million Limited liability company 100.00% (note (i)
PEAERMRARARAH I ARM8560EE7T BREFRAF (PrEE())
Xinjiang Xinjie Co., Ltd. PRC RMB4,370 million Limited liability company 100.00% (note (i)
BN RN ARAA I ARBA4IT0RET AREEAH (B = ()
China Natural Gas Co., Ltd. PRC RMB2,082 million Limited liability company 77.88% (note (i)
ERRRRROERAF HE ARE2,082EETT BREMART (B 5E()
CNPC Shennan Oil Technology PRC RMB3,361 million Limited liability company 100.00% (note (i)
Development Co., Ltd. i ARE3361BEET BREMEAT (P3()
BET R AR EERAF
Kunlun Energy Investment Shandong PRC RMB1,700 million Limited liability company 100.00% (note (i)
Company Limited o AR 7008 8T BRETLTA (PR =E()
EmAERRE (ILR)BRAA
Huagang Gas Group Company Limited  PRC RMB1,500 million Limited liability company 51.00% (note (i)
EEMREEERATF i AR 50088 BREARA (Br=E())
Sichuan Chuangang Gas Co., Ltd. PRC RMB900 million Limited liability company 51.00% (note (i)
mINERREREEAH FEl ARH0EETT . BREFEANA (Br2E()
5T -
Jiangsu LNG PRC RMB3,166 million L'kripited ligliity,ComRany.. = sa . . 55.00% (note (i)
T8 LNG HE ARMES166BET BREART (PrEE()
Notes:

(i) Shares are held directly by the Company.
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37 COMPANY - LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 37 28)EmEEEARiRT

POSITION
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
20234 20224
12H31H 12H31H
Note RMB’million RMB’million
B AREEET AREBET
Assets BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment E S 5 2
Investments in associates REtERR)218E 1,469 1,469
Investments in joint ventures REBLEZIRE 933 973
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZIRE 29,927 29,367
Other non-current assets HEM3EREEE 1 1
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 3233 381812
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments and other AN R R EMRE & E
current assets 1,369 3,636
Cash and cash equivalents ReMRE&EEER 20,611 19,466
21,980 23,102
Total assets HEE 54,315 54,914
Equity Ex
Capital and reserves ARQ B IR R AE(G BRA
attributable to shareholders K f#E
of the Company
Share capital &z 26 71 71
Retained earnings AT AN 27 10,175 10,840
Other reserves Hib A 27 35,993 35,993
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 46,239 46,904
Liabilities =N
Current liabilities pER=RE
Accounts payable and ERBRR R EET A&
accrued liabilities 979 1,038
Income tax payable FER TS HR 20 20
Lease liabilities HEAE 3 2
1,002 1,060

EmRARAR =22
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37 COMPANY - LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 37

38

39

L EB B AR R (4)

POSITION (CONTINUED)
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
20234 20224
12831H 12H31H
Note RMB’million RMB’million
Mo ARBEER ARBEBETT
Non-current liabilities FkREBEE
Long-term borrowings REEE 7,074 6,950
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, Lo 5950
Total liabilities wmeE 8,076 8,010
Total equity and liabilities EEkBEEE 54,315 54,914
Net current assets REEEFE 20,978 22,042
Total assets less current HEERARBERS
liabilities 53,313 53,854
IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY 38 HERERAERAL

At 31 December 2023, the Directors consider the parent and
ultimate controlling party of the Group to be PetroChina HK and
CNPC which are incorporated in Hong Kong and established in
the PRC, respectively.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2023

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of amendments which are not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2023 and which have not been
adopted in these financial statements. These developments
include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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39 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 39 #,E2023F12H31HILFE
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT B8 ME :’I]':ik MHIIEET -
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MEARZENUETE
DECEMBER 2023 (CONTINUED) (%#8)

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

RUT R 2%
Fmzat AL
Amendments to HKAS 1: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 1 January 2024
BB ERE1R 2 ER] - KRGO ERRBIIERE 20241 A1 A
Amendments to HKAS 1: Non-current Liabilities with Covenants 1 January 2024
EEEHERSE 1R ZER] - MmN ERBasE 20241 A1H
Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7: Supplier Finance Arrangements 1 January 2024
BRI RNBTRNE B BREEAETR 2B  HEERMELH 20241 A1 H
Amendments to HKFRS 16: Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback 1 January 2024
BBV BHREERFI65 28] - ERERCZHERR 20241 A1H
Amendments to HKAS 21: Lack of Exchangeability 1 January 2025
BBEHERE21R 2 ER]: RZ B 202551 A1H
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28: Sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture To be determined
BEAMBHREERNE105 REEGTHERPR28R 28] - WEFMEBENRIREE
PEZEETEELRESTE FHEE
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what PAN=S lfﬁftmttﬁi:f A RFTEARE
the impact of these developments is expected to be in the initial RIERHR BN E - BRIAKER
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is RENZZEE] KA ERIE 4R E IS
unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial KETGENEALE -
statements.

ERERARAD :%:Eiiﬁs’:%&%ﬂ
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40 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. When assessing whether the Group has power,
only substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties)
are considered.

Subsidiaries are consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions
and cash flows and any unrealised profits arising from
intra- group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the
same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.

Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(@)

(b)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (see Note 40(g)) or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment
in an associate or a joint venture (see Note 40(b)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see Note 40()(ii).

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant
influence, but not control or joint control.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group
and other parties contractually agree to share control of
the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
using the equity method. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recorded at cost, which includes
purchase price, other costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the investment, and any direct investment into
the associate or joint venture that forms part of the Group’s
equity investment. Thereafter, the investment is adjusted
for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to
the investment. The Group’s share of the post-acquisition,
post-tax results of the investees and any impairment losses
for the year are recognised as profit or loss, whereas the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the
investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised as
other comprehensive income.

O Bl 5 R i 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F 12 A31 BILFE

|||I-.ﬁ

40 FEEEBER (8

@)

(b)

=
Eb

WEERARAR ==

B B 2% B % FF $Z= i 4E
é(mﬁ)

B EB K EYHN B R B A HE HI5E
B BIABRAHEZMNBARS

EifED Rt mEEM KRR HE
EFE@EM %%?ﬁf*
Rz ATH B R A B F ) I

%ﬁ@ﬂ?@ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ@%ﬁ%ﬁmﬂi
ﬁﬁ%;ﬂ%%ﬁé% (R Kt3E40(g)) B HY
AN ES (WER) ¥ 25 R
EAEHAEBELE (M40 ))

%xﬁaﬁﬁmx

EARRB Z2HBHRREA - RH
B AR ZRE ARARREEE
(B HTEE40()i) 5118R ©
BEQATREELE

BERREAKREHEAEAY

87 EREAEHSRERZEZ
BERE -
TR/ EZH  BIEAS

I&E@JZ’]EH B HRZESZ
ZH o RERTHZFEEEHR
TR o

GENB A BELEZRETIR
BREREIEEEVBREP T
BR - BIEEDRE - WEVHUAK
KRR KABEEEE B
RKEWEZRENEMAKAE - &
BRAEERAEE —Fo0n
BERNANEELENTERNEE
"E - BHig  ZIREKAEET
WHEREGEREEM FEAE
NEZEERE 2 ERBERBE
HE R REBARFEGWIR
BB WS T 1E ZEENRER
BEBESERAER  MASE
EEEEIRE BN WEERE
ﬁ1ﬂ£ﬁq& \IE E ﬁEquﬁE'ﬁﬂi
HEUES o




NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
in eIl IRERMGE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
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40 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Associates and joint ventures (Continued) b) B

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the associate or the joint venture, the Group’s interest
is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the Group’s
interest is the carrying amount of the investment under the
equity method together with any other long- term interests
that in substance form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate or the joint venture (after applying the
expected credit loss model to such other long-term
interests where applicable (see Note 40(l)(i)).

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint venture
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates and joint ventures are stated at
cost less impairment losses. Impairment loss is measured
by comparing the recoverable amount of the investment
with its carrying amount (see Note 40())(ii)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Accounting for production sharing contracts

Production sharing contracts constitute joint operations.
The Group shall recognise in relation to its interest in joint
operations:

(i) its assets, including its share of any assets held
jointly;

(i)  its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities
incurred jointly;

(i) its revenue from the sale of its share of the output
arising from the joint operations;

(iv) its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by
the joint operations; and

(v) its expenses, including its share of any expenses
incurred jointly.

Foreign currencies
()  Functional currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
entity in the Group are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
Company’s functional currency is Renminbi (“RMB”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented
in RMB.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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40 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

(i)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. The transaction date is the
date on which the Company initially recognises such
nonmonetary assets or liabilities. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that
are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated
into presentation currency at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items, including goodwill arising on
consolidation of foreign operations acquired on or
after 1 January 2005, are translated into presentation
currency at the closing foreign exchange rates at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the
translation reserve. Goodwill arising on consolidation
of a foreign operation acquired before 1 January 2005
is translated at the foreign exchange rate that applied
at the date of acquisition of the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that
foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

e)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including oil and gas
properties and construction in progress, are initially
recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost where it is probable that they will generate future
economic benefits. Cost represents the purchase price of
the asset and other costs incurred to bring the asset into
existing use. For construction in progress, cost comprises
direct costs of construction as well as interest charges,
and foreign exchange differences on related borrowed
funds to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment
to interest charges, during the periods of construction.
Construction in progress is transferred to property, plant
and equipment when the asset is substantially ready for
its intended use. Subsequent to their initial recognition,
property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortisation
(including any impairment) (see Note 40(l)(ii).

The residual values and useful lives of assets are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

Gains and losses on disposals of property, plant and
equipment are determined by reference to their carrying
amounts and are recorded in profit or loss.

Interest and other costs on borrowings to finance the
construction of property, plant and equipment are
capitalised during the period of time that is required to
complete and prepare the asset for its intended use.
Costs for repair and maintenance activities are expensed
as incurred except for costs of components that result in
improvements or betterments which are capitalised as part
of property, plant and equipment and depreciated over their
useful lives.
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40 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(f)

Intangible assets

U)

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree; over

(i)  the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the
acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a
bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating unit,
or groups of cash generating units, that is expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
Separately recognised goodwill is tested annually for
impairment (see Note 40()(ii)). Impairment losses on
goodwill are not reversed.

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the
year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (Continued)

(i)  Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets that are acquired by
the Group are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation (where the estimated useful life is finite)
and impairment losses (see Note 40(l)(ii)). Expenditure
on internally generated goodwill and brands is
recognised as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful
lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion
that the useful life of an intangible asset is indefinite is
reviewed annually to determine whether events and
circumstances continue to support the indefinite useful
life assessment for that asset. If they do not, the
change in the useful life assessment from indefinite
to finite is accounted for prospectively from the date
of change and in accordance with the policy for
amortisation of intangible assets with finite lives as set
out above.

(g) Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group’s policies for investments in debt and equity
securities, other than investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures, are set out below.

Investments in debt and equity securities are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to purchase/
sell the investments. The investments are initially stated at
fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs, except
for those investments measured at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVPL”) for which transaction costs are recognised
directly in profit or loss. For an explanation of how the
Group determines fair value of financial instruments, see
Note 3.3. These investments are subsequently accounted
for as follows, depending on their classification.
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NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
in eIl IRERMGE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F 12 A31 BILFE

40 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(g) Other investments in debt and equity securities
(Continued)

() Investments other than equity investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group are
classified into one of the following measurement
categories:

- amortised cost, if the investment is held for
the collection of contractual cash flows which
represent solely payments of principal and
interest. Interest income from the investment is
calculated using the effective interest method.

- fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”) - recycling, if the contractual cash
flows of the investment comprise solely
payments of principal and interest and the
investment is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both the
collection of contractual cash flows and
sale. Changes in fair value are recognised
in other comprehensive income, except for
the recognition in profit or loss of impairment
losses, interest income (calculated using the
effective interest method) and foreign exchange
gains and losses. When the investment is
derecognised, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled from equity
to profit or loss.

- FVPL, if the investment does not meet the
criteria for being measured at amortised
cost or FVOCI (recycling). Changes in the fair
value of the investment (including interest) are
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

@

()

Other investments in debt and equity securities
(Continued)

(i)  Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition of the investment
the Group makes an irrevocable election to designate
the investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such that
subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income. Such elections are
made on an instrument- by-instrument basis, but may
only be made if the investment meets the definition
of equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where such
an election is made, the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income remains in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) until the investment
is disposed of. At the time of disposal, the amount
accumulated in the fair value reserve (non-recycling)
is transferred to retained earnings. It is not recycled
through profit or loss. Dividends from an investment
in equity securities, irrespective of whether classified
as at FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised in profit or loss as
other income.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that
use.
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40 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

()

Leased assets (Continued)

U)

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease components and
non-lease components, the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts
for each lease component and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease component for all
leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of
a low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalised are recognised as an expense on
a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expenses is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(h) Leased assets (Continued)

U)

As a lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to
be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
there is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero.

In the consolidated statement of financial position,
the current portion of long-term lease liabilities is
determined as the present value of contractual
payments that are due to be settled within twelve
months after the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F 12 A31 BILFE

40 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

()

()

Leased assets (Continued)
(i) Asalessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at
lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease
or an operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance
lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to the ownership of an underlying
assets to the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is
classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis.

Inventories

Inventories include natural gas, crude oil and others which
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost of inventories is primarily determined by the weighted
average cost method, which comprises raw materials,
direct labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads, but excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less the cost of completion and selling expenses.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue before being unconditionally entitled to the
consideration under the payment terms set out in the
contract. Contract assets are assessed for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) in accordance with the policy set out in
Note 40())() and are reclassified to receivables when the
right to the consideration has become unconditional.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

0)

(k)

()

Contract assets and contract liabilities
(Continued)

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
refundable consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented. For
multiple contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities of
unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.

Accounts receivable

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses.

Credit losses and impairment of assets

()  Credit losses from financial instruments

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
financial assets measured at amortised cost (including
cash and cash equivalents, accounts and other
receivables, and contract assets, which are held
for the collection of contractual cash flows which
represent solely payments of principal and interest)
and debt securities measured at FVOCI (recycling).

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income measured at fair value,
including equity securities designated at FVOCI
(nonrecycling), are not subject to the ECL assessment.
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HZE20283F 12 31 BILFE

40 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

U)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference
between the cash flows due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive).

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort. This includes
information about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions. In measuring
ECLs, the Group takes into account reasonable
and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort. This includes information about
past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default events
within the 12 months after the reporting date;
and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible default
events over the expected lives of the items to
which the ECL. model applies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
il IRERMGE

40 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

Loss allowances for accounts receivable, lease
receivables and contract assets, are always measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these
financial assets are estimated using a provision
matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to
the debtors and an assessment of both the current
and forecast general economic conditions at the
reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs
unless there has been a significant increase in credit
risk of the financial instrument since initial recognition,
in which case the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at
the reporting date with that assessed at the date of
initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event occurs when (i)
the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations
to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or
(i) the financial asset is 90 days past due. The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.
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40 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

U)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)
In particular, the following information is taken into

account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

failure to make payments of principal or interest
on their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
a financial instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s
ability to meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective
pbasis. When the assessment is performed on a
collective basis, the financial instruments are grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics, such as
past due status and credit risk ratings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss. The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account, except for investments in debt
securities that are measured at FVOCI (recycling),
for which the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the fair
value reserve (recycling).

Impairment of non-financial assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment, including right-
of-use assets

- oil and gas properties;
- intangible assets;
- goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE20283F 12 31 BILFE

40 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Impairment of non-financial assets
(Continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,
intangible assets that are not ready for use and
intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
higher of its fair value less costs of sell and
its value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre- tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a
cash-generating unit).
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40 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 40 FEZITBUER (8)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets ) EEEEMEERNE
(Continued) (48)
(i) Impairment of non-financial assets (i) FFeRMEEREE)
(Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses —  BRRAEER
An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss EEENEMBRE S
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash- EXBZEEES
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds RERE 2 5B -
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses FgEiEmT ERR
recognised in respect of cash-generating units BEEE pBASELE
are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount BAERZREBE
of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating ETUDE - BER
unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the BEoRERSELES

carrying amount of the non-financial assets in
the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an asset will

iz (sk—#HBh) 2
MEEZEEE R
BIREE PRI B AL (3

not be reduced below its individual fair value —HEBM)PIESRE

less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in EZERAE BEE

use (if determinable). FEESgREER
HEER A FEREH
EHEE KA (0] 5
2)KEAEE (A
HE) °

Reversals of impairment losses —  BEREEE

An impairment loss in respect of assets WAEETEMN KE S

other than goodwill is reversed if there has st EE#

been a favourable change in the estimates B AlgBboBEE

used to determine the recoverable amount. BLINEEZREE

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have

1B FBEZRER
B AREBEFE

been determined had no impairment loss WEERREEET
been recognised in prior years. Reversals REREE2EER
of impairment losses are credited to profit HERR - ALz
or loss in the year in which the reversals are REE BN ERE R
recognised. ZEEFFABRE ©

EmERARAE —2=
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40 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(m) Cash and cash equivalents

(n)

(0)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, deposits held with banks and highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within three months
of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for ECL in accordance with the policy set out in
Note 40(I)(i).

Accounts payable

Accounts payable are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are measured initially at fair value less
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has unconditional rights to defer settlements of the
liabilities for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(p)

Taxation

Income tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at
the statement of financial position date in the countries
where the Group, associates and joint ventures operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from initial
recognition of goodwill. The deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the statement of financial position
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.
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40 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(p)

(@

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences arising on investments in foreign
operations where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.

The Group also incurs various other taxes and levies that
are not income tax. “Taxes other than income taxes”,
which form part of operating expenses, primarily comprise
resource tax, urban construction tax and education
surcharges.

Dividends

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(n

Government grants

Government grants are the gratuitous monetary assets
or non-monetary assets that the Group receives from the
government, excluding capital injection by the government
as an investor. Special funds such as investment grants
allocated by the government, if clearly defined in official
documents as part of “capital reserve” are dealt with as
capital contributions, and not regarded as government
grants.

Government grants are recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the grants will be received and
the Group is able to comply with the conditions attaching
to them. Government grants in the form of monetary assets
are recorded based on the amount received or receivable,
whereas non-monetary assets are measured at fair value.

Government grants received in relation to assets are
recorded as deferred income, and recognised evenly in
profit or loss over the assets’ useful lives. Government
grants received in relation to revenue are recorded as
deferred income, and recognised as income in future
periods as compensation when the associated future
expenses or losses arise; or directly recognised as income
in the current period as compensation for past expenses or
losses.

O Bl 5 R i 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F 12 A31 BILFE

40 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(8)

(®

Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring costs
and legal claims are recognised when: (i) the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events; (i) it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation; and (jii) reliable estimates of
the amount can be made.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest expenses.

Retirement benefit plans

The Group contributes to various employee retirement
benefit plans organised by PRC municipal and provincial
governments under which it is required to make monthly
contributions to these plans at prescribed rates for its
employees in the PRC. The relevant PRC municipal
and provincial governments undertake to assume the
retirement benefit obligations of existing and future retired
employees of the Group in the PRC. The Group has similar
retirement benefit plans for its employees in its overseas
operations. Contributions to these PRC and overseas plans
are charged to expense as incurred. The Group currently
has no additional material obligations outstanding for the
payment of retirement and other post retirement benefits of
employees in the PRC or overseas other than the monthly
contributions described above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(u) Related parties

(@)

(b)

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iy  is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

im ORI TS R ZRBIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
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NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F 12 A31 BILFE

40 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(u)

(v)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(viy A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(vii)  The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel

services to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with
the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group’s most senior executive management and
Executive Directors for the purposes of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s various
lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments
have similar economic characteristics and are similar in
respect of the nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of customers,
the methods used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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RESERVE QUANTITIES INFORMATION

INFORMATION ON EXPLORATION AND PRODUCTION

SEGMENT

In accordance with the Listing Rule 18.18, this section provides
supplemental information on oil and gas producing activities of the

Group.

Proved Oil and Gas Reserve Estimates

The following table sets forth the Company’s estimated proved
developed reserves and proved reserves as at December 2021,
2022 and 2023. The tables are formulated on the basis of reports
prepared by DeGolyer and MacNaughton and Ryder Scott Company,
independent engineering consultancy companies.

S8

FRMRELEERR2EN

RIE EMARAIE18.181% - AEFIREABAE
Bl R AR BRI E Y ©

W HREE A

TREFHARQRFR20214F ~ 2022F K& 2023F
12AZHTRREABRERTRAREE - %
LRI THRIEIE 7 T2 AR A 51DeGolyer and
MacNaughtonFRyder Scott Company#m 2L~
WMEMRE

CRUDE OIL Y
Proved

developed Proved

reserves reserves

(Estimation) (Estimation)

RACHRREE FRPRE

(f&51) (f& &)

(million barrels) (million barrels)

(BEM) (BEM)

Reserve as at 31 December 2020 PR2020F 12 A31H Zf# & 38.0 53.5
2021 Revision 2021F(EF] 9.5 1.7
2021 Production 2021 E= (11.9) (11.9)
Reserve as at 31 December 2021 R2021F12A31BZ 2 35.6 43.3
2022 Revision 20224 1&5] 1.8 3.5
2022 Production 2022F E= (11.3) (11.3)
Reserve as at 31 December 2022 R2022F 12 A31H 2 f# 2 26.1 35.5
2023 Revision 20234 1&5] 16.2 14.0
2023 Production 2023F E= (9.1) (9.1)
Reserve as at 31 December 2023 R2023F 12 A31H Zf# £ 33.2 40.4
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RESERVE QUANTITIES INFORMATION

NATURAL GAS RAR
Proved
developed Proved
reserves reserves
(Estimation) (Estimation)
RACHZEE RAHRE
(f&5h) (f&5h)
(million cu feet) (million cu feet)
(BBYAR) (BBYAR)
Reserve as at 31 December 2020 R2020%F12A31BZ = 123,362.3 139,383.1
2021 Revision 20214 (54T (186.7) (5,556.5)
2021 Production D021 FER (23,627.3) (23,627.3)
Reserve as at 31 December 2021 R2021F12A31H Zf#E 99,548.3 110,199.3
2022 Revision 2022F 5] 5,494.8 1,068.5
2022 Production 2022F EE (23,282.9) (23,282.9)
Reserve as at 31 December 2022 R2022F12 A31B Z & 81,760.2 87,984.9
2023 Revision 2023F (5] 50,038.1 49,209.6
2023 Production 2023FES (20,449.5) (20,449.5)
Reserve as at 31 December 2023 MR2023F 12 A31H 2 f# = 111,348.8 116,745.0
Definition: BEx
The petroleum reserves are classified as follows: AHAREIEWOT

K BRFEE - RAARREERSBLRTE B H

Proved oil and gas reserves — Proved oil and gas reserves are

those quantities of oil and gas, which by analysis of geoscience and
engineering data, can be estimated with reasonable certainty to be
economically producible — from a given date forward, from known
reservoirs, and under existing economic conditions, operating methods,
and government regulations — prior to the time at which contracts
providing the right to operate expire, unless evidence indicates that
renewal is reasonably certain, regardless of whether deterministic or
probabilistic methods are used for the estimation. The project to extract
the hydrocarbons must have commenced or the operator must be
reasonably certain that it will commence the project within a reasonable
time.
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(i)

(i)

The areas of the reservoir considered as proved includes:

(A) The area identified by drilling and limited by fluid contracts, if
any, and (B) Adjacent undrilled portions of the reservoir that can,
with reasonable certainty, be judged to be continuous with it
and to contain economically producible oil or gas on the basis of
available geoscience and engineering data.

In the absence of data on fluid contracts, proved quantities in a
reservoir are limited by the lowest known hydrocarbons (LKH)
as seen in a well penetration unless geoscience, engineering, or
performance data and reliable technology establishes a lower
contact with reasonable certainty.

Where direct observation from well penetrations has defined a
highest known oil (HKO) elevation and the potential exists for an
associated gas cap, proved oil reserves may be assigned in the
structurally higher portions of the reservoir only if geoscience,
engineering, or performance data and reliable technology establish
the higher contact with reasonable certainty.

Reserves which can be produced economically through
application of improved recovery techniques (including, but not
limited to, fluid injection) are included in the proved classification
when:

(A) Successful testing by a pilot project in an area of the reservoir
with properties no more favourable than in the reservoir as a
whole, the operation of an installed program in the reservoir or an
analogous reservoir, or other evidence using reliable technology
establishes the reasonable certainty of the engineering analysis
on which the project or program was based; and (B) The project
has been approved for development by all necessary parties and
entities, including governmental entities.

Existing economic conditions include prices and costs at which
economic producibility from a reservoir is to be determined. The
price shall be the average price during the 12-month period
prior to the ending date of the period covered by the report,
determined as an unweighted arithmetic average of the first-day-
of-the-month price for each month within such period, unless
prices are defined by contractual arrangements, excluding
escalations based upon future conditions.
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RESERVE QUANTITIES INFORMATION
HEEik

Developed oil and gas reserves — Developed oil and gas reserves are
reserves of any category that can be expected to be recovered:

M

(i)

Through existing wells with existing equipment and operating
methods or in which the cost of the required equipment is
relatively minor compared to the cost of a new well; and

Through installed extraction equipment and infrastructure
operational at the time of the reserves estimate if the extraction is
by means not involving a well.

Undeveloped oil and gas reserves — Undeveloped oil and gas reserves
are reserves of any category that are expected to be recovered from
new wells on undrilled acreage, or from existing wells where a relatively
major expenditure is required from recompletion.

M

(i)

(i)

Reserves on undrilled acreage shall be limited to those directly
offsetting development spacing areas that are reasonably
certain of production when drilled, unless evidence using reliable
technology exists that establishes reasonable certainty of
economic producibility at greater distances.

Undrilled locations can be classified as having undeveloped
reserves only if a development plan has been adopted indicating
that they are scheduled to be drilled within five years, unless the
specific circumstances, justify a longer time.

Under no circumstances shall estimates for undeveloped reserves
be attributable to any acreage for which an application of fluid
injection or other improved recovery technique is contemplated,
unless such techniques have been proved effective by actual
projects in the same reservoir or an analogous reservoir, or by
other evidence using reliable technology establishing reasonable
certainty.
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Results of Operations for Exploration and Production

Segment

RESERVE QUANTITIES INFORMATION

BRREERREERE

RMB’million
ARBEER
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZ=2023F12A31BLLFE
Gross revenue BT 911
Less: Inter-company adjustment B A RIE R -
Revenue from external customers REINEPE P 2 WA 911
Segment results RIREEE 95
Share of profits less losses of: JEAf 4 R RS 18
— Associates .- WNC] 74
— Joint ventures -BEBE 221
Profit before income tax expense Br PSR B A Am A 390
Segment results included: RIBEE IS -
— Interest income - FLEHA 21
- Depreciation, depletion and amortisation -TE - BREREH (228)
— Interest expenses - FEX -
— Net exchange gains — [ W a5 EE 7
RMB’million
AREBER
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE2022F12A31AILEE
Gross revenue BTN 2,286
Less: Inter-company adjustment B A RIEE -
Revenue from external customers REINBRFE Z WA 2,286
Segment results RIBELE 379
Share of profits less losses of: e R BB 18
— Associates VA 147
- Joint ventures -aAMHE 140
Profit before income tax expense BRETISHE AR T 666
Segment results included: RIBEE IS -
— Interest income - FBMA 12
— Depreciation, depletion and amortisation -E - BREREH (454)
— Interest expenses - FBZH (1)
- Net exchange gains — [ 5 W as 358 13
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RESERVE QUANTITIES INFORMATION
BEEik

Costs Incurred for Property Acquisitions, Exploration and 402 UxEE - RiIRBEEEELE 2R
Production: A

Costs Incurred for Property Acquisitions, Exploration and ¥ Uk - 8RBT EE 2 RA
Development Activities

2023 2022
20234 2022%F
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEERT ARBEET
The Group E
Property acquisition costs E TN -
Exploration costs BN AN 4 -
Development cost FEE R AR 2 113
Total @t 6 113
Equity method investments BmERE
Share of costs of property acquisition SMEHERRIREGE
exploration and development of REELEE -
associates and joint ventures BN iR K R AR 585 647
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OTHER CORPORATE INFORMATION
ralHith &

Remuneration Committee
Dr Liu Xiao Feng (Chairman)
Mr Sun Patrick

Mr Tsang Yok Sing Jasper

Nomination Committee
Mr Fu Bin (Chairman)

Dr Liu Xiao Feng

Mr Sun Patrick

Mr Tsang Yok Sing Jasper

Sustainability Committee

Mr Qian Zhijia (Chairrman)

Mr Gao Xiangzhong

Dr Liu Xiao Feng

Mr Tsang Yok Sing Jasper

Mr He Yongli (Non-director member)""

Mr Zhong Wenxu (Non-director member)?

SOLICITOR
Clifford Chance
King & Wood Mallesons

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM11, Bermuda

PRINCIPAL OFFICE

39/F., 118 Connaught Road West
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2522 2282

E-mail: info@kunlun.com.hk

Fax: 2868 1741

PRINCIPAL REGISTRARS

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM11, Bermuda

REGISTRARS IN HONG KONG

Tricor Secretaries Limited
17/F

Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

Note:

(1) appointed as a non-director member of Sustainability Committee with effect

from 31 May 2023

) resigned as a non-director member of Sustainability Committee with effect

from 31 May 2023
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